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Dear Fellow Shareholders,

The Bank of Princeton (the “Bank”) completed a successful year with
earnings of $10.1 million, or $1.47 per diluted common share, and total
assets of $1.45 billion. These results were a part of the Bank’s strategic
Initiative of increasing shareholder value through controlled prudent
growth of the Bank’s earning assets, which grew $100.5 million during

2019. Total deposits increased $230.6 million during the same period.

The Bank is approaching its 13th year of operation, and continues its
success by staying the course with its original core mission of targeting
the commercial real estate and small business communities for their
lending needs and staying significantly involved in the community.
The Bank’s strong capital position provides the opportunity for future
organic growth as well as the ability to take advantage of acquisition
opportunities when they present themselves, such as the WSFS/
Beneficial Bank branch acquisition.

Notable Highlights for 2019

* Net loans increased $105.4 million to nearly $1.2 billion at
year-end 2019 and reflected an 8.9% increase year over year.

* The quarterly cash dividend paid to The Bank of Princeton
shareholders increased by $0.07 per share to $0.10 per share
during the 3rd quarter of 2019, from its inception on
November 5, 2018.

Acquired five branches with $178.0 million in low-cost deposits
in southern New Jersey from WSFS Bank on May 17, 2019.
The five branches are consistent with the Bank’s I-95 footprint.

* The Bank added the Princeton Junction branch in the 3rd
quarter 2019, followed by the Quakerbridge Road branch in the
4th quarter 2019.

* The Bank has received regulatory approval and expects to open
three additional branches and two unique ATM locations in 2020;
the branches will be located in Lakewood and Piscataway in New
Jersey and on Chestnut Street in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania.
These new locations will boost the total number of branches to
twenty-four, adding locations in Ocean and Middlesex Counties
in New Jersey and the Philadelphia Market.

The Bank is focused on the strategy to expand its cohesive footprint
along the I-95 corridor. This footprint along the I-95 corridor extends
from north New Jersey to Philadelphia. After going public in 2017, the
Bank started with opening the Cream Ridge branch in December 2018,
followed by two additional strategic branch locations in the 3rd (West
Windsor) and 4th (Quakerbridge) quarters of 2019. The Bank expects
that the three additional branches which were approved in 2019 will
open in the 1st and 2nd quarters of 2020 as discussed above. In addition,
the Bank executed on the acquisition of five branches from the WSFS/
Beneficial Bank merger. These additional branches added $178.0 i
million of low-cost deposits and were consistent with the Bank’s R
strategic I-95 footprint focus. The Bank recognizes that attracting

and retaining core deposits is fundamental to the future success of @&1 ’ .
the Bank. Core deposits drive greater profitability and franchise )Gb%gflﬁd—«

value, which can translate into higher stock value.

Richard Gillespie
Chairman

This expansion naturally comes with additional cost. The strong core of the Board

earnings power of the Bank provides sufficient revenue to allow the

Bank to continue to be a solid performer during the period it takes to

realize this investment in the franchise.

Finally, the Bank is making significant investments in its digital Multiple new branch
platform. The investment in these digital technologies allows our
Bank customers to conveniently access the many Bank products and  deposits are fueling

openings and increased

services. In addition, while our existing customers can benefit from ¢ srowih.
the convenience, this technology also allows the Bank to recruit new

customers within our market areas. The digital platform offers the

Bank a more efficient way to market our brand along with our

products and services in our existing and new market areas while

extending the Bank’s reach to new customers.

The Board and Management of the Bank are excited about providing

the highest level of service along with being a strong partner in the
communities we service.

ii
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The Bank of Princeton

Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

The Bank of Princeton (the “Bank™) may from time to time make written or oral “forward-looking statemenis.” including
statemenis contained in the Bank's filings with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the “FDIC™) (including this Annual Report
on Form 10-K and the exhibiis thereto), in its reports to stockholders and in other communications by the Bank, which are made in good
faith by the Bank pursuant to the “safe harbor™ provisions of Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (referred
to as the “Exchange Act™).

These forward-looking statements involve nsks and uncertainties, such as statements of the Bank’s plans, objectives,
expectations, estimates and mtentions that are subject to change based on vanous important factors (some of which are beyond the
Bank’s control). The following factors, among others, could cause the Bank's financial performance to differ materially from the plans,
objectives, expectations, estimates and intentions expressed in such forward-looking statements: those listed in this report under the
heading “Risk Factors”, health emergencies, the spread of infectious diseases or pandemics; the strength of the United States economy
in general and the sirength of the local economics in which the Bank conducis operations; the effects of, and changes in monetary and
Niscal policies and laws, including interest rate policies of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System; imllation; interest rale;
markel and monetary Mucuations; market volanhity; the value of our products and services as perceived by actual and prospective
customers, including the Features, pricing and quality compared 1o competitors” products and services; loss ol management and key
personnel; atlure of our controls and procedures; inability o close loans in our pipeline; operational nisks, including the nsk of fraud
by employees, customers or oulsiders; our borroswers” ability 1o repay their loans; changes in the real estate market that can alTeet real
estate that serves as collateral for some of our loans; the adequacy ol our allowance lor loan losses and our methodology for determining
such allowance; the willingness of customers 1o substilute competitors” products and services for the Bank’s products and services; the
mmpact of changes in apphicable laws and regulations; changes in technology or interruptions and breaches in security of our information
syslems; acquisitions; changes i consumer spending and saving habits, Although management has taken certain steps o miligale any
negative effect of the aforementioned items, significant unlfavorable changes could severely impact the assumptions used and have an
adverse effect on profitability. Such risks and other aspects ol our business and operations are deseribed in Item 1. *Business,” llem 1A
“Risk Factors™ and ltem 7. “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resulis of Operations™ of this report.

The Bank cautions that the lforegoing list of important [actors 15 not exclusive. The Bank does not undertake to update any
forward-looking statement, whether written or oral, that may be made from time to time by or on behalt of the Bank, except as required
by applicable law or regulation.

Thronghout this document, references to “we,” “us,” or “our” refer to the Bank and 115 consolidated subsidiaries.

PART 1
Item 1. Business
General

The Bank of Princeton was incorporated on March 5, 2007 under the laws of the State of New Jersey as a New Jersey state-
chartered bank. We commenced operations on April 23, 2007. We are a full service bank providing personal and business lending and
deposit services. As a state-chartered bank, we are regulated by the New Jersey Department of Banking and Insurance and the FDIC.
Owur market area, which we serve through our 21 branches, 1s generally an area within an approximate 100 mile radius of Princeton, N1,
including parts of Mercer, Somerset, Hunterdon, Monmouth, Middlesex, Ocean, Gloucester, Camden and Burlington Counties in New
Jersey, and additional arcas i portions of Philadelphia, Montgomery and Bucks Counties in Pennsylvania, The Bank also conducts
loan ongmation activities in select arcas of New York.

Smee we commenced operations, we have grown through both de novoe branching and acquisitions. In 20010, we acquired three
Pennsylvania branches through a merger with MoreBank. In March 2019, the Bank converted the former MoreBank branches Lo operate
under The Bank ol Princeton name, In December 2018, the Bank opened a new branch in Cream Ridge, New Jersey. In Apnl 2009, the
Bank opened a new branch in Quakerbridge, New Jersey and another branch in September 20019, located in Princeton Junction, New
Jersey,

On May 17, 2019, the Bank successlully completed acquisition of [ive WSFS Bank branches located in Bordentown, Browns
Mills, Chesterfield, Depiford and Sicklerville, in New Jersey.

The Bank of Princeton

Cur headguarters and one of our branches are located at 183 Bayard Lane, Princeton, New Jersey 08540, Our telephone number
15 (609) 921-1700 and our website address 1s www thebankolprinceton.com.

The Bank has elected to prepare this Annual Report on Form 10- K and other annual and periodic reports as a “smaller reporting
company” consistent with the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC™).

Competition

We have substantial competition in originating commercial and consumer loans in our market area. This competition comes
principally from other banks, savings institutions, mortgage banking companies and other lenders. Many of our competitors enjoy
advantages over us, including greater financial resources and higher lending limits, a wider geographic presence, more accessible branch
office locations, the ability to offer a wider array of services or more favorable pricing alternatives, as well as lower origination and
operating costs, Among other things, this competition could reduce our interest income and net income by decreasing the number and
size of loans that we originate and the interest rates we may charge on these loans.

Im attracting business and consumer deposits, we [ace substantial competition from other insured depository mstitutions such
as banks, savings mstitutions and credit unions, as well as mstitutions ofTening uninsured mvestment allernatives, ncluding money
markel [unds. Many of our competitors enjoy advantages over us, including greater linancial resources, more aggressive markeling
campaigns, better brand recognition and more branch locations, These competitors may oller lngher mterest rates on deposits, which
could deercase the deposits that we atlract, or require us o merease the rates we pay Lo relain existing deposils or attract new deposils,
Deposit competition could adversely affect our net interest income and net income, and our ability o generate the funds we require for
our lending or other operations. As a result, we may need 1o seck other sources of funds that may be more expensive o obtain and could
inerease our cost of funds,

Lending Activities

Our loan portfolio consists of variable-rate and [ixed-rate loans with a significant concentration in commercial real estatle
lending. While most loans and other credit facilities are appropriately collateralized, major emphasis is placed upon the linancial
condition of the borrower and the borrower’s cash flow versus debt service requirements.

Loan growth is driven by customer demand, which in turn is influenced by individual and business indebtedness and consumer
demand for goods. Loaning money will always entail some risk. Without loaning money, however, a bank cannot generate enough net
interest income to be profitable. The risk involved in each loan must be carefully evaluated before the loan is made. The interest rate
at which the loan is made should always reflect the risk factors involved, including the term of the loan, the value of collateral, if any,
the reliability of the projected source of repayment, and the amount of the loan requesied. Credit quality and repayment capacity are
generally the most important factors in evaluating loan applications.

Loan Porifolio Composition. The following table presents our loan portfolio by segment at December 31, (Dollars in
thousands):

2019 2018 2017 2016 25
Aumount % Admount e Admount e Admount % Amaount %

Commercial real estate’ S B53876  TL.T% § 79336 67.3% 5 634,768 65.3% 5 554,050 64.2% S 490,295 0. 5%
Commercial and
indstrial 43,504 7 T1LA3R 6.6 50630 6.1 (%103 7.0 125072 15.4
Construction 158, T8 159 161.275 14.9 183,375 18.9 166,719 9.3 122,297 15.1
Residential first-lien
maorgage BEL0GT 7.5 102,005 04 73,505 1.6 56,712 6.6 42409 5.2
Home Equity 12,959 1.1 17045 L6 20551 2.1 24,185 18 29922 3.7
Consumer 704 0.1 1987 0.2 447 o 77 0.1 ] .1

Tonal Loans LIB2.989  100.% 1,083,492 100, % 972,282 100L0% R63 129 1000 R10,856 DO
Dielerred fees and costs (3419 (2,313) (2.335) (2,803) (2,910
Allowanee for loan (12.55T) (11,944 (11,591) (10,322} (10,851
losscs

Loans, net 5 174,013 5 1,049,235 5 958,356 5 H4D.504 5 TO7.005

! I lucles multi-family real estate secured loans,



The Bank of Princeton

The majority of our loans are to borrowers in our immediate markets. We believe that no single borrower or group of borrowers
presents a credit concentration whereby the borrowers” loan default would have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or
results of operations.

Commercial Real Estate and Multi-family. At December 31, 2019, commercial real estate and multi-family loans amounted
in the aggregate 1w 38539 million, or 71.7% of the total loan portfolio. Our commercial real estate portfolio has increased $363.6 million
or 74.2% since December 31, 2015, when commercial real estate and mulii-family loans amounted to 5490.3 million, or 60.5%, of our
total portfolio.

The commercial real estate and multi-family loan portfoho consists primarily of loans secured by small office buildings, strip
shopping centers, small apartment buildings and other properties used for commercial and multi-family purposes located in the Bank's
market area. At December 31, 20109, the average commercial and multi-family real estate loan size was approximately 1.4 milhon,

Although terms for commercial real estate and mulu-family loans vary, our underwriting standards generally allow for terms
up to 7 years with loan-to-value ratios of not more than 75%. Most ol the loans are structured with balloon payments ol 5 years or less
and amortization periods ol up (o 25 years, Interest rates are either lixed or adjustable, based upon designated market indices such as
the Wall Street Journal prime rate plus a margin,

Commercial real estate and multi-family real estate lending involves different risks than single-tamily residential lending.
These risks include larger loans to individual borrowers and loan pavments that are dependent upon the successtul operations of the
project or the borrower's business. These risks can be affected by supply and demand conditions in the project’s market area of rental
housing units, office and retail space and other commercial space. We attempt to minimize these risks by limiting loans to proven
businesses, only considering properties with existing operating performance which can be analyzed, using conservative debt coverage
ratios in our underwriting, and periodically monitoring the operation of the business or project and the physical condition of the property.

Various aspeets ol commercial and multu-family loan transactions are evaluated in an elfort to matigate the addinonal nisk in
these types ol loans,  In our underwriting procedures, consideration 1s given 1o the statality of the property’s cash Now history, [uture
operaling projections, current and projected occupancy levels, location and physical condition. Generally, we impose a debt service ratio
(the ratio ol net cash Nows [rom operations belore the payment of debt service o debt service) ol not less than 1.25 X, We also evaluate
the credit and mancial condition ol the borrower, and 1l applicable, the guarantor.  With respects 1o loan participation inleresls we
purchase, we underwrite the loans as if we were the originating lender. Appraisal reports prepared by independent appraisers are
reviewed by an outside third party prior to closing.

Set forth below is a briel description of our three largest commercial real estate or mulii-family loans:

= The largest commercial real estate loan is a 52000 million loan. The proceeds were used to purchase a 32-unit office
building located in Hamilton, NJ.

- The second largest commercial real estate loan is an $18.0 million loan. The proceeds were used to refinance a Construction
line of credit (“L.OC™) in the amount of $12.9 million and the remaining balance was advanced as cash out to the Borrower
for future real estate investment purchases. The funds were used to finance the construction of a shopping center located
n Lakewood, NJ with 14 retail units.

- The third largest commercial real estate loan is an S13.0 million loan. The proceeds were used to refinance an existing
mortgage of $3.4 million, fund property repairs and upgrades of $2.7 million, and the balance of $6.9 million was advanced
as cash oul 1o the Borrower [or [uture real estate mvestment purchases.

Commercial and Industrial Loans. AL December 31, 20019, commercial and industrial loans amounted in the aggregate o
$43.5 million, or 3.7%, of the total loan portlfolio. Our commercial and industrial portfolio has decreased $81.6 million, or 65.2%, since
December 31, 2015, when commercial and industrial loans amounted 1o $125.1 million, or 15.4%, of our total loan portfolio.

Commercial business loans are made to small to mid-sized businesses in our market area primarily 1o provide working capital.
Small business loans may have adjustable or lixed rates ol interest and generally have terms of three years or less, but may be as long
as 15 years. Our commercial business loans have historically been underwritten based on the creditworthiness of the borrower and
generally require a debt service coverage ratio of at least 120%. In addition, we generally obtain personal guarantees from the principals
of the borrower with respect to commercial business loans and frequently obtain real estate as additional collateral.

The Bank of Princeton

Construction Loans. We originate various types of commercial loans, including construction loans, secured by collateral such
as real estate, business assets and personal guarantees. The loans are solicited on a direct basis and through various professionals with
whom we maintain contacts and by referral from our directors, stockholders and customers. At December 31, 2019, our construction
loans amounted to $189 8 million, or 15.9% of our total portfolio.  The average size of a construction loan was approximately $3.2
million at December 31, 2019, Our construction loans portfolio has increased substantally since December 31, 2015, when construction
loan amounted to $122.3 million, or 15.1% of our total loan portfolio, an increase of $67.5 million or 55.2%. Construction lending
represents a segment of our loan portfolio and is driven primarily by market conditions. Loans to finance construction of condominium
projects or single-family homes and subdivisions are generally offered to experienced builders in our primary market area with whom
we have an established relationship.  The maximum loan-to-value limit applicable to these loans i1s 75% of the appraised post
construction value and does not require amortization of the principal during the term of the loan. We often establish interest reserves
and obtain personal and corporate guarantees as additional security on the construction loans. Interest reserves are used to pay monthly
payments during the construction phases of the loan and are treated as an addition to the loan balance. Interest reserves pose an additional
risk to the Bank if it does not become aware of deterioration in the borrower’s financial condition before the interest reserve is fully
utilized. In order to mitigate risk, financial statements and tax returns are obtained from borrowers on an annual basis. Construction
loan proceeds are disbursed periodically in increments as construction progresses and as inspection by approved appraisers or loan
mspectors warrants. Construction loans are negotiated on an individual basis but typically have [oating rates ol interest based on a
common index plus a stipulated margin. Additional fees may be charged as funds are disbursed. As units are completed and sold, we
require that payments o reduce principal outstanding be made prior w them being released. We may permit a pre-determined limited
number of model homes 1o be constructed on an unsold or “speculative’™ basis. Construction loans also include loans o acquire land
and loans o develop the basic infrastructure, such as roads and sewers. The majority of the construction loans are secured by propertics
located in our primary areas.

Set forth below is a brief description of our three largest construction loans or loan relationships:

- The largest construction loan is a $26.0 million loan. The proceeds were used to finance Phase 1 of a 4-Phase project
located in Town of Palm Tree, NY. The combined projects consist of 1,951 residential condo units situated on
approximately 69 acres of land. Phase | alone will consist of 456 residential condominium wnits. The Bank participated
in this loan and holds 19.05% interest.

- The second largest construction loan is a time note in the amount of $17.0 million. The proceeds were used to [inance the
purchase of seven lots located in Brooklyn, NY for future development of a mixed-use multi-family rental property.

- The third largest construction loan is a time note in the amount of $12.0 million. The proceeds were used to finance the
purchase of a commercial property located in Brooklyn, NY for future demolition and development of a mixed-use mult-
family rental property.

Residential First-Lien Morigage Loans. We offer a narrow range of prime residential first-lien mortgage loans at competitive
rates. Our customers, stockholders and local real estate brokers are a significant source of these loans, We sirive to process, approve
and fund loans in a timeframe that meets the needs of our borrowers. Generally, we originate and retain non-conforming residential
first-lien mortgage loans and refer conforming residential first-lien mortgage loans to a third party, whereby we may earn a fee. Al
December 31, 2019, our residential first-lien loans amounted to $89.1 million, or 7.5%, of our total portfolio. Our residential first-lien
loan portfolio has increased $46.7 million, or 110.0%, since December 31, 2015, when residential first-lien loans amounted to $42 .4
million, or 5.2%, of our total loan portfolio.

Home Equity Loans and Lines of Credit. We generate these loans and hines of credit primarily through direct marketing at our
branch locations, referrals from local real estate brokers and, to a lesser extent, by targeted direct marketing programs such as mail and
electronic mail.

Consumer Loans. We solicil consumer loans on a direct basis and upon referrals from our directors, stockholders and existing
customers.

Loans Recervable, Net. Loans receivable, net inereased from $1.08 balhon at December 31, 20018 o 51,19 billion at December
31,2019, an inerease ol $106.5 million, or 9.8%. The increase was attributable 1o our efTorts 1o grow our loan portfolio through existing
relationships and new business. This growth was largely funded by increases in deposits and a decrease in our investment securities.
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The following table details our loan maturities by loan segment and interest rate type:

December 31, 2019
Due after one
Due in one year  through five Due after five
{Dollars in thousands) or less years years Total
Commercial real estate 8 13316 & 98,183 S 742377 8 8533 876
Commercial and industrial 21,671 9,253 12,580 43,504
Construction 78,175 107,933 3,681 189,789
Residential first-lien mortgage - - 89067 89,067
Home equity - 467 12,492 12,959
Consumer 572 219 3 794
Total loans 5 113,734 % 216,055 % 860,200 % 1,159 989
Type:
Fixed rate loans 5 6,329 % 106,247 8 97.684 8 210,260
Floating rate loans 107,405 109,508 762.516 979,729
Total loans b 113,734 5 216,055 S B60.200 5 1,189,989

The acerual of interest is discontinued when the contractual payment of principal or interest 1s 90 days past due or management
has serious doubts about further collectability of the principal or interest, even il the loan is currently performing.

The [ollowing table sets Torth certain mlormation regarding our nonacerual loans, troubled debt restructunings, aceruing loans
90 days or more past-due, and other real estate owned.

December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2019 2018 2017 2016 215
Nonaccrual loans:
Commercial real estate b3 2071 8 2968 % 7,589 % 1,389 § 6,530
Commercial and industrial - 2,196 18 188 1,834
Construction 371 487 1,592 1,649 1,805
Residential firsi-lien morigage - - - - 1.370
Home equity - 48 - 145 450
Consumer - - - - -
Total nonacerual loans 2442 5,699 9,199 3,371 11,989
Troubled debt restructurings (TDRs) — performing 9,293 1,286 4,796 4,943 1,171
Accrual loans 90 days or more past due - - - 1,820 -
Total nonperforming loans and performing TDRs 11,735 6,985 13,995 10,134 13,160
(her real estate owned - 44 802 - 300
Total nonperforming assets and performing TDRs 5 11,735 % TO029 % 14797 5 10,134 § 13,460

See Mote 4 - “Loans Receivable™ in the Notes o Consolidated Financial Statements within this Form 10-K for addinonal
mformation regarding our loans not classified as nonperforming assets as of December 31, 2019 and for other information on our loan
ratings of special mention, substandard and doubtful, all of which contain varying degrees of potential eredit problems that could result
n the loans being classified as nonaccrual, past-due 90 or more days or troubled debt restructurings in a future period.

The Bank of Princeton

Analysis of Allowance for Lean Losses. Our allowance for loan losses (the “allowance™) 15 based on a documented
methodology, which includes an ongoing evaluation of the loan portfolio, and reflects management’s best estimate of probable losses
in the loan portfolio as of the reporting date. The determination of the allowance for loan losses involves a high degree of judgment and
complexity. In evaluating the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses, management gives consideration o current economic
conditions, statutory examinations of the loan portfolio by regulatory agencies, loan reviews performed periodically by independent
third parties, delinquency information, management’s internal review of the loan portfolio, and other relevant factors. In determining
and maintaining our allowance for loan losses, we comply with the Federal Financial Institutions Exammation Council (“FFIEC™)
Interagency Policy Statements on the Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses and on Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses Methodologies
and Documentation for Banks and Savings Associations.

Our allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level considered adequate to provide for probable losses. We perform, at leasi
quarterly, an evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance. The allowance is based on our past loan loss experience (which is bound by
our limited operating history), known and inherent risks in the porifolio, adverse situations that may affect the borrower’s ability 1o
repay, the estimated value of any underlying collateral, the composition of the loan portfolio, current economic conditions and other
relevant factors. This evaluation is mherently subjective as it requires material estumates that may be susceptible to significant revision
as more information becomes available,

The allowance consists ol specilic, general, and unallocated components, The specilic component relates 1o loans that are
classiied as impaired.  For loans that are classilied as impaired, an allowance 1s established when the discounted cash Nows (or collateral
value or observable market price) of the impaired loan 1s lower than the carrying value of that loan., The gencral component covers
poals of loans by loan segment including loans not considered impaired, as well as smaller balance homogencous loans, such as
residential mortgage and other consumer loans. These pools ol loans are evaluated [or loss exposure based upon histoncal loss rates lor
cach ol these categories ol loans, adjusted Tor qualitative factors,

As of December 31, 2019, the allowance [or loan losses was $12.6 million as compared 1o $11.9 million as of December 31,
2018, The provision lor loan losses for the year ended December 31, 2009 inereased $4.1 million over the provision ol $6635,000 for
the year ended December 31, 2018, which was primarily due to $4.2 million in net charge-ofls recorded in 2019, The ratio ol allowance
for loan losses w total loans as of December 31, 2019 was 1 .06% compared 1o 1.10% as of December 31, 2018,
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The following table presents a summary of changes in our allowance for loan losses and includes information regarding charge-
ofls, recoveries, and net charge-ofTs to average loans outstanding:

Year Ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Balance at beginning of year 5 1,944 5 11,591 § 10,822 3% 10851 5 10,008
Charge offs:
Commercial real estate (2.597) (216) {2,3100 - (435)
Commercial and industrial (1,895) (30) (7300 - (626)
Construction - (225) - = =
Residential firsi-lien morigage - - - - -
Home equity - (3) - - (39)
Consumer - - - - -
Total charge otfs (4,492} (474) (3,040 - (1,100
Recoveries:
Commercial real estate 222 28 - - -
Commercial and industrial 83 134 40 12 13
Construction - - 4 - -

Residential first-lien mortgage - = o . -

Iome equity - - - - [

Consumer - o = - M0

Total recoveries 305 162 44 12 39

Net charge-otfs (4,187 (312) {2,996) 12 (1,061)

Additions (reductions) charged to operations provision {credit)

for loan losses 4,800 (i) 3.765 (41) 1.904

Balance at end of year b 12,577 8§ 11944 § 11,591 3% 10,822 5 10,851
MNet charge offs to average loans outstanding 0.37 % 0.03 % 0.33% 0.00% 0.14%

Our allowance for loan losses is allocated to the various segments of our portfolio identified above. The unallocated component
of the allowance for loan losses 15 maintained to cover uncertainties that could affect our estimate of probable losses. The unallocated
component reflects the margim of imprecision inherent in the underlying assumptions used i the methodologies for esimating specific
and general losses in the porifolio. Reductions or additions to the allowance charged to operations are the result of applying our
allowance methodology to the existing loan portiolio.
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The following table presents the allocation of the allowance for loan losses by portfolio segment for the years ended.  The
allocation of a portion of the allowance for loan losses to one category of loans does not preclude its availability to absorb losses in other

calegories,

December 31,

2019 2018 2017
Allocation Allocation Allocation
as a % of as a % of as a % of
Loan Loan Loan
{Dollars in thousands) Amount Calegory Amount Category Amount Category
Commercial real estate by 8,172 T.7% 8 T.208 67.3% S 6,240 65.3%
Commercial and industrial 973 37% 1.396 0.6% 957 6.1%
Construction 2,258 15.9% 1.859 14.9% 3.077 18.9%
Residential firsi-lien morigage 353 7.5% 568 9.4% 461 7.6%
Home equity 71 1.1 % 95 1.6% 144 2.1%
Consumer 5 1 %% 11 2% 3 =%
Unallocated T26 - B0O7 - T09 -
Total b 12,557 oo S 11,5944 1000% S 11,591 100 0 %%
December 31,
2016 2015
Allocation Allocation
as a % ol as a % of
l.oan l.oan
(Dollars in thousands) Amount Catesory Amount Calegory
Commercial real estate b 5,330 642% 8§ 4,703 6.5 %
Commercial and indusinal 974 T.0% 2,246 15.4%
Construction 3159 19.3 % 2,615 15.1%
Residenuial first-lien morigage 404 6.6 % 292 3.2%
Home equity 155 2.8% 225 3.7%
Consumer 3 0.1% 3 0.1%
Unallocated 797 - T67 -
Total 8 10,822 1000 %% 8 10,851 1000 %

See Note 4 = “Loans Recervable™ in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements within this Form 10-K for additional
information regarding our allowance for loan losses,

Investment Securities (available-for-sale and held-to-maturity)

We hold securities that are available to fund increased loan demand or deposit withdrawals and other liquidity needs, and
which provide an additional source of interest income. Securities are classified as held-to-maturity (“HTM") or available-for-sale
(“ALFS™) at the time of purchase. Securities are classified as HTM 1f we have the ability and intent to hold them until maturity. HTM
securitics are carried at cost, adjusted for unamortized purchase premiums and discounts. Securities that are classilied as AFS are carried
al Fur value with unrealized gamms and losses, net of mecome laxes, reported as a component of equity within accumulated other
comprehensive mcome (loss).
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The following table presents a summary of the amortized cost and fair value of our securities available-for-sale.

December 31,
2019 2018 7
Amortized Fair Amortized Fair Amortized Fair

(Dollars in thousands) Cost Value Cost Value Cost Value
Mortgage-backed Securities-11.5.

Governmeni-sponsored

Enterprises (GSEs) 5 55677 § 55951 § 46,954 § 46,472 % 53943 § 53,771
Obligations of state and
political subdivisions 55,777 50,301 45,387 45,209 47.692 47,973

Total S 111454 8 112312 % 92,341 5 91,681 5 101,635 5 101,744

Securities available-for-sale, which are carried at fair value, increased 520.6 million, or 22.5%, to $112.3 million at December
31, 2019 from December 31, 2018, The Bank utilized a portion of excess cash on hand to purchase available-for-sale securities to
achieve a higher yield while maintaining sutficient liquidiry.

The following table presents a summary of the amortized cost and Fur value ol our HTM sceunities.

December 31,

2019 2018 2017
Amortized Fair Amortized Fair Amortized Fair
(Dollars in thousands) Cost Value Cost Value Cost Value
Mortgage-backed Sceurities-US.
Government-sponsored
Enterprises (GSEs) s 222 § 236 8 228 % 2368 264 5 280

HTM securities decreased 2.6% from December 31, 2018 to December 31, 2019, The decline in HTM securities 1s the result
of normal principal prepayments and our strategy to not purchase additional securities for the HTM portfolio as we manage our
investment portfolio to allow for greater flexibility as our liquidity needs change.

The following table summarizes the maturity distribution schedule of the amortized cost of debt securities with corresponding
weighted-average vields at December 31, 2019, Interest income presented in this Form 10-K for tax-advantaged obligations of state
and political subdivisions has not been adjusted to reflect fully taxable-equivalent interest income. Weighted-average vields presented
below have also not been computed on a fully taxable-equivalent basis. Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities
because the securities may be called without any penalties,

December 31, 2019

After one After five
One year or through five through ten After ten
(Dollars in thousands) less yeuars vears Years Total

Morgage-backed Sceunities-1.5, Government-

sponsored Enterprises (GSEs) 5 111 s 9011 % 11,567 § 34988 % 55,677
Obligations ol state and political subdivisions 791 6,093 17,429 31,464 55,717
Total 5 902 § 15104 % 28996 5 66452 5 111454
Weighted average vield 4.04% 2.37% 3.58% 2.68% 2.58%

At December 31, 2019, there were no security holdings of any one issuer in an amount greater than 10.0% of our total
stockholders’ equity. See Note 3 — “Investment Securities™ in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements within this Form 10-K
for additional information regarding debt securities.
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Cash and Due From Banks

Cash and due [rom banks mcreased [rom 526.4 milhion at December 31, 20018 wo 8726 milhon at December 31, 2019, an
merease of $46.2 millon, or 175.2%. The increase in cash and due [rom banks was primarily atiributable to an increase in deposits that
15 being held 1o fund future loan growth,

Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment, net increased $6.6 million from December 31, 2018 to December 31, 2019 resulting from the addition
of four branch buildings acquired from WSS totaling 52.7 million, $3.4 million in leasehold improvements for new and existing
branches and 814,000 in additional purchases in computers and equipment. offset by 3792000 in depreciation expense that occurred
during the year.

Goodwill and Core Deposit Intangible

During 2019, the Bank recorded $8.9 million related 1o goodwill and 4.2 million (partially offset by S482 000 in amortization
expense) in a core deposit intangible asset derived from the live branch acquisition that oceurred in May 2019

Accrued Interest Receivable and Other Assets

Acecrued interest receivable decreased $108,000 from December 31, 2018 to December 31, 2019, primarily due o a dechne in
interest rates applied o loans at December 31, 200149, The decrease in restricted investments in bank stocks was primarily the result ol a
$55.4 million decrease in borrowings from the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York (“FHLB-NY™) at December 31, 2019 compared
o December 31, 2018, Deferred taxes deereased 341,000 from December 31, 2018 1o December 31, 2019, primarily due to the increase
in fair value of unrealized gains in the available-for-sale securities portfolio. Bank owned life insurance increased $1.2 million from
December 31, 2018 to December 31, 2019, primarily due to the earnings recorded from the existing policies. The Bank recorded a $14.5
million right-of-use asset resulting from the adoption of FASDE Update NO. 2016-02 (“Leases™). Other assets decreased 5421,000 from
December 31, 2018 to December 31, 2019, primarily due to a reduction of income tax receivable of $423,000.

Deposits

Our deposit services are generally comprised of a traditional range of deposit products, including checking accounts, savings
accounts, attorney trust accounts, money market accounts, and certificates of deposil.

We ofter our customers access to automated teller machines (“ATMs"™) and other services which increase customer convenience
and encourage continued and additional banking relationships.

We endeavor o mamtain competitive rates on deposit accounts, and actual rates are established at the tme that they are oflered,
and subsequently, based on contractual terms, lake into consideration competitor olTerings, Although from time o tme we adverlise in
local newspapers, our primary source of deposit relationships 1s satished customers. We ofler a range of direct deposit products ranging
from social sccunty and disability payments to direet deposit ol payroll checks.

During normal business practices the Bank will utilize the use of deposits originated by brokers for short term funding needs.
Al December 31, 2019 the balance of brokered deposits was $35.6 million, a decrease of $38.2 million from the $93 8 million

outstanding at December 31, 2018,

Al December 31, 2019, there were no customers whose deposit balances individually exceeded 5% of total deposits.
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The following table presents our time deposit maturities.

December 31, 2019
Over six
Three Over three  through
months through twelve Over twelve
(Dollars in thousands) or less six months  months maonths Total
Time deposits of $100,000 or more b3 21,883 § 16,750 § 19763 5 59,789 5 118,185
Time deposits of less than $100,000 59,695 77,365 73,321 105,738 316,119
Total 3 81,578 § 94,115 § 93,084 % 165,527 § 434,304

The following table presents the average balance of our deposit accounts and the average cost of funds for each category of
our deposits.

2019 2018 2017
Yo of %o of Yo of
Avg.  Average Avg. Average Avg, Average
Average  Rate Total Average Rate Tuotal Average  Rate Total

(Dollars in thousands)  Amount  Paid  Deposits Amount Paid Deposits Amount Paid Deposits

Demand. non-
interest-bearing

checking § 123821  0.00% 11.0% 5 100,078 0.00% 9.8% 5102317 0.00% 11.5%
Demand Interest-
bearing 205,828  1.15 18.3 215379 0.86 21.0 173761 0.71 19.6
Monecy market 254,151 1.67 226 273,373 1.42 20,0 265,055 099 299
Savings deposits 132,027  1.30 11.8 102,219 1.17 9.9 107,747  0.87 12.1
Time deposits of
5250,000 or
more 114,048 238 10.2 87,775 1.83 8.0 71,535 147 1.6
Other time
deposits 292,860  2.30 26.1 247,005 1.79 24.1 166,853 1.48 18.8
Total §1,122,735 1.58% 100.0% $1,025,829 1.26% 100,0% $ 887268  0.94% 1000 %

See the ligudity discussion within Item 7 Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations within this Form 10-K for more mformation regarding our available funds.

Total deposits increased from $1.01 billion at December 31, 2018 1o $1.24 billion at December 31, 2019, an increase of $230.6
million, or 22.9%. MNon-interest-bearing deposits increased 538.7 million, or 37.7%, to $141.3 million at December 31, 2019, Interest-
bearing deposits increased $192.0 million, or 21.2%, to $1.10 billion at December 31, 2019.

Borrowings.

Al December 31, 2009, the Bank had no borrowings, compared 1o 5554 millhon at December 31, 2008, The Bank maintains
its borrowing capacity with FHLB-NY as an additional source of ligquidity,
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Accrued Interest Payable and Other Liabilities

Accrued interest payable and other liabilities increased $14.8 million to $17.2 million as compared to $2.4 million in the prior
year. This increase is primarily due to a $15.0 million lease liability recorded in connection right-of-use asset from the application of
ASU No. 2016, “Leases™ (Topic 842).

Stockholders® Equity

Total stockholders” equity increased $1 1.6 million to $195.9 million at December 31, 2019, an increase of approximately 6.3%.
This increase 1s primarily attributable to net income, net of cash dividends paid of $8.9 million, $1.3 million received from the exercise
of stock options and a $1.1 million increase in the fair value of the available-for-sale investment securities,

Other Services

To further attract and retain customer relationships, we provide a standard array of additional comnmmumty banking services,
which include the following:

Money orders [nreet deposit Automated teller machines
Cashier’s checks Sale deposit boxes On-line banking
Wire transfers Night depository Remote deposit caplure

EE and I U.S. savings bonds redemption Bank-by-mail
Debit cards

Automated telephone banking

We also ofler, on a himited basis, payroll-related services and credit card and merchant eredit card processing through third
partics hereby we do not undertake eredit or raud nisk.

Internet Banking

We advertise but do not actively solicit new deposits or loans through our website. We wtilize a qualilied and experienced
internet service provider to furnish the following types of customer account services:

Full on-line statements Transaction histories

On-line bill payment Transaction details

Account inquiries Accouni-to-account transfers
Fee Income

Fee income is a component of our non-interest income. By charging non-cusiomers fees for using our ATMs and charging

customers for banking services such as money orders, cashier’s checks, wire transfers and check orders, as well as other deposit and
loan-related fees, we eam fee income. Prudent fee income opportunities are sought to supplement net interest income, but may be
limited by our efforts to remain competitive and by regulatory consiraints.

Staffing

As ol December 31, 2009, we had 178 total employees and approximately 177 [ull-time equivalent employees,

Supervision and Regulation

General. We are extensively regulated under both federal and state law. These laws restrict permissible activities and

investments and require compliance with various consumer protection provisions applicable to lending, deposit, brokerage and fiduciary
activities. They also impose capital adequacy requirements and conditions to our ability to repurchase stock or to pay dividends. We
are also subject to comprehensive examination and supervision by the New Jersey Department of Banking and Insurance (the
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“Department”) and the FDIC. The Department and the FDIC have broad discretion to impose resirictions and limitations on our
operations. This supervisory framework could materially impact the conduct and profitability of our activities.

To the extent that the following information describes statutory and regulatory provisions, it is qualified in its entirety by
reference to the particular statutory and regulatory provisions. Proposals to change the laws and regulations governing the banking
indusiry are frequently raised at both the staie and federal levels. The likelihood and timing of any changes in these laws and regulations,
and the impact such changes may have on us, are difficult to ascertain. Changes in applicable laws and regulations, or in the manner
such laws or regulations are interpreted by regulatory agencies or courts, may have a material effect on our business, financial condition
and resulis of operations.

We are subject to vanous requirements and restrictions under federal and state law, mcluding requirements to maintain reserves

against deposits, restrictions on the types, amount and terms and conditions of loans that may be oniginated, and limits on the type of

other activities in which we may engage and the imvesiments we may make. Banking regulations permit us to engage in ceriain
additional activities, such as insurance sales and securities underwnting, through the formation of a “financial subsidiary.” In order to
be eligible to establish or acquire a financial subsidiary, we must be “well capitalized” and “well managed™ and may not have less than
a “sabisfactory™ CRA rating. AL this tme, we do nol engage in any activily which would require us 1o maintaim a linancial subsidiary.
We are also subject to lederal laws that limiat the amount of transactions between us and any nonbank allilates. Under these provisions,
transactions, such as a loan or investment, by us with any nonbank alfiliate are generally hmited 1o 10% ol our capital and surplus lor
all covered transactions with such alliliate or 20% percent of capital and surplus lor all covered transactions with all allihates. Any
extensions of credit, with Iimited exceptions, must be secured by cligible collateral in specilied amounts. We are also prohibited [rom
purchasing any “low quality™ assets from an alliliate, The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the “Dodd-
Frank Act™) significantly expands the coverage and scope of the hmitations on alliliate transactions within a banking organization,

Monetary Policy. Our business, [inancial condition and results of operations are and will be alTected by domestie ecconomic
conditions and the monetary and fiscal policies of the United States government and its agencies. The monetary policies of the Federal
Reserve System, (“Federal Reserve™) have a significant efTect upon the operating results of commercial banks such as ours. The Federal
Reserve has a major effect upon the levels of bank loans, investments and deposits through its open market operations in United States
government seeurities ransactions and through its regulation of, among other things, the discount rate on borrowings of member banks
and the reserve requirements against member banks’ deposits. It is not possible to predict the nature and impact of future changes in
monetary and fiscal policies.

Deposit Insurance. The Bank's deposits are msured up to applicable limits by the Deposit Insurance Fund of the FIXIC (“DIF”).
No institution may pay a dividend 1f in default of the federal deposit insurance assessment.

The DIF has a minimum designated reserve ratio (“DRR™) of 1.35% of the estimated insured deposits. The FDIC has adopted
a restoration plan should the DRR fall below 1.35%, and dividends are required to be paid to the industry should the DRR exceed 1.50%.
The assessment base for insured depository institutions is the average consolidated total assets during an assessment period less average
tangible equity capital during that assessment period.

The limit for federal deposit insurance is 250,000 and the cash limit of Securities Investor Protection Corporation protection
is also S250,000.

In addition to the assessment for deposit insurance, institutions are required to make payments on bonds 1ssued in the late 1980s
by the Financing Corporation to recapitalize a predecessor deposit insurance fund. In September 2019, the Bank was notified by the
FDIC that the Deposit Insurance Fund Reserve Ratio exceeded 1.35 percent and that the Bank would receive a one-time credit in the
amount of $270,000, which would offset the Bank’s quarterly deposit insurance premium payment,

The FDIC has authority o increase insurance assessments. A signilicant increase i insurance assessments would likely have
an adverse elfect on our operating expenses and results of operations. Management cannot predict what insurance assessment rates will
be in the future.

Deposit insurance may be terminated by the FDIC upon a finding that the institution has engaged in unsafe or unsound practices,
is in an unsate or unsound condition to continue operations or has violated any applicable law, regulation, rule, order or condition
imposed by the FDIC.

Dividend Restrictions. Under the New Jersey Banking Act ol 1948, as amended (the “Banking Act™), a hank may declare and

pay cash dividends only 1l alter payment of the dividend, the capital stock of the bank will be ummpaired and either the bank will have
a surplus ol not less than 30% ol s capital stock or the payment of the dividend will not reduce the bank’s surplus, The FIIC prohibits
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payment of cash dividends if, as a result, the institution would be undercapitalized, or the mstitution 15 in default with respect to any
assessment due to the FDIC,

Regulatory Capital Requiremenits. Federally insured, state-chartered non-member banks are required to maintain minimum
levels of regulatory capital. Current FDIC capital standards require these institutions to satisfy a common equity Tier 1 capital
requirement, a leverage capital requirement and a risk-based capital requirement.

The common equity Tier | capital component generally consists of retained eamings and common stock instruments and must
equal at least 4.5% of nisk-weighted assets,

Leverage capital, also known as “core” capital, must equal at least 3.0% of adjusted total assets for the most highly rated state-
chartered non-member banks. Core capital generally consists of common stockholders’ equity (including retamed earnings). An
additional cushion of at least 100 basis points is required for all other banking associations, which effectively increases their minimum
Tier | leverage ratio to 4.0% or more. Under the FDICs regulations, the most highly-rated banks are those that the FDIC determines
are strong banking organizations and are rated composite 1 under the Uniform Financial Institutions Rating System,

Under the risk-based capital requirements, “total” capital (a combination of core and “supplementary™ capital) must equal at
least 8.0% of “risk-weighted” assets. The FDIC also is authorized to impose capital requirements in excess of these standards on
individual institutions on a case-by-case basis.

Capital rules that became eflfective on January 1, 2015 miroduced a requirement for a common equity Tier 1 capital
conscrvalion buller of 2.5% ol nsk-weighted assets, which 15 i addition o the other mimimum risk-based capital standards deseribed
above, Institutions that do not maintain this required capital buller become subjeet o progressively more siningent limitations on the
percentage of carmings that can be paid out in dividends or used for stock repurchases and on the payment ol discretionary bonusces o
senior exeeulive management, The capital bulTer requirement was phased in over lour years, and became lully phased-in on January 1,
2019, A January 1, 2019 and 2020, the Bank met all capital adequacy requirements on a [ully phased-in basis,

For capital adequacy

purposes To be well capitalized
{including capital buffer under prompt corrective
Actual regquirement) action provisions

{Dollars in thousands) Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
December 31, 2019:

Total capital (to risk-weighted assets) § 194,675 15.11%  $135294 = 10.50% 5 128,852 = 10.00%

Tier | capital (to risk-weighted assets) 5 182,118 14.13% 3 109,524 = 8.50% 5 103,082 z 8.00%

Common equity tier 1 capital (to nsk-

weighted assets) $182,118 14.13% 590,196 = 7.00% § 83,754 = 6.50%

Tier 1 leverage capital (1o average

assels) $ 182,118 12.89% SO9LEI0 =z 06.50% $ 70,623 z 5.00%
December 31, 2018:

Total capital (to risk-weighted assets) § 196,092 17.37%  $111,506 = 9.8E% 5112918 = 10.00%

Tier 1 capital {to risk-weighted assets) 5 184,148  16.31% 389923 = T.BE% $ 90,334 2 8.00%

Common equity tier 1 capital (1o risk-

weighted assets) 5 184,148 16.31% 5 71,985 = 638% $ 73,396 = 6.50%
Ther 1 leverage capital (Lo average
asscels) 5 184,148 14.89% 5 72,640 = 5.HEY $ 61,821 = 5.00%

In determining compliance with the risk-based capital requirement, a banking organization is allowed to include both core
capital and supplementary capital in its total capital, provided that the amount of supplementary capital included does not exceed the
bank’s core capital. Supplementary capital generally consists of general allowances for loan losses up to a maximum of 1.25% of risk-
weighted assets, together with certain other items. In determining the required amount of risk-based capital, total assets, including certain
off-balance sheet items, are multiplied by a risk-weight based on the risks inherent in the type of assets. At December 31, 2019, the
Bank exceeded all its regulatory capital requirements.

17



The Bank of Princeton

Any banking organization that fails any of the capital requirements is subject to possible enforcement action by the FDIC. Such
action could include a capital directive, a cease and desist order, civil money penalties, the establishment of resirictions on the
nstitution’s operations, termination of federal deposit insurance and the appointment of a conservator or receiver. The FDICs capital
regulations provide that such actions, through enforcement proceedings or otherwise, could require one or more of a variety of corrective
actions,

Prompt Corrective Action. In addition to the required minimum capital levels deseribed above, federal law establishes a system
of “prompt comrective actions” that federal banking agencies are required io take, or have discretion to take, based upon the capital
category into which a federally-regulaied depository institution falls.  Regulations set forth detailed procedures and criteria for
implementing prompt corrective action in the case of any institution which is not adequately capitalized. The following table shows the
amount of capital associated with the different capital categories set forth in the prompt corrective action regulations.

Total Tier 1 Common Equity Tier 1
Risk-Based Risk-Bascd Tier 1 Leverage
Capital Category Capital Capital Capital Capital
Well capitalized 10% or more 8% or more 6.5% or more 5% or more
Adequately capitalized 8% or more 6% or more 4.5% or more 4% or more
Undercapitalized Less than 8% Less than 6% Less than 4.5% Less than 4%
Significantly undercapitalized Less than 6% Less than 4% Less than 3% Less than 3%

In addition, a banking organization is “critically undercapitalized™ il 1t has a ratio ol tangible equity Lo wotal assets that is equal
Lo or less than 2.0%. Under specified circumstances, a federal banking agency may reclassily a well-capitalized istitution as adequately
capitalized and may require an adequately capitalized nstitution or an undercapitalized institution 1o comply with supervisory actions
as 110 were in the next lower category {except that the FDIC may not reclassily a sigmflicantly undercapitalized nstitution as critically
undercapitalized).

A banking organization generally must file a written capital restoration plan which meets specified requirements within 45
days of the date that the institution receives notice or is deemed to have notice that it is undercapitalized, significantly undercapitalized
or critically undercapitalized. A federal banking agency must provide the institution with written notice of approval or disapproval
within 60 days afier receiving a capital restoration plan, subject to extensions by the agency. A hanking organization which is required
to submit a capital restoration plan must concurrently submit a performance guaranty by each company that controls the institution. In
addition, undercapitalized organizations are subject to various regulaiory restrictions, and the appropriate federal banking agency also
may take any number of discretionary supervisory actions. At December 31, 2019, the Bank was not subject to the above mentioned
restrictions.

Communily Reinvestment Act. The Community Reinvestment Act ("CRA™) requires that banks meet the credit needs of all
of their assessment area, as established for these purposes in accordance with applicable regulations based principally on the location of
branch offices, including those of low-income areas and borrowers. The CRA also requires that the FDIC assess all financial institutions
that it regulates to determine whether these institutions are meeting the credit needs of the community they serve. Under the CRA,
nstitutions are assigned a rating of “outstanding,” “satisfactory,” “needs to improve™ or “unsatisfactory.” Our record in meeting the
requirements of the CRA 15 made publicly available and 1s taken into consideration in connection with any applications with federal
regulators to engage in certain activities, including approval of a branch or other deposit facility, mergers and acquisitions, office
relocations, or expansions into non-banking activities. As of December 31, 2019, we maintained a “satisfactory”™ CRA rating. The
federal banking regulators recently announced extensive proposed changes to the regulations under CRA, but no final rules have yet
been adopted. We have not vet examined the proposed changes, but we do not believe that they will matenally affect the operation of
the Bank if they are adopted.

Doidd-Frank Act. The Dodd-Frank Act became law on July 21, 20010, The Dodd-Frank Act implemented lar-reaching changes
across the Nnancial regulatory landscape. Among other things, the Dodd-Frank Act ereated the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau
(the “CFPB™), which is an independent bureau within the Federal Reserve System with broad authority to regulate the consumer linance
industry, including regulated Mnancial institutions such as us, as well as non-banks and others who are involved in the consumer linance
industry. The CFPB has exclusive authority through formal rulemaking, as well as through the issuance of orders, policy statements,
guidance and enforcement actions w admimster and enforee federal consumer fnancial protection laws, to oversee non-federally
regulated entities, to prevent practices that the CFPB deems unfair, deceptive or abusive. While the CFPB has these exiensive powers
to interpret, admimsier and enforce federal consumer financial protection laws, the Dodd-Frank Act provides that the FDIC continues
o have examination and enforcement powers over us on matters otherwise [ollowing within the CFPB’s jurisdiction because we have
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less than 510 billion in assets. The Dodd-Frank Act also gives state attorneys general the ability to enforce federal consumer protection
laws,

Federal Home Loan Bank Membership. We are a member of the FHLB-NY . Each member of the FHLB-NY is required to
mainiain a minimum invesiment in capital stock of the FHLB-NY. The Board of Directors of the FHLB-NY can increase the minimum
investment requirements in the event it has concluded that additional capital is required 1o allow it to meet its own regulatory capiial
requirements. Any increase in the minimum investment requirements outside of specified ranges requires the approval of the Federal
Housing Finance Agency. Because the extent of any obligation o increase our invesiment in the FHLB-NY depends entirely upon the
occurrence of a future event, potential payments to the FHLB-NY are not determinable.

Additionally, in the event that we fail, the night of the FHLE-NY to seek repayment of funds loaned to us will take prionity
over certain other creditors.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Aet. As a public company, the Bank is subject to the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 which addresses, among
other 1ssues, corporate governance, auditing and accounting, exceutive compensation, and enhanced and tmely disclosure of corporale
nlormation. As directed by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, our principal executive oflicer and prineipal [inancial olficer are required 1o certily
that our guarterly and annual reports do not contain any untrue statement of a material fact. The rules adopied by the SEC under the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act require these officers 1o certily that they are responsible for establishing, maintaming and regularly evaluating the
effectiveness of our internal control over finaneial reporting; they have made certain disclosures o our auditors and the audit commitiee
ol the Board of Directors about our internal control over linancial reporting; and they have included information in our quarterly and
annual reports about their evaluation and whether there have been changes i our internal control over linancial reporting or in other
lactors that could materially affect internal control over linancial reporting.

Loans to One Borrower. New Jersey banking law limits the total loans and extensions of credit by a bank to one borrower at
one time to 15% of the capital funds of the bank, or up to 25% of the capital funds of the bank if the additional 10% is fully secured by
collateral having a market value (as determined by reliable and continuously available price quotations) at least equal to the amount of
the loans and extensions of credit over the 15% limit. At December 31, 2019, the Bank’s lending limit to one borrower under regulatory
guidelines was $29.2 million, but our Board of Directors has set an internal lending limit of approximately 75.0% of legal lending limit
or 521.9 million.

Concentration and Risk Guidance. The federal banking regulatory agencies promulgated joint interagency guidance regarding
material direct and indirect asset and funding concentrations. The guidance defines a concentration as any of the following: (1) asset
concentrations of 25% or more of Total Capital (loan related) or Tier 1 Capital (non-loan related) by individual borrower, small
mterrelated group of individuals, single repayment source or individual project; (i1) asset concentrations of 100% or more of Total
Capital (loan related) or Tier 1 Capital (non-loan related) by industry, product line, type of collateral, or short-term obligations of one
financial institution or affiliated group; (i11) funding concentrations from a single source representing 10% or more of Total Assets; or
{1v) potentially volatile funding sources that when combined represent 25% or more of Total Assets (these sources may include brokered,
large, high-rate, uninsured, internet-listing-service deposits, Federal funds purchased or other potentially volatile deposits or
borrowings). If a concentration is present, management must employ heightened risk management practices including board and
management oversight and strategic planning, development of underwriting standards, risk assessment and monitoring through market
analysis and stress testing, third party review and increasing capital requirements. The Bank adheres to the practices recommended in
this guidance.

Economic Growth, Regulatory Relief, and Consumer Protection Aci. The Economic Growth, Regulatory Relief, and
Consumer Protection Act (the "EGRR&ECPA™), which was designed to ease certain restrictions imposed by the Dodd-Frank Act, was
enacted imto law on May 24, 2018, Most of the changes made by the EGRR&CPA can be grouped into five general areas: morigage
lending; certain regulatory relief for “community” banks; enhanced consumer protections in specific areas, including subjecting credit
reporting agencies to additional requirements; certain regulatory relief for large financial instimtions, including increasing the threshold
at which instimtions are classified systemically important financial institutions (from $50 billion to $250 billion) and therefore subject
to stricter oversight, and revising the rules for larger institution stress testing; and certain changes to federal securities regulations
designed to promote capital formation. Some of the key provisions of the EGRR&CTA as it relates to community banks include, but
are not limited to: (i) designating mortgages held in porttolio as “qualified mortgages™ for banks with less than $10 billion in assets,
subject to certain documentation and product limitations; (ii) exempting banks with less than 510 billion in assets from Volcker Rule
requirements relating to proprietary trading; (i) simplifying capital caleulations for banks with less than 310 billion in assets by
requiring lederal banking agencies o establish a community bank leverage ratio of tangible equity o average consolidated asscts nol
less than 8% or more than 102 and provide that banks that mamntain tangible cquity in excess ol such ratio will be deemed 1o be in
complhance with risk-based capital and leverage requirements; (1v) assisting smaller banks with obtaining stable [unding by providing
an exceplion for reciprocal deposits [rom FDIC restrictions on acceplance of brokered deposits; (v) rmsing the chgibility for use of
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short-form Call Reports from 51 billion to 55 billion in assets; and (vi) clanfying definitions pertaining to high volatlity commercial
real estate loans (HVCRE), which require higher capital allocations, so that only loans with increased nisk are subject to higher nisk
weightings.

Section 201 of the EGRR&CPA directed the federal banking agencies to develop a community bank leverage ratio (“CBLR™)
of not less than 8% and not more than 10% for qualifying community banks and bank holding companies with total consolidated assets
of less than S10 billion. Qualifying community banking organizations that exceed the CBLR level established by the agencies, and that
elect to be covered by the CBLR framework, will be considered to have met: (i) the generally applicable leverage and risk-based capiial
requirements under the banking agencies” capital rules; (i1) the capital ratio requiremenis necessary to be considered “well capitalized”
under the banking agencies” prompt corrective action framework in the case of insured depository institutions; and (iii) any other
applicable capiial or leverage requirements.

On September 17, 2019, the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency, the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve Board,
and the FDIC adopted a rule to implement the provisions of Section 201 of the EGRR&CPA. Under the rule, a qualifying community
banking organization would be defined as a deposit institution or depository institution holding company with less than 510 billion in
assels and specified lhimited amounts of ofl-balance sheet exposures, trading assets and liabilities, mortgage servicing assets, and certain
temporary difference deflerred ax assets. A qualifying community banking organization would be permitted 1o clect the CBLR
framework 1 its CBLR 15 greater than 9%, The rule also addresses opling in and opting out of the CBLR framework by a community
banking organization, the treatment of a community banking organization that falls below the CBLR requirements, and the effect of
various CBLE levels for purposes of the prompt corrective action categories applicable to insured depository institutions.  Advanced
approaches banking organizations (generally, institutions with $250 billion or more in consolidated assets) are not eligible o use the
CBLR framework.

The Bank continues to analyze the changes implemented by the EGRR&ECPA, including the CBLR ramework included in the
recently adopted rule, and lurther rulemaking from lederal banking regulators, but, at this time, does not behieve that such changes will
materially impact the Bank’s business, operations, or lnancial results,

Changes in New Jersey Tax Laws. On July 1, 2018, New Jersey Governor Phil Murphy signed into law changes 1o the
corporate business tax laws. This legislation required a combined group to file combined returns for tax years beginning in 2019 and
thereafter. [Towever, due to technical issues and inconsistencies with existing tax law, it was determined that the tax law change did not
have an impact on deferred taxes. In December 2019, the State of New Jersey issued a clarifying technical bulletin related to the impact

of the 2018 tax legislation. This technical bulletin provided clarification to the combined income tax reporting for certain members of

a unitary business group. Accordingly, this required a revaluation of some of the Bank's deferred tax assets. In the 4th quarter of 2019,
the Bank recorded a state deferred tax benefit in the amount of approximately $1 17,000,

Other Laws and Regulations. We are subject to a vaniety of laws and regulations which are not hmited to banking
organizations. For example, in lending to commercial and consumer borrowers, and in owning and operating our own property, we are
subject to regulations and potential habilities under state and federal environmental laws.

We are heavily regulated by regulatory agencies at the federal and state levels. As a result of events in the financial markets
and the economy in recent years, we, like most of our competitors, have faced and expect to continue to face increased regulation and
regulatory and political scrutiny, which creates significant uncertainty for us and the financial services industry in general.

Future Legislation and Regulation. Fegulators have increased their focus on the regulation of the financial services industry
in recent years. Proposals that could substanually intensify the regulation of the financial services indusiry have been and are expected
to continue to be introduced in the U.S. Congress, in state legislatures and by applicable regulatory authorities. These proposals may
change banking statutes and regulation and our operating environment in substantial and unpredictable ways. 1 enacted, these proposals
could increase or decrease the cost of doing business, limit or expand permissible activities or affect the competitive balance among
banks. savings associations, credit unions, and other financial instimtions. We cannot predict whether any of these proposals will be
enacted and, it enacted, the eftects that such laws or any implementing regulations would have on our business, financial condition and
results of operations.

20

The Bank of Princeton

Item 1A, Risk Factors

In analvzing whether to make or to continue an investment in owr conmon stock, investors should consider, among other factors, the
Jollowing risk factors.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR BUSINESS

Competition from other financial institutions in originating loans and attracting deposits may adversely affect our profitability.

We face substantal competition in originating loans. This competition comes principally from other banks, savings mstitutions,
mortgage banking companies, credit unions and other lenders in our market area, which 1s generally an area within an approximate 100
mile radius of Princeton and dominated by large statewide, regional and interstate banking institutions. Many of our competitors enjoy
advantages, such as greater financial resources and higher lending limits, a wider geographic presence, more accessible branch office
locations, the ability to offer a wider array of services or more favorable pricing alternatives, as well as lower origination and operating
costs. This competition could reduce our net income by decreasing the number and size of loans that we originate and the interest rates
we may charge on these loans.

These competitors may offer higher interest rates on deposits than we do, which could decrease the deposits that we atiract or
require us lo inerease our inlerest rates on deposil accounts o retain existing deposits or attract new deposits. Increased deposit
competition could adversely affect our ability 1o generate the funds necessary [or lending operations and may increase our cost of [unds.
Additionally, these competitors may offer lower interest rates on loans than we do, which could decrease the amount of loans that we
altract or require us o decrease our interest rates on loans o attract new loans. Inereased loan competition could adversely aflect our
nel inlerest margin.

We also compete with non-bank providers of lnancial services, such as brokerage s, consumer finance companies,
insurance companies and governmental organizations which may offer more favorable terms. Some of our non-bank competitors are
not subject to the same extensive regulations that govern our operations. As a resuli, such non-bank competitors may have advantages
over us in providing certain products and services. This competition may reduce or limit our margins on banking services, reduce our
market share and adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

Our growih has substantially increased our expenses and impacted our results of operations.

Although we believe that our growth-oriented business strategy will support our long-term profitability and franchise value,
the expense associated with our growth, including compensation expense for the employees needed to support this growth and leasehold
and other expenses associated with our locations, has and may continue to negatively affect our resulis. In addition, in order for our
existing branches to coniribute to our long-term profitability, we will need to be successful in attracting and maintaining cost-efficient
deposits at these locations. In order to successfully manage our growth, we need to effectively execute policies, procedures and controls
to maintain our credit quality and oversee our operations. We can provide no assurance that we will be successful in this strategy.

Our growth-oriented husiness strafegy conld be adversely affected if we are not able to attract and retain skilled employees.

We may not be able to successfully manage our business as a result of the strain on our management and operations that may
result from growth. Our ability to manage growth will depend upon our ability to continue to attract, hire and retain skilled employees,
and we may need to adopt additional equity plans in order to do so. Our success will also depend on the ability of our officers and key
employees to continue o implement and improve our operational and other systems, to manage multiple, concurrent customer
relationships and to hire, train and manage our employees.

If deposit levels are not sufficient, it may be more expensive fo fund lean originations.

Our deposits have been our primary [unding source, In eurrent market conditions, depositors may choose o redeploy their
funds into the stock market or other investment alternatives, regardless of our elTort 1o retain such depositors, [ this oceurs, 11 would
hamper our ability 1o grow deposits and could result in a net outllow of deposits. We will continue 1o focus on deposit growth, which
we use o [und loan ongimations. However, il we are unable to sulliciently inerease our deposit balances, we may be required Lo merease
our use ol alternative sources of lunding, including Federal Home Loan Bank advances, or o increase our deposil rates in order Lo atlract
additional deposits, cach ol which would merease our cost ol [unds,

There is no guaranty that the Bank will be able to continne to pay a dividend or, if continued, will be able to pay a dividend at the
current rate.
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The Board of Directors of the Bank determines at its discretion 1f; when and the amount of dividends that may be paid on the
common stock. In making such determination, the Board of Directors takes into account various factors including economic conditions,
earnings, liquidity needs, the financial condition of the Bank, applicable state law, regulatory requirements and other factors deemed
relevant by the Board of Directors. Although the Bank just recently commenced paying a quarterly dividend on its common stock in
November 2018, there is no guaranty that such dividends will continue to be paid in the future or at what rate.

Our loan portfolio has a significant concentration in commercial real estate and commercial construction loans.

Our loan portfolio 1s made up largely of commercial real estate loans and commercial construction loans. At December 31,
2019, we had approximately $853.9 million of commercial real estate loans, which represented 71.8% of our total loan portfolio. Our
commercial real estate loans include loans secured by owner-occupied and non-owner-occupied tenanted properties for commercial uses
and mult-family loans. The portfolio also consists of construction loans of approximately S189 8 million, or 15.9%, of our total loan
portfolio as of December 31, 2019, In addition, we make both secured and unsecured commercial and indusirial loans. At December
31, 2019, we had $43.5 million of commercial and indusirial loans, which represented 3.7% ol our total loan portlolio.

Commercial real estate loans generally expose a lender o a higher degree of credit risk of nonpayment and loss than other
loans because ol several factors, including dependence on the successful operation ol a business or a project for repayment, the collateral
sccuring these loans may not be sold as casily as for other loans, and loan terms may include a balloon payment rather than full
amortization over the loan term. In addition, commercial real estate loans typically involve larger loan balances to single borrowers or
groups ol related borrowers. Underwriting and portfolio management activities cannot completely eliminate all risks related 1o these
loans. Any significant [ailure 1o pay on time by our customers or a significant default by our customers could materially and adversely
aflect us.

Loans secured by owner-occupied real estate are reliant on the underlying operating businesses to provide cash flow to meet
debt service obligations, and as a result they are more susceptible to the general impact on the economic environment affecting those
operating companies as well as the real estate market. In general, construction and land lending involves additional risks because of the
inherent difficulty in estimating a property's value both before and at completion of the project as well as the estimated cost of the
project and the time needed to sell the property at completion. Construction costs may exceed original estimates as a result of increased
materials, labor or other costs. Because of the uncertainties inherent in estimating construction costs, as well as the market value of the
completed project and the effects of governmental regulation on real property, it is relatively difficult 1o evaluate accurately the total
funds required to complete a project and the related loan-to-value ratio. Changes in the demand, such as for new housing and higher
than anticipated building costs may cause actual resulis to vary significantly from those estimated. For these reasons, this type of lending
also typically involves higher loan principal amounts and is ofien concentrated with a small number of builders. A downturn in housing,
or the real estate market, could increase loan delinquencies, defaulis and foreclosures, and significantly impair the value of our collateral
and our ability to sell the collateral upon foreclosure. Some of our builders have more than one loan outstanding with us and also have
residential mortgage loans for rental properties with us. Consequently, an adverse development with respect to one loan or one credit
relationship can expose us to a significantly greater risk of loss.

In addition, no payment from the borrower is required during the term of most of our construction loans since the accumulated
interest 15 added to the principal of the loan through an interest reserve. As a result, construction loans ofien mvolve the disbursement
of substantial funds with repayment dependent on the success of the ulimate project and the ability of the borrower 1o sell or lease the
property or refinance the indebtedness, rather than the ability of the borrower or guarantor to repay principal and interest. If the appraisal
of the value of the completed project proves to be overstated, we may have inadequate securnity for the repayment of the loan upon
completion of construction of the project and may incur a loss. Because construction loans require active momitoring of the building
process, including cost comparisons and on-site inspections, these loans are more difficult and costher to monitor. Increases in market
rates of interest may have a more pronounced effect on construction loans by rapidly increasing the end-purchasers’ borrowing costs,
thereby reducing the overall demand for the project. Properties under construction are often difficult to sell and typically must be
completed i order to be successlully sold which also comphicates the process ol working outl problem construction loans, This may
require us o advance addinional Tunds and/or contract with another builder to complete construction, Further, in the case ol speculative
construction loans, there 1s added nisk associated with dentilfying an end-purchaser for the limished project which poses a greater
potential nsk to us than construction loans o mdividuals on their personal residences. Loans on land under development or held for
future construction as well as 1ot loans made o individuals for the luture construction of a residence also pose addional risk because
ol the lack of mcome being produced by the property and the potential ilhiquid nature of the collateral. These nsks can also be
signilicantly impacted by supply and demand conditions,

We can give you no assurance that our cconomy will continue to grow, Many lactors, mcluding continuing global cconomic
dilficulties could reduce or halt growth in our local cconomy and real estate market. Accordingly, it may be more difficult for commercial
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real estate borrowers to repay their loans in a timely manner m the current economic chimate, as commercial real estate borrowers’
ability to repay their loans frequently depends on the successful development of their properties. The deterioration of one or a few of
our commercial real estate loans could cause a material increase in our level of nonperforming loans, which would result in a loss of
revenue from these loans and could result in an increase in the provision for loan losses and/or an increase in charge offs, all of which
could have a material adverse impact on our net imcome. We also may incur losses on commercial real estate loans due to declines in
occupancy rates and rental rates, which may decrease property values and may decrease the likelithood that a borrower may find
permanent financing alternatives. Any weakening of the commercial real estate market may increase the likelihood of default on these
loans, which could negatively impact our loan portfolio’s performance and asset quality. If we are required to liquidate the collateral
securing a loan to satisfy the debt during a period of reduced real estate values, we could incur material losses. Any of these events could
nerease our costs, require management time and attention, and materially and adversely affect us.

Federal banking agencies have issued guidance regarding high concentrations of commercial real estate loans within bank loan
portfolios. The guidance requires financial institutions that exceed certain levels of commercial real estate lending compared with their
total capital to maintain heightened risk management practices that address the following key elements: board and management oversight
and strategic planning, portfolio management, development ol underwriting standards, nisk assessment and monitoring through market
analysis and stress testing, and maintenance of inereased capital levels as needed to support the level of commercial real estate lending.
IT'there 1s any deterioration in our commercial real estate portfolio or il our regulators conclude that we have not implemented appropriate
risk management practices, it could adversely afTeet our business, and could resull in the requirement to maintain increased capital levels
or restrict our ability to originate new loans secured by commercial real estate. We can provide no assurance that capital would be
available at that time.

The nature of our commercial loan portfolio may expose us to increased lending risks.

Giiven the recent growth in our loan portfolio, a portion of our commercial loans are unseasoned, meaning that they were
originated relatively recently. Our limited tme with these loans does not provide us with a significant payment history pattern with
which to judge future collectability. As a result, it may be difficult to predict the future performance of our loan poritolio. These loans
may have delinquency or charge off levels above our expectations, which could negatively affect our performance.

The small to mid-sized businesses that we lend fo may have fewer resources to weather a doewnturn in the econemy, which may
impair a barrower’s ability to repay a loan to us that could materially harm our operating resulfs.

We target our business development and marketing strategy primarily to serve the banking and financial services needs ol small
to mid-sized businesses. These small o mid-sized businesses frequently have smaller market share than their competition, may be more
vulnerable to economic downturns, often need substantial additional capital to expand or compete and may experience significant
volatility in operating results. Any one or more of these factors may impair the borrower’s ability to repay a loan. In addition, the success
of a small to midsized business ofien depends on the management talents and efforis of one or two persons or a small group of persons,
and the death, disability or resignation of one or more of these persons could have a matenial adverse impact on the business and its
ability to repay a loan. Economic downturms and other events that negatively impact our market areas could cause us to incur substantial
credit losses that could negatively affect our results of operations and financial condition.

Qur lending limit may restrict our growth.

We are limited in the amount we can loan to a single borrower by the amount of our capital. Generally, under current law, we
may lend up to 15% of our unimpaired capital and surplus, including capital notes, to any one borrower. Based upon our current capital
levels, the amount we may lend is less than that of many of our larger competitors and may discourage potential borrowers who have
credit needs m excess of our lending limit from doing business with us. We may accommodate larger loans by selling participations in
those loans to other financial institutions, but this ability may not always be available.

We must maintain and follow high underwriting standards to grow safely.

Our ability o grow our assels salely depends on mantmming disciplined and prudent underwriting standards and ensuring that
our relationship managers and lending personnel [ollow those standards, The weakening of these standards [or any reason, such as 1o
seck higher yielding loans, or a lack of discipline or diligence by our employees in underaniting and monitoring loans, may resull in
loan defaulis, foreclosures and additional charge olls and may necessitate that we sigmlicantly increase our allowance lor loan losses,
As a resull, our business, resulls ol operations, hnancial condition or prospects could be adversely allected.
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Our allowance for loan losses may not be adequate to cover actwal losses.

Like all financial institutions, we maintain an allowance for loan losses to provide for loan defaults and nonperformance, The
process for determining the amount of the allowance 15 critical to our financial results and condition. It requires difficult, subjective and
complex judgments about external factors, including the impact of national and regional economic conditions on the ability of our
borrowers to repay their loans. If our judgment proves to be incorrect, our allowance for loan losses may not be sufficient to cover losses
inherent in our loan portfolio. Further, state and federal regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process, review our
loans and allowance for loan losses and may require an increase in our allowance for loan losses. Although we believe that our allowance
for loan losses at December 31, 2019 is adequate to cover known and probable incurred losses included in the portfolio, we cannot
provide assurances that we will not further imcrease the allowance for loan losses or that our regulators will not require us 1o increase
this allowance. Either of these occurrences could adversely affect our earnings.

We are a community bank and our ability to maintain our reputation is critical to the sucecess of our business and the failure to do
so may materially adversely affect our performance.

We are a community bank, and our reputation 1s one ol the most valuable components of our business. As such, we sirive 1o
conduct our business in a manner that enhances our reputation. This 1s done, in part, by reeruiting, hiring and retaining employees who
share our core values ol being an integral part of the communities we serve, delivering superior service 1o our customers and caring
about our customers and associates. 1§ our reputation is negatively aflected, by the actions of our employees or otherwise, our business
and, therelore, our operating results may be matenally adversely alfected. Additionally, damage o our reputation could undermine the
conflidence of our current and potential elients in our ability to provide linancial services. Such damage could also impair the confidence
ol our counterparties and business pariners, and ultimately alTect our ability to efTect transactions. Maintenance ol our reputation depends
nol only on our suceess in maintaining our service-focused culture and controlling and mitigating the various risks deseribed herein, but
also on our success in identifying and appropriately addressing issues that may arise in arcas such as potential conflicts of interest, anti-
money laundering, client personal information and privacy issues, record-keeping, regulatory investigations and any litigation that may
arise from the failure or perceived failure of us to comply with legal and regulatory requirements. Maintaining our reputation also
depends on our ability to successfully prevent third-parties from infringing on the “The Bank of Princeton” brand and associated
trademarks. Defense of our reputation, including through litigation, could result in costs adversely atfecting our business, results of
operations, financial condition or prospects.

Qur internal control systems could fail 1o detect certain events.

We are subject to certain operational risks, including but not limited to data processing system failures and errors and customer
or employee fraud. We maintain a system ol internal controls to mitigaie such occurrences and maintain insurance coverage for such
risks. However, should such an event occur that is not prevenied or detecied by our internal controls, is uninsured or in excess of
applicable insurance limits, it could have a significant adverse effect on our business, resulis of operations, financial condition or
prospects.

If we cannot favorably assess the effectiveness of our internal conirols over financial reporting or if our independent registered
public accounting firm is unable to provide an wngualified attestation report on our internal confrols, we may be subject to
additional regulatory scrutiny.

Since January 1, 2016, our total assets have exceeded $1.0 billion. Therefore, we are subject to further reporting requirements
under the rules of the FDIC as of and for the fiscal vear ended December 31, 2019, Pursuant to these miles, management is required to
prepare a report that contains an assessment by management of the effectiveness of our imternal control structure and procedures for
financial reporting (including the Call Report that is submitied to the FIJC) as of the end of such fiscal year. Our independent registered
public accounting firm is also required to examine, attest to and report on the assessment of our management concerning the effectiveness
of our internal control structure and procedures for financial reporting. The rules that must be met for management to assess our internal
controls over linancial reporting are complex and require sigmificant documentation and testing and possible remediation of mternal
control weaknesses. The ellort to comply with regulatory requirements relating o internal controls will ikely cause us lo incur mcreased
expenses and will cause a diversion ol management’s time and other internal resources. We also may encounter problems or delays in
completing the implementation of any changes necessary 1o make a lavorable assessment of our intemal control over lnancial reporting,
In addition, in connection with the attestation process, we may encounter problems or delays in completing the implementation of any
requested improvements or receiving a favorable attestation [rom our independent registered public accounting lirm. 11 we cannot
lavorably assess the ellectiveness ol our internal control over linancial reporting, or il our independent registered public accounting firm
15 unable o provide an ungualified attestation report on our internal controls, investor conlidence and the price of our common stock
could be adversely allected and we may be subject 1o additional regulatlory serutiny,
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We rely on third parties to provide key components of our business infrastructure, and a failure of these parties to perform for any
reason could disrupt our operafions,

Third parties provide key components of our business mfrastructure such as data processing, Internet connections, network
access, core application processing, statement production and account analysis. Our business depends on the successful and
uninterrupted functioning of our information technology and telecommunications systems and third- party servicers. The failure of these
systems, or the termination of a third-party software license or service agreement on which any of these systems 1s based, could interrupt
our operations. Because our information technology and telecommunications systems interface with and depend on third-party systems,
we could experience service denials if demand for such services exceeds capacity or such third-party systems fail or experience
mterruptions. Replacing vendors or addressing other issues with our third-party service providers could entail significant delay and
expense. If we are unable to efficiently replace ineffective service providers, or if we experience a significant, sustained or repeated,
system failure or service denial, it could compromise our ability to operate effectively, damage our reputation, result in a loss of customer
business, and subject us to additional regulatory scrutiny and possible financial hability, any of which could have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and future prospects.

RISK RELATED TO THE BANKING INDUSTRY GENERALLY

The FASE has recently issued an accounting standard update that will result in a significant change in how we recognize credit
losses and may have a material impact on our financial condition or results of operations.

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) issued an accounting standard update, “Financial
Instruments-Credit Losses ( Topie 326), Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments,” which replaces the current “incurred
loss™ model for recognizing credit losses with an “expected loss™ model referred to as the Current Expected Credit Loss (“CECL™)
model. Under the CECL model, banks will be required 1o present certain linancial assets carried at amortized cost, such as loans held
for investment and held-to-maturity debt securities, at the net amount expected to be collected. The measurement of expected credit
losses is to be based on information about past events, including historical experience, current conditions, and reasonable and supportable
forecasts that affect the collectability of the reported amount. This measurement will take place at the time the financial asset is first
added to the balance sheet and periodically thereafter. This ditfers significantly from the “incurred loss™ model required under current
generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAFP”), which delays recognition until it is probable a loss has been incurred. Accordingly,
we expect that the adoption of the CECL model will materially afTeet how we determine our allowance for loan losses, and could require
us to significantly increase our allowance. Moreover, the CECL model may create more volatility in the level of the allowance for loan
losses. If we are required to materially increase the level of its allowance for loan losses for any reason, such increase could adversely
affect our business, financial condition and resulis of operations.

The new CECL standard will become effective for the Bank for fiscal years beginning afier December 15, 2022 and for interim
periods within those fiscal years, We are evaluating the impact the CECL model will have on our accounting, but we expect to recognize
a one-time cumulative-effect adjustment to the allowance for loan losses as of the beginming of the first reporting peniod in which the
new standard 1s effective, consistent with regulatory expectations set forth in mteragency guidance issued at the end of 2016. We cannot
yet determine the magnitude of any such one-time cumulative adjustment or of the overall impact of the new standard on its financial
condition or results of operations,

The financial services indusiry is undergoing a period of great volatility and disrupfion.

Changes in interest rates, in the shape of the yield curve, or in valuations in the debt or equity markets or disruptions in the
liguidity or other functioning of financial markets, most of which have occurred, could directly impact us in one or more of the following
ways:

o MNetnterest income, the dilTerence between interest carned on mterest caming assels and interest paid on interest- beaning
hiabilities, represents a significant portion of our carnings. Both inereases and decreases in the inlerest rale environmenl may
reduce our prolits. We expect that we will continue o realize income [rom the spread between the mterest we cam on loans,
sccurities and other interest carming assels, and the mterest we pay on deposits, borrowings and other imterest-hearing liabilities,
The net interest spread is allected by the dilTerences between the maturity and repricing charactenstics ol our mlerest caming
assels and iterest-beaning labilities. Our interest carming assels may nol reprice as slowly or rapidly as our interest-bearing
liabilities.

#  The market value of our sccunties portfolio may decline and result in other than temporary impairment charges, The value ol
the securities in our portfolio s allected by [actors that impact the ULS, seeurities markets in general as well as specilic inancial
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sector factors and entities. Uncertainty in the market regarding the financial sector has at times negatively impacted the value
of securities within our portfolio. Further declines in these sectors may result in future other than temporary impairment charges.

e Asset quality may deteriorate as borrowers become unable to repay their loans,
Changes in interest rates may adversely affect our earnings and financial condition.

Our net income depends primarily upon our net interest income. The level of net interest income is primarily a function of the
average balance of our interest earning assets, the average balance of our interest-bearing liabilities, and the spread between the yield
on such assets and the cost of such habilities. These factors are influenced by both the pricing and mix of our interest eaming assets and
our interest-bearing liabilities which, in turn, are impacted by such external factors as the local economy, competition for loans and
deposits, the monetary policy of the Federal Open Market Commuttee of the Federal Reserve, and market interest rates.

A sustained increase in market interest rates could adversely affect our eamings if our cost of funds inereases more rapidly than
our yield on our interest carning assels and compresses our net interest margin. In addition, the economic value of equity could decline
ilinterest rates inerease. Different types ol assets and labilities may react differently, and at different times, o changes in market interest
rates. We expeet that we will periodically experience gaps in the interest rate sensitivities of our assets and liabilities. That means either
our interest-bearing Liabilities will be more sensitive o changes in market interest rates than our inlerest carming assels, or vice versa.
When interest-bearing labilities mature or re-price more quickly than interest carning assels, an increase in market rates ol interest could
reduce our nel interest income.

Likewise, when interest carming assels mature or re-price more gquickly than mterest bearing liabilities, falling interest rates
could reduce our net interest income. We are unable o prediet changes in marketl mterest rates, which are alfecied by many factors
beyond our control, including inflaton, dellation, recession, unemployment, money supply, domestic and international events and
changes in the United States and other (inaneial markets.

We also attempt to manage risk from changes in market interest rates, in part, by controlling the mix of interest rate sensitive
assets and liabilities. Ilowewver, interest rate risk management techniques are not exact. A rapid increase or decrease in interest rates
could adversely atfect our results of operations and financial performance.

We are subject to significant government regulation, which could affect our business, financial condition and results of
aperations.

We are subject to extensive governmenial supervision, regulation and control. These laws and regulations are subject to change
and may require substantial modifications to our operations or may cause us to incur substantial additional compliance costs. In addition,
future legislation and government policy could adversely affect the commercial banking industry and our operations. Such governing
laws can be anticipated to continue to be the subject of future modification. Our management cannot predict what effect any such future
modifications will have on our operations.

Changes to laws and regulation applicable to the financial industry, may impact the profitability of our business activities and
may change certain of our business practices, including the ability to offer new products, obtain financing, attract deposits, make loans,
and achieve satisfactory interest spreads, and could expose us to additional costs, including increased compliance costs. These changes
also may require us to mvest significant management atiention and resources to make any necessary changes to operations in order to
comply and could therefore also matenally and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

The federal and state laws and regulations applicable to our operations give regulatory authorities extensive discretion in
connection with their supervisory and enforcement responsibilities, and generally have been promulgated to protect depositors and the
Deposit Insurance Fund and not for the purpose ol protecting stockholders, Laws and regulations now allecting us may be changed at
any time, and the interpretation of such laws and regulations by bank regulatory authonities is also subject 1o change.

We can give no assurance that [uture changes in laws and regulations or changes i their mterpretation will not adversely alTect

our business, Legislative and regulatory changes may increase our cost of domg business or otherwise adversely allect us and create
competitive advantage [or non-bank competitors,
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We cannot predict how changes in technology will impact enr business; increased use of technology may expose us to service
inferrupiions.

The financial services market, including banking services, is increasingly affected by advances in technology, mcluding
developments in:

telecommunications;

data processing;

automation;

Internet banking, including mobile banking;
soctal media;

debit cards and so-called “smart cards™; and
remote deposit caplure,

Our ability to compete successlully in the future will depend, to a certain extent, on whether we can anticipate and respond o
technological changes. We olTer electronic banking services for our consumer and business customers including Internet banking, mobile
banking and clectronic bill payment, as well as banking by phone. We also offer ATM and debit cards, wire transfers, and ACH transfers.
The suceessful operation and further development of these and other new technologies will likely require additional capital invesiment
n the future. In addition, inereased use of electronie banking creates opportunities for interruptions in service which could expose us o
claims by customers or other third parties. We can provide no assurance that we will have sulficient resources or aceess o the necessary
technology to remain competitive in the luture.

We may be vulnerable to cyberattacks or other security breaches affecting our elecironic data and product delivery systems.

The financial services industry has experienced an increase in both the number and severity of reported cyberattacks aimed at
gaining unauthorized systems access as a way o misappropriate assets and sensitive information, corrupt and destroy data, or cause
operational disruptions. We are increasingly dependent on technology systems to mn our core operations and to be a delivery channel
to provide products and services to our customers. We also rely on the integrity and security of a variety of third-party processors,
payment, clearing and settlement systems, as well as the various participants involved in these systems, many of which have no direct
relationship with us. Failure by these participants or their systems to protect our customers’ transaction data may put us at risk for
possible losses due to fraud or operational disruption. In many cases, in order for these sysiems to function, they must be connected o
the Internet, directly or indirectly. These connections open our systems to potential attacks by third parties seeking o steal our data, our
customers” information or o disable our systems. A successful attack on our systems could adversely aflect our resulis of operations
by, among other things, harming our reputation among current and potential customers if their information is stolen, disrupting our
operations if our systems are impaired, the loss of assets which could be stolen in an atiack and the costs of remediating our sysiems
after an attack. Although we have securnity safeguards and take numerous steps to protect our systems {rom a potential attack, we can
provide no assurance that these measures will be successful in preventing intrusions into our systems. The occurrence of a breach of
security involving our customers could damage our reputation and result in a loss of customers and business, subject us to additional
regulatory scrutiny and could expose us to liigation and possible financial hability. Any of these events could have a matenial adverse
effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

The increasing wse of social media plaiforms presents new risks and challenges and the inability or failure to recognize, respond fo,
and effectively manage the accelerated impact of social media could materially adversely impact the Bank’s business.

There has been a marked increase in the use of social media platforms, including weblogs (blogs), social media websites, and
other forms of Intemet-based communications which allow individuals® access to a broad audience of consumers and other interested
persons. Social media practices in the banking industry are evolving, which creates uncertainty and risk of noncompliance with
regulations applicable 1o the Bank™s business, Consumers value readily availlable mlormation concerning businesses and their goods and
services and ollen act on such information without further investgation and without regard 1o 11s accuracy. Many social media platforms
immediately publish the content their subseribers and participants’ post, oflen without lilters or checks on accuracy of the content posted,
Information posted on such platforms at any tme may be adverse o the Bank™s mterests and/or may be inaccurate, The dissemination
ol mlormation online could harm the Bank’s business, prospects, lnancial condition, and results of operations, regardless ol the
inlormation’s accuracy. The harm may be immediate without alfording the Bank an opportunity for redress or correction,

(her nsks associated with the use of social media include improper disclosure of proprictary information, negalive commenls
about the Bank’s business, exposure ol personally identifiable mformation, lraud, oul-ol-date mlormation, and improper use by
employees, dircetors and customers, The inappropriate use ol social media by the Bank’s customers, direetors or employees could result
n negalive conscquences such as remediation costs including traming for employees, additional regulatory serutiny and possible
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regulatory penalties, htigation, or negative publicity that could damage the Bank's reputation adversely affecting customer or investor Leased or Date of Lease
confidence. Location Owned Expiration’

Uncertainty about the future of the London Interbank Offer Rate (LIBOR) may adversely affect our business and financial results. Corporate Headquarters and Branch Leased October 31, 2023

LIBOR meaningfully influences market interest rates around the globe. In July 2017, the Chiel Executive of the Umted
Kingdom Financial Conduct Authonity, which regulates LIBOR, announced its intent to stop persuading or compelling banks to submit
rates for the caleulation of LIBOR to the adminmistrator of LIBOR afier 2021, This announcement indicates that the continuation of
LIBOR as currently constructed 1s not guaranteed afier 2021. It 1s impossible to predict whether and to what extent banks will continue
to provide LIBOR submissions to the admimstrator of LIBOR, whether any additional reforms to LIBOR may be enacted in the United
Kingdom or elsewhere, and whether other rate or rate may become accepted alternatives to LIBOR.

In 2014, the FRB and the Federal Reserve Bank of New York convened the Altlernative Reference Rates Committee (“ARRC™)
to wentify best practices for alternative reference rates, identify best practices for contract robusiness, develop an adoption plan, and
create an implementation plan with metrics of success and a timeline. The ARRC accomplished its first set of objectives and has
identified the Secured Ovemight Financing Rate (“SOFR”) as the rate that represents best practice for use in certain new U.S. dollar
derivatives and other financial contracts. The ARRC also published it Paced Transition Plan, with specific steps and timelines designed
to encourage adoption of the SOFR. The ARRC was reconstituted in 2018 to help to ensure successtul implementation of the Paced
Transition Plan and serve as a forum to coordinate and track planning across cash and derivatives products and market participants
currently using LIBOR.

No assurance can be provided that the uncertainties around LIBOR or their resolution will not adversely attect the use, level
and volatility of LIBOR or other interest rates or the value of LIBOR-based securities or other securities or financial arrangements.
Further, the viability of SOFR as an alternative reference rate and the availability and acceptance of other alternative reference rates are
unclear and also may have adverse effects on market rates of interest and the values of securities and other financial arrangements.
These uncertainties, proposals and actions to resolve them, and their ultimate resolution also could negatively impact our funding costs,
loan and other asset values, asset-liability management strategies. and other aspects of our business and financial resulis.

We face risks related to health epidemics and other outhreaks, severe weather, power or telecommunications loss, and ferrorism
which could significanily disrupt our operations.

Business disruptions can occur due to forces beyond the Bank's control such as severe weather, power or telecommunications loss,
accidents, flooding, terrorism, health emergencies, the spread of infectious diseases or pandemics. Our business could be adversely
impacted by the effects of any of these evenis to the extent that they harm the local or national economy. Any of these events may also
impact our branches, our operations, our customers and / or our vendors, which may materially and adversely affect our business,
financial condition and resulis of operations. These business disruptions may include temporary closure of our branches and/or the
facilities of our customers or vendors and suspension of services, which may materially and adversely affect our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

Not applicable.

Item 2. Properties

We conduct our operations from our headquarters and branch located at 183 Bayard Lane, Princeton, New Jersey, an operations
center at 403 Wall Street, Princeton, New Jersey, and from 21 other branch locations in New Jersey and Pennsylvania. The following
table sets forth certain information regarding the Bank’s properties as of December 31, 2019
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183 Bayard Lane
Princeton, NJ

Operations Cenier
403 Wall Street
Princeton, NJ

Hamilion Branch
339 Roure 33
Hamilton, NJ

Pennington Branch
2 Route 31
Pennington, NJ

Chambers Streer Branch
21 Chambers Street
Princeton, N

Montgomery Branch
1185 Route 206 North
Princeton, NJ

Monroe Branch
| Rossmoor Drive
Monroe Township, NJ

Lambertville Branch
10-12 Bridge Street
Lambertville, NJ

Lawrenceville Branch
2999 Princeton Pike
Lawrenceville, NJ

Nassauw Street Branch
194 Massau Street
Princeton, NJ

New Brunswick Branch
| Spring Street, Suite 102
Mew Brunswick, NJ

Cream Ridge Branch
403 Rt 539
Cream Ridge, NJ

Chesterfield Branch

305 Bordentown-Chesterfield Road

Chesterfield, NJ

Bordentown Branch
335 Farnsworth Avemue
Bordentown, NI

Leased

Leased

leased

leased

Leased

Leased

Owned

Leased

Leased

Leased

Leased

Orwned

Orwned

March 1, 2026

Oetober 31, 2020

Apnl 30, 2022

December 31, 2021

April 30, 2020

July 31, 2020

N/A

November 30, 2020

November 30, 2021

March 31, 2022

October 28, 2028

N/A

N/A



The Bank of Princeton The Bank of Princeton

Browns Mills Branch Owned N/A PARTII

101 Pemberton Browns Mills Road

Browns Mills, NJ Item 5. Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
Deptford Branch Owned N/A Market Information

1893 Hurftville Road

Depttord, NJ There was no established public trading market for our common stock up to and including August 3, 2017, Although shares

of our common stock were transferable, our common stock was not listed on any stock exchange or quoted in any over-the-counter

Sicklerville Branch Leased February 1, 2026 T )

483 Cross Key Road

Sicklerville, NJ On August 4, 2017, the Bank's common stock began trading on the “NASDAQ Global Select Market” under the ticker symbaol
. . : “BPRM." As of March 10, 2020, there were approximately 664 holders of our common stock.

Princeton Junction Branch Leased September 1, 2024

11 Cranbury Road

: . The following table shows the quarterly high and low closing prices of our common stock traded on NASDAQ.
Primceton Juncion, NJ =

Ouakerbridee Branch [Leased April 1, 2024 Stack Price |](d£h 1

3745 Quakerbridge Road _ _ S _“’11 '“‘m_

Hamiltom, NJ Quarter ended: High Low Per Share
’ December 31, 2019 83212 §27.34 80.10
iorth W e _— : ) A} September 30, 2019 £30.20 §25.92 80.10
N ey pranch eased September 30, 2021 June 30, 2019 $32.75 $27.42 50.03
North Wales. PA March 31,2019 $33.33 §27.58 $0.03
Cheltenham Branch [eased January 25, 2021 I?cucmhcr 31, 2018 331.44 526,77 50.03
2470 West Chelienham Avenms September 30, 2018 $35 45 $30.03 $0.00
Philadelphia, PA June 30, 2018 53490 §3z2.21 50,00
’ March 31, 2018 534.09 £31.50 50,00

Areh Streer Branch Leased September 30, 2022
921 Arch Street
Philadelphia, PA

! The expiration date is based on the next upcoming maturity date and does not take into consideration any renewal/extensions dates.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

From time 1o time the Bank is a defendant in various legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of our business. However,
in the opinion of management of the Bank, there are no proceedings pending to which the Bank is a party or 1o which its property is
subject, which, if determined adversely to the Bank, would be material in relation to the Bank’s profits or financial condition, nor are
there any proceedings pending other than ordinary routine hitigation incident to the business of the Bank. In addition, no matenal
proceedings are pending or are known to be threatened or contemplated against the Bank by govemment authorities or others.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
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Performance Graph Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans

The following table summarizes our equity compensation plan information as of December 31, 2019, See Note 15 “Stock-
Based Compensation™ in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for a description
of the matenial features of each plan.

The following graph demonstrates comparison of the cumulative total returns for the common stock of the Bank, NASDAQ
Composite Index, SNL Mid-Atlantic Bank Index, and Peer Group made up of banks and thrifis with total assets between $750.0 million
and $1.25 billion for the periods indicated. The graph below represents $100 invested in our common stock at its closing price on

August 4, 2017, the date the common stock commenced trading on the NASDAQ Global Select Market.
Number of Number of
= shares of shares of
Bank Of Prjncefon commaon stock Weighted- common stock
to be issued average remaining
upon exercise exercise price available for
of outstanding of outstanding future issuance
Total Return Performance options, ntinas under
warrants and warrants and compensation
130 Plan Category rights rights plans
—#— Bank of Princeton Fguity  Compensation Plans  approved by security 462,625 51958 376,248
. halders
NASDAQ Composite Index Fquity Compensation Plans not approved by security - - --
—a— SML Mid-Atlantic Bank Index halders
$—Peur Crow Total 462,625 S19.58 376,248
3
> 100
=
3
=
50 1 t
08/0417 1213117 12/3118 123119
Period Ending
Index 08/04/17 12131117 12/31118  12/31/19
Bank of Princeton 100.00 107.31 87.28 99.15
NASDAQ Composite Index 100.00 109.19 106.09 145.02
SNL Mid-Atlantic Bank Index 100.00 110.06 94.04 133.74
Peer Group 100.00 110.14 106.35 121.53
Peer group includes Banks and Thrifts with total assets between 5750M — 51. 258
Source: S&P Global Market Intelligence
© 2020
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

Set forth below 1s selected hnancial and other data of the Bank. Reference 1s made to the consolidated financial statements
and related notes contained in Item 8 = “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data™ which provide additional information.

SELECTED FINANCIAL AND OTHER DATA:

Total Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments securilies
Held-to-natunty
Available-lor-sale

Loans receivable, net

Deposits

FHIB advances

Total stockholders' equity

Non-performing loans

Non-performing asscls

Bankmg ollices

SELECTED OPERATING DATA:
Total mterest income

Total mlerest expense

Nel interest income

Provizsion for loan losses

Net nterest income after provision for loans losses

Total non-nterest ncome
Total non-interest expense
Income before income taxes
Income taxes

Nel income

Basic camnings per share
Diluted camings per share

Dividends paid per common share

The Bank of Princeton

At December 31,

The Bank of Princeton

Year end December 31,

SELECTED OPERATING RATIOS: 2019 2008 207 2006 2005
Average yvield on eamings assets 472 % 4.66 % 4.66 % 4.66 % 4.56
Average rate paid on linterest-bearing liabilities 1.80 1.42 1.06 097 0.90
Average rale spread 292 325 360 369 366
Mel interest margin 327 352 380 386 384
Average mlerest-eaming assels Lo average

mterest-bearing liabilities 1.24 124 1.23 1.21 1.25
Met interest income after provision for loan

losses to non-interest expense 1.32 1.59 1.52 1.59 1.56
Total non-interest expense (o average assels 205 207 217 235 225
Efficiency ratio 3938 57.94 3503 3057 37.04
Retum on average assets 0.75 1.22 L.02 1.17 L2
Fetum on average equily 533 230 230 12.05 1295
Average cquily Lo average asscls 14.07 14.37 12.35 972 8.67

5 2898 5 2769 8 25.69 8 2201 5 1951
$ 2711 5 2769 8 25.69 8 22.00 5 1950

Book value per share

S |
langible book value

' Tangible book value is a non-GAAP measure which excludes goodwill and core deposit mtangible asset.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
(Dollars m thousands )

5 145489 5 1251564 b3 1,200,591 5 102599 1.013,322

72,598 26,384 2,822 19,605 28,589

222 228 264 340 181
112,312 91681 101,744 113,034 141,509
1,174,013 1,069 235 058,356 B449.504 TUT 95
1,237 890 1,007 247 1,028 668 B62,521 TRY 433
- 55400 - 56,100 128,800
195,925 184,318 168295 103,462 91444
2442 5699 14 3371 11,989
2442 5743 10,001 - 12,289
.y 15 14 14 14
Year end December 31,
2ma 218 2017 2006 2015
{In Thousands, except per share data)

5 59,717 5 54365 b 47972 5 45433 43221
18,266 13,356 8840 7,763 6,837
41,451 41,008 39,132 37,670 36,384

4,800 [EE) 3,765 (41) 1,904
36,651 40344 35367 3701 34,480
3,385 2662 2,830 2,354 2287
27,732 25,208 23,334 23,761 22,059
12,304 17,708 14863 16,304 14,708
2,162 3,000 3,849 4461 3,702
10,142 14,708 11,014 11,543 11,006

5 1.51 5 2,12 b 200 5 252 238

s 147 5 214 5 1.5 8 236 230

5 0.26 5 0.03 b E 5 - -
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Our Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resulis of Operations is presenied in sections as
follows:

*  Owverview and Strategy

= Comparison of Financial Condition at December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018

= Comparison of Operating Resulis for the Years Ended December 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017
*  Rate/Volume Analysis

*  Liguidity, Commitmenis and Capital Resources

= Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

= Impact of Inflation

= Reiurn on Equity and Assels

= Cntical Accounting Policies and Estimates

= Recently Issued Accounting Standards

Overview and Strategy

We remain focused on establishing and retaining customer relationships by olferning a broad range of tradinonal linancial
services and products, competitively-priced and delivered i a responsive manner 1o small businesses, o professionals and individuals
in our market area. As a locally-operated community bank, we seck 1o provide superior customer service that 1s highly personahzed,
elficient and responsive o local needs. To betler serve our customers, we endeavor o provide state-ol-the-art delivery systems with
ATMs, current operaling soflware, tmely reporting, online bill pay and other similar up-to-date products and services. We seek o
deliver these products and services with the care and prolessionalism expected ol a community bank and with a special dedication o
personalized customer service.
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Cwr primary business objectives are:

e 1o provide local businesses, professionals and individuals with banking services responsive to and determined by their
needs and local market conditions;
to attract deposits and loans through competitive pricing, responsiveness and service, and
to provide a reasonable return to stockholders on capital invested.

We strive to serve the financial needs of our customers while providing an appropnate retum to our stockholders, consistent
with safe and sound banking practices. We expect that a financial sirategy that utilizes variable rates and matching assets and liabilities
will enable us to increase our net interest margin, while managing interest rate risk. We also seek to generate fee income from various
sources, subject to our desire to maintain competitive pricing within our market area.

Our recognition of, and commitment to, the needs of the local community, combined with highly personalized and responsive
customer service, dilTerentiates us [rom our compettion. 'We continue o capitalize upon the personal contacts and relationships ol our
organizers, directors, stockholders and olTicers o establish and grow our customer base,

Comparison of Financial Condition at December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018

General. Total assets were $1.45 billion at December 31, 2019, an inerease of 52033 million or 16.2% when compared to
$1.25 billion at the end of 2018 The primary reason for the increase in lotal assets was a result of the Bank's branch acquisition from
WSS Bank, formally Beneficial Savings Bank (“branch acquisition™), in which the Bank received 51599 million in cash and recorded
$15.7 in intangible and other assets. The Bank also recorded a $14.5 million right-ol-use asset resulting from the adoption of FASDE
Update No. 2016-02 (“Leases™). Net loans also increased $104.8 million from $1.07 billion at December 31, 2018, Cash and cash
equivalents increased $46.2 million or 175.2% to 572.6 million as of December 31, 2019, Investment securities classified available-for-
sale increased $20.6 million from the 391.7 million as of December 31, 2018,

Total iabilities increased by $191.7 milhion o $1.26 billion at December 31, 2019 from $1.07 billion at December 31, 2018,
Total deposits at December 31, 2019 inereased by $230.6 million, or 22 9%, when compared o December 31, 2018, primarily due 1o
acquiring $177.9 million in deposits in the branch acquisition, partially offset by not renewing 5582 mullion of brokered deposits which
carry a higher cost. When comparing December 31, 2019 to balances at December 31, 2018, mterest checking increased 561 .5 million,
savings accounts increased $60.0 million, time deposits increased $62.0 million and non-interest earning deposits increased $38.7
million. In addition, at the end of the quarter, the Bank did not have any outstanding balance in FHLB short-term advances, down from
the $55.4 million level at December 31, 2018,

Total stockholders™ equity increased $11.6 million or 6.3% when compared to the end of 2018, This increase was primarily
due to camings recorded during the twelve months of 2019, exercises of stock options from the Bank’s equity mcentive plans and an
increase of 31.1 million in the fair-value of the avalable-for-sale invesiment portfolio.  The ratio of equity to total assets was 13.5%
compared to 14.7% at December 31, 2015,

We manage our balance sheet based on a number of interrelated criteria, such as changes in interest rates, Muctuations in ceriain
assel and liability categories whose changes are not totally controlled by us, such as swings in deposit account balances driven by
depositors” needs, prepayments and issuer call options exercised on securities available for sale, early payolls on loans, invesiment
opportunities presenied by market conditions, lending originations, capital provided by carnings, and active management of our overall
liquidity positions. The management of these dynamic and interrelated elements of our balance sheet resulis in fluctuations in balance
sheet items throughout the year.
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Comparison of Operating Results for the Years Ended December 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017
General,

20019 vs 2018 Netincome for the year ended December 31, 2019 was S10.1 million, a decrease of approximately 54.6 million,
or 31.0%, as compared to the year ended December 31, 2018, The decline in earnings was primarily due to an increase in the Bank's
provision for loan losses of 84.1 million of which $3.9 million was recorded n the first quarter of 2019,

2018 vs 201 7. Net income for the year ended December 31, 2018 was 514.7 million, an increase of approximately $3.7 million,
or 33.5%, as compared to the year ended December 31, 2017. This increase was primarily attributable to an imcrease in net interest
income, reduction in the provision for loan losses and a reduction in income tax expense, offset by a decrease in non-interest income
and an increase in non-interest expenses.

Net interest income,

2019 vs 2018, Net interest income for the twelve months of 2019 was 541.5 million, an increase of 5442000, or 1.1%, when
compared to the twelve months of 2018, The increase was due to significant growth of average earning assets of $100.5 million, while
maintaining an average vield of 4.72% for the twelve months ended December 31, 2019, an increase of & basis points over the same
period in 2018, generating an increase in interest income of $5.4 million. This increase was partially offset by an increase in interest
expense ol approximately $4.9 million resulting from a $74.4 million increase of the average outstanding balance of miterest-bearing
Liabilinies, along with a 32 basis point inerease in the average rate paid on mterest-bearing hiabilities,

2018 vs 2077, Net interest income [or the twelve months of 2018 was $41.0 million, an increase of $1.9 millon, or 4.8%, when
comparced 1o the twelve months of 2007, The increase was due 1o signilicant growth ol average caming asscls ol S136.9 million, while
maintaining an average vield ol 4.66% for both periods, generating an inerease in interest income of $6.4 million. This increase was
partially offset by an increase in interest expense ol approximately 4.5 million resulting from a $106.4 million increase ol the average
outstanding balance ol interest-bearing liabihtes, along with a 36 basis point increase in the average rate pad on interest-bearing
liabilitics.

Total interest and dividend income.

2019 vs 2018, Total interest and dividend income increased $5 4 million, or 9.8%, 1o $39.7 million for the year ended December
31, 2019, compared to $54 .4 million for the prior vear. The improvement in interest income resulted from a $100.5 million increase in
the average balance of interest-earning assets. The yield on earning assets remained flat for both periods at 4.72%.

Interest income and fees on loans mereased $5.2 mullion, or 10.1%, to $56.3 mullion for the year ended December 31, 2019,
compared to $51.1 million for the prior year. The increase was atiributable to an increase in the average balance of loans receivable of
$97.2 million from $1.03 billion in 2018 10 $1.12 billion in 2019, This increase was aided by a three basis point increase in the vear-
over-year average yield on loans.

Interest income on securities decreased approximately 520,000, or 0.8%, for the year ended December 31, 2019 compared to
the prior yvear. This decrease was primarily attributable to a $1.1 million decrease in average balances. Average balances decreased
because cash received from principal repayments and maturities/calls was utilized 1o fund the growth in our loan portifolio.

Other interest and dividends increased $206,000, or 26.2%, to 991,000 for the yvear ended December 31, 2019, compared to
785,000 for the prior year. This increase was primarily due to an approximately 54.5 million increase in the average outstanding
balances and a higher vield ol approximately 27 basis points carned.

2018 vs 2017, Total interest and dividend income inereased $6.4 million, or 13.3%, 1o $54.4 million for the yvear ended
December 31, 2018, compared to $48.0 million for the prior year. The improvement in interest income resulted from a $136.9 million
increase in the average balance ol interest-carning assets. The yield on carning assets remained (at for both periods at 4.66%.

Interest income and lees on loans increased $6.0 million, or 13.2%, w $51.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2018,
compared to $45.1 million for the prior year. The increase was attributable 1o an inerease in the average balance of loans receivable of
$127.9 million from $899 8 million in 2017 to $1.03 billion in 2018, This increase was partially offset by a four basis point decrease in
the year-over-year average vield on loans. The decrease in the average vield on loans was due to lower interest rates on new loan
production caused primarily by increasing competition throughout the year ended December 31, 2018,
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Interest income on securities increased approximately 383,000, or 3.4%, for the year ended December 31, 2018 compared 1o
the prior year. This increase was primarily attributable to a 19 basis point increase in yield over the prior vear, which offset a S48 million
decrease in average balances. Average balances decreased because cash received from principal repayments and maturities/calls was
utilized to fund the growth in our loan portfolio.

Other interest and dividends increased $344,000, or 78.0%, to $785,000 for the year ended December 31, 2018, compared to
$441,000 for the prior year. This increase was primarily due to an approximately 513 8 million increase in the average outstanding
balances and a higher yield of approximately 26 basis pomnts eamed. This vield increase was a result of the three 25 basis point increases
in the federal funds rate throughout 2018,

Interest Expense.

2019 vs 2018, Total mterest expense increased $4.9 million, or 36.8%, for the year ended December 31, 2019 compared to the
prior year. This increase was the result of a 38 basis point increase in the cost of interesi-bearing liabilities, coupled with a $74.3 million
merease in average interest-bearing labilites.

Interest expense on deposits increased $4.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2019 compared 1o the prior year due 1o an
merease in the cost of interest-bearing deposits of 38 basis points during 2018, coupled with an increase in average interesi-bearing
deposits of $73.2 million.

Interest expense on borrowings increased approximately 88,000, or 22 3%, [or the year ended December 31, 2019 compared
Lo the prior year. This decrease was primarily attributable o a $1.1 million decrease in the average balances and an inerease of 34 basis
puoints in the cost of borrowings.

2018 vs 2017, Total nterest expense increased $4.5 million, or 51.1%, for the year ended December 31, 2018 compared 1o the
prior year. This increase was the result of a 36 basis point increase in the cost of interest-bearing liabilities, coupled with a $106.4 million
increase in average interest-bearing liabilities.

Interest expense on deposits increased $4.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2018 compared to the prior year due to an
increase in the cost of interest-bearing deposits of 34 basis points during 2017, coupled with an increase in average interesi-bearing
deposits of $140.8 million.

Interest expense on borrowings decreased approximately 5149000, or 27.4%, for the year ended December 31, 2018 compared

to the prior year. This decrease was primarily atiributable to a 3344 million decrease in the average balances offset by an increase of

124 basis points in the cost of borrowings.
Provision for Loan Losses.

2019 vs 2018, The provision for credit losses for the twelve months ended December 31, 2019 was 54.8 million compared with
a provision of 36635,000 for the 2018 period. The increase in the provision was due to a $4.2 million provision recorded in the first
quarter of 2019 resulting from $4.3 million in charge-offs recorded against three separate borrower relationships. The ratio of allowance
for loan losses to total loans decreased from 1.20% to 1.06% for the period ended December 31, 2019, primarily due to a decrease n
commercial and industrial loans as a percentage of total portfolio which have a higher nisk profile and a decrease in impaired loans and
related specific reserves. See the section above ttled “Financial Condition -Allowance for Loan Losses™ for a discussion of our
allowance for loan losses methodology, including additional information regarding the determination of the provision for loan losses.

2018 vs 2047, The provision for credit losses for the twelve months ended December 31, 2018 was $665,000 compared with a
provision of $3.8 million for the 2017 period. The decrease in the provision was due to a decline in net charge-otfs of $3 12,000 recorded
in 2018 compared o the 33.0 million recorded m 2007, The ratio ol allowance [or loan losses o tolal loans decreased from 1.20% 1o
1.10% for the penod ended December 31, 2008, primarily due o a shift from construction loans which have a higher nisk profile o
commercial real estate and residential loans that carry a lower nisk profile,

Non-Interest Income.
2019 vs 2018. Tolal non-interest income for the twelve months ended December 31, 2019 mercased $723,000 or 27.2% when
compared 1o the same peniod m 2018, This inerease was primarily due o an amount of services charges collected on deposits resulling

from the branch acquisition in May 2019, In addinon, lees collected from the loan portfolio increased 5224000, or 29.7%, in 2019
when compared 1o 2008,
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20018 vs 2007, Total non-interest income for the twelve months ended December 31, 2008 decreased S168,000 or 5.9% when
compared to the same period m 2017, This decrease was primanly due to a reduction in loan fee income eamed partially offset by an
merease mn meome from bank-owned life insurance.

Non-Interest Expense.

2019 vs 2018, For the twelve month period ended December 31, 2019, non-interest expense was $27.7 million, compared to
$25.3 million for the same period in 2018, The $2.4 million increase was attributed to expenses recorded relating to the branch
acquisition and its impact on other operating expenses along with expenses associated with new branch expansion.

2018 vs 201 7. Total non-interest expense for the twelve months ended December 31, 20018 increased 2.0 million or 8.4% when
compared to the same period of 2017, This increase was primarily due o increase in salary and benefit cosi, data processing and
communications expense, advertising expense and a one-time loss recorded against other real estate owned held by the Bank. Salaries
and benefit cost increased $1.5 million, or 11.4%, primarily due to an increased number of employees, an increase in performance
increases and benefit related expenses. Small increases in data processing and communications expenses and advertising expenses were
impacted by management growth strategy. Also, during 2018, the Bank had declines in professional fees expenses and occupancy and
equipment expenses and FDIC insurance premiums were lower primarily as a result of the Bank’s capital levels maintamed throughout
2018.

Income Tax Expense.

2079 vs 2018. For the year ended the December 31, 2019, the Bank recorded income tax expense of 2.2 million resulting in
an effective tax rate of 17.6%, compared to a 33.0 million expense resulting in an effective tax rate of 16.9% for the same period in
2018, The current effective tax yields for the twelve months ended December 31, 2019, were increased, in part, by the recording of a
5117000 income tax expense as a result of the New Jersey Division of Taxation issuing TB-86(R) on December 16, 2019, which
provided clarity for Business Entities in a Combined Group.

2018 vs 2017, For the vear ended the December 31, 2018, the Bank recorded income tax expense of 33.0 million resulting in
an effective tax rate of 16.9%, compared to a 33.8 million expense resulting in an effective tax rate of 25.9% for the same period in
2017. The positive impact to the current periods tax expense was primarily due to the 2017 Tax Act reduction of the corporate tederal
tax rate to 21.0% from 35.0%.
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Average Balance Sheets. The average yields and costs of funds shown in the following table are denved by dividing income For the Year Ended December 31,
or expense by the daily average balance of assets or liabilities, respectively, for the periods presented. Nonaccrual loans are included in 2017
the average balance of loans receivable, net for all periods presented. No tax-equivalent adjustments have been made. Average Average
{Dallars in thousands) Balance Interest Yield/Cost
For the Year Ended December 31,
2019 2018 Interest-carning asscts:
Average Average Average Average Loans receivable, net 5 B99822 % 45119 5.01%
(Dollars in thousands) Balance Interest Yield/Cost Balance Interest Yield/Cost Investment securities:
Available-for-sale 103,482 2.397 232
Interest-carning assets: Held-to-maturity 302 15 5.09
Loans receivable, net 5 1124865 § 55,251 500% S 1027701 S 51,085 4.97% Other interest-earning assets 25,371 441 1.74
[nvestment securities; Total interest-caming assets 1,028,977 47,972 4.66
Available-for-sale 97,633 2463 252 98,727 2482 251 N(m-i]ugrgﬂ_gﬂn]ing assels 45 B58
Held-to-maturity 225 12 5.20 251 13 518 Total assels 5 1,074,835
Other inlerest-carning asscls 43,693 991 227 39,214 TRS 200 -
Total interest-carning assels 1,266,436 59717 472 1,165,893 54,365 4.66 Interest-bearing liabilitics:
Non-interest-earning assets 84,036 57.456 Demand, interesi-hearing
Tolal assets $ 1,351,072 S5 1,223,349 and savings deposits 8 281,508 2,164 0.77
Money markel 265,055 2612 0,99
Interest-bearing liabilities: Time deposits 238,389 3.521 1.48
Inierest-bearing Total interesi-bearing deposits 784,952 8,297 1.06
and savings deposits 5 337,855 4,090 1.21 s 317,598 3,051 0.96 Federal Home Loan Bank
Money market 254,151 4,250 1.67 273,373 3 8RR 1.42 borrowings 51,618 343 1.05
Tiume deposits 406,908 9444 2.32 334,780 6,023 1.80 Total interest-bearing
Total interest-bearing deposits 998,914 17,784 1.78 925,751 12,962 1.40 Liabilitics 836,570 8,840 1.06%
Federal Home Loan Bank Non-interest-bearing habilities 105,506
borrowings 18.326 482 2.63 17.196 394 229 Total liabilities 942 076
Total interest-bearimg Stockholders’ equity 132,759
liabilities 1,017,240 18,266 1.80% 942,947 13,356 1.42% Total habilities and
MNon-interest-bearing liabilines 123 821 104,611 stockholders™ equity 5 1074835
Total liabilities 1,160,961 1,047,558 -
Stockholders” equity 190,111 175,791 Interest rate spread” T 360%
Total liabilities and -
stockholders™ equity $ 1,351,072 S 1.223.349 Nel interest income $ 139132
Interest rate spread'™ 2.92% 325% Net yield on interest-
R [ earning assets'? 3.80%
Net interest income 5 41,451 S 41009
Ratio of average interest-
MNet yield on interest- earing assels lo average
earning assets'” 327% 3.52% interest-bearing liabilities 1.23x
Ratio of average interest- UY Interest rate spread represents the difference between the average vield on interest-earning assets and the average cost
earning assels lo average of interest-bearing liabilities,
interesi-bearing liabilities 1.24x 1.24x 2} Net yield on interest-carning assets represents net interest income as a percentage of average interest-carning assets,

M Interest rate spread represents the diflerence between the average vield on interest-carning asscts and the average cost
of mterest-bearing habilities.,
%) Net yield on interest-caming assels represents net interest income as a percentage of average inlerest-carning assets.
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Rate/Volume Analysis

The following table reflects the sensitivity of our interest income and interest expense to changes in volume and in yields on
interest-earning assets and costs of interest-bearing labilities during the periods indicated.

Year Ended December 31, Year Ended December 31,
2019 vs. 2018 2018 vs. 2017
Increase (Decrease) Due to Increase (Decrease) Due to
(in thousands)

Volume Rate Net Volume Rate Net
Interest and dividend income:
Loans receivable 5 485 5 07T s sle6 S 6,356 % (390) S 3,960
Investment securities:
Available-for-sale (18] (1 (19} (103) 188 85
Held-to-maturity (1} - (1) (2) - (23
Other interest-earnings assets 102 104 2006 277 67 344
Total interest-earning assets 5 4,942 % 410 8 5,352 % 6,528 % {135) % 6,393
Interest expense:
Demand, interest-bearing and
savings 5 245 % T4 5 1,039 § 347 % 540 5 RBE7
Maoney market (321} 6GE3 362 118 1,158 1,276
Time deposits 1,674 1,747 3,421 1,734 768 2,502
Federal Home Loan Bank
borrowings 30 SH b (787) 638 (149
Total interest-bearing
labalities 5 1628 5 3282 § 4910 § 1412 % 3104 S 4,516
Change in net interest income 3314 3 (2872) % 442 8 5169 % (3,292) % 1,877

Liquidity, Commitments and Capital Resources

Liguidity. Our liquidity, represented by cash and due from banks, 1s a product of our operating, mvesting and financing
activities. Our primary sources of funds are deposits, principal repayments of securities and outstanding loans, and funds provided from
operations. In addition, we invest excess funds in short-term interest-ecarnings assets such as overnight deposits or U.S. agency securities,
which provide liqudity to meet lending requirements. While scheduled payments from the amortization of loans and securities and
short-term investments are relatively predictable sources of funds, general interest rates, economic conditions and competition greatly
influence deposit flows and repayments on loans and morngage-backed securities.

We strive o maintain sufficient liquidity to fund operations, loan demand and to satisty fluctuations in deposit levels. We are
required to have enough investments that qualify as liquid assets in order to maintain sufficient liquidiry to ensure safe and sound banking
operations. Liquidity may increase or decrease depending upon the availability of funds and comparative yields on investments in
relation to the return on loans. We attempt to maintain adequate but not excessive liquidity, and liquidity management is both a daily
and long-term function of our business management. We manage our liquidity in accordance with a board of directors-approved asset-
hability policy, which 15 admimstered by our asset-hability committee (“ALCO™). ALCO reports miterest rate sensitivity, hguidity,
capital and investment-related matters on a quarterly basis to our board of directors.

We review cash low projections regularly and update them in order o maintain liquid assets at levels believed o meet the
requirements of normal operations, including loan commitments and potential deposit outllows from maturing certificates of deposit
and savings withdrawals.

While deposits are our primary source of funds, when needed we are also able o generate cash through borrowings [rom the

FHLB-NY. At December 31, 2019, we had remaining available capacity with FHLB-NY, subject to certain collateral restrictions, of
$228.7 million.
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Additionally, we are a sharcholder of Atlantic Community Bancshares, Inc., and as such, as of December 31, 20019, we had
available capacity with its subsidiary, Atlantic Community Bankers Bank of $10.0 million to provide short-term liquidity generally for
a period of not more than fourteen days.

Contractual Obligations. We have non-cancelable operating leases for branch offices and our operations center. The following
table 15 a schedule of future payvments under operating leases with terms longer than 12 months at December 31, 2019:

Years Ended December 31: {in thousands)
2020 5 2,063
2021 2,035
2022 1,583
2023 1,537
2024 1,289
Thereafter 9.501
Total minimum payments required 18,008

Capital Resources. Consistent with our goals to operate as a sound and profitable linancial mstitution, we actively seck o
maintain our status as a well-capitalized institution in accordance with regulatory standards. As of December 31, 2019, we met the
capital requirements to be considered “well capitalized.” See Note 16 — “Regulatory Matters™ in the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements included within this Form [0-K for more information regarding our capital resources.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We are a party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of our business of investing in loans
and securities as well as in the normal course of maintaining and improving our facilities. These financial instruments include significant
purchase commitments, such as commitments related to capital expenditure plans and commitments to purchase investment securities
or mortgage-backed securities, and commitments to extend credit to meet the financial needs of our customers.

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition established
in the loan contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment ol a fee
by our customers. Our exposure to credit loss in the event of non-performance by the counterparty to the financial instrument for
commitments o extend credit 1s represented by the contractual notional amount of those instruments. We use the same credit policies
in making commitments and conditional obligations as we do for on-balance-sheet mstruments. Since many of the commitments are
expected to expire without bemng drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements,

We had the following off-balance sheet financial instruments whose contract amounts represent credit risk at December 31

(i thousands) 2019 2018
Performance and standby letters of credit 5 2,353 5 2,342
Undisbursed loans-in-process 99,764 74,086
Commitments to fund loans 42,129 16,085
Unfunded commitments under lines of credit 4,494 6011
Total b 148,740 b 9E 524

For additional information regarding our outstanding lending commitments at December 31, 2019, see Note 8 — “Commitments
and Contingencies™ in the Notes 1o Consolidated Financial Statements contamed in this Annual Eeport on Form 10-K.,
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Impact of Inflation

The financial statements included in this document have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. These principles require the measurement of financial position and results of operations in
terms of historical dollars, without considering changes in the relative purchasing power of money, over time, due to inflation. Our
primary assets and labilities are monetary in nature. As a result, interest rates have a more significant impact on our performance than
the effects of general levels of inflation. Interest rates, however, do not necessarily move in the same direction or with the same
magnitude as the price of goods and services, since such prices are affected by inflation,

Exposure to changes in Interest Rates

Gap Analysis. The matching of assets and habilities may be analyzed by examining the extent to which such assets and
liabilities are “interest rate sensitive” and by monitoring the Bank’s interest rate sensitivity “gap.” An asset or lability is said to be
nterest rate sensitive within a specific time period il it will mature or reprice within that time period. The interest rate sensitivity gap is
defined as the difference between the amount of mterest-carning assels maturing or repricing within a specilic tme period and the
amount of mterest-bearing habilities maturing or repricing within that same time period. A gap is considered positive when the amount
ol interest rate sensilive assels exceeds the amount ol interest rate-sensitive liabilities. A gap 1s considered negative when the amount of
nterest rate sensitive labilities exceeds the amount of interest rale sensitive assels. During a period of rsing interest rates, a negalive
gap would tend o affeet adversely net interest income while a positive gap would tend to resull in an increase in net interest income.
Conversely, during a period of [alling interest rates, a negative gap would tend 1o result in an increase in net interest income while a
positive gap would tend to alTect adversely net interest income.

The table on the next page sets forth the amounts of our interest-caming assels and interest-bearing habilities outstanding at
December 31, 2019, which we expeet, based upon certain assumptions, o reprice or mature in cach ol the future time periods shown
(the “GAD Table™). Except as stated below, the amounts of assets and liabilities shown which reprice or mature during a particular
period were determined in accordance with the earlier of term to repricing or the contractual maturity of the asset or liability. The table
sets forth an approximation of the projected repricing of assets and liabilities at December 31, 2019, on the basis of contractual maturities,
anticipated prepayments, and scheduled rate adjustments within a three-month period and subsequent selected time intervals. The loan
amounts in the table reflect principal balances expected to be redeploved and/or repriced as a result of contractual amortization and
anticipated prepayments of adjustable-rate loans and fixed-rate loans, and as a result of contractual rate adjustments on adjustable-rate
loans.
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More than 3 Morethan | More than 3

3 Months or  Monthsto 1 Yearto 3 Yearsio 3 More than 5 Tatal
less Year Years Years Years Amount

(Dollars in thousands)
Interest-carning assets: (1)
Investment securities 3 23401 § 12043 % 24706 & 0,675 8 n3sl S 111,276
Loans receivable 291,400 170, 8640 390,752 255,122 TH625 1,186,759
Oiher interest-camings assets (2) 61,812 - - - - 61,812

Total interest-caming assets S O3TeT03 5 182903 5 415458 S 275797 % 10B9RG S 1,339.%47
Interest-beanng labilities:
Checking and savings accounts 5 12902 & 35440 5 = 5 = b = S 367308
Checking and money market accounts 16,003 278,937 = = = 204 940
Certilicate accounts 85,416 191,318 134,075 il622 - 442,431
Advances lrom Federal Home Loan Bank - - - - - -

Total interest-bearing liabilities S 14321 5 8Mo6l 3 134075 S 3622 % - 8 L1679
Interest-earning assets

less interest-hearing liabilities S 262382 5 (641,758) % 2RI3EZ S 24175 % IOBURG S 255168
Curmulative inlerestl-rate

sensitivily gap (3) S 2623R2 5 (3T9ATG) § 0 (97993 5 146082 F 2551068
Cunmlative interest-rate gap as a

percentage of total assets at

December 31, 2019 18.03% -26.08%% -6.74% 10.05% 17.54%
Cunulative interest-caming assels as

a percentage of cumulative nterest-bearing

liabilities an December 31, 2019 329.51% S0.600%% 90.87% 113.23% 123.10%

(1) Interest-carnings assets are included m the penod in which the balances are expected to be redeployed and/or repriced as
aresull of prepayments, scheduled rate adjustments and contractual matunties.,
(2) Includes FHLB Stock in the three months or less category.

(3) Interest-rale sensitivity gap represents the difference between total mierest-caming assets and total interest-bearng labilities.

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the method of analysis presented in the foregoing table. For example, although certaimn
assels and habilitiecs may have similar maturities or periods o repricing, they may react in different degrees 1o changes in market iterest
rates, Also, the interest rales on certain types ol assets and habilities may Muetoate in advance ol changes i market mterest rates, while
nterest rates on other types may lag behind changes in market rates, Additionally, certain assels, such as adjustable rate loans, have
leatures which restrict changes in interest rates both on a short-term basis and over the hife of the asset. Further, in the event of a change
n interest rates, prepayment and carly withdrawal levels would likely deviate significantly from those assumed in calculating the table.
Finally, the ability of many borrowers to service their adjustable-rate loans may decrease in the event of an interest rate increase.

Net Portfolio Value Analysis. Our interest rate sensitivity also s monitored by management through the use of a model which
generates estimates ol the changes in our net portfolio value (“NPV™) over a range ol interest rate scenarios. NPV is the present value
ol expected cash Mows [rom assets, habilities and off-balance sheet contracts. The NPV ratio, under any interest rate scenario, s defined
as the NPV in that scenario divided by the market value of assets in the same scenario. The following table sets forth our NPV as of
December 31, 2019 and reflects the changes o NPV as a result of immediate and sustained changes in interest rates as indicated.
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Change NPV as % of Portfoho
Interesi Rates MNet Portfolio Value Value of Assels
In Basis Pomts (Rate
Shock) Amounis 5 Clmng,e % Changc MNPV Ratc Chﬂn&
(Dollars m thousands)

300 5 232013 8§ 140 0.06% -4.51% -6.28%

200 b 236,242 8§ 4,369 1.88% 2.47% 0.707%

100} b 236471 8 4,598 1.98% -(1.33% -2 10f%
Static 5 231,873 8% - 1.77%

(1040) s 237741 8 5,868 2.53% 3.93% 2. 16%

(2007 b 229137 § (2,736) -1 18% 5.13% 3.36%

(3007 b 220146 S (11,727} -5.06%0 4.54% 2.7T%

As is the case with the GAD Table, certain shortcomings are inherent in the methodology used in the above interest rate risk
measurements. Modeling changes in NPV require the making of certain assumptions which may or may not reflect the manner in which
actual yields and costs respond to changes in market interest rates. In this regard, the models presented assume that the composition of
our mterest sensilive assels and habihties existing at the beginning ol a period remains constant over the penod being measured and also
assumes that a particular change i interest rates 1s reflected uniformly across the yield curve regardless of the duration 1o maturity or
repricing ol specilic assets and habihies, Accordingly, although the NPV model provides an indication ol interest rate nsk exposure at
a particular poant in tme, such model 15 not intended 1o and does not provide a precise Torecast ol the elfect ol changes in market interest
rates on net interest income and will difTer from actual resolts,

Return on Equity and Assets

The following table presents certann performance ratios lor the years ended December 31, 2019, 20018 and 2017,

2019 2018 2017
Return on Average Assels (ROA) 0.75% 1.22% 1.02%
Return on Average Equity (ROE)! 5.33% 8.30% 8.30%
Average Equity to Average Assets! 14.07% 14.37% 12.35%
Dividend Pavout Ratio® 17.22% NM*2% 0.00%

' The Bank completed a common stock offering on August 4, 2017, resulting in the Bank’s stockholders” equity increasing by $51.8 million from net progeeds,
*The Bank declared an initial cash dividend of $0.03 per common stock during the fourth quarter of 2018,
* Mot meaningful,

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

In the preparation of our financial statements, we have adopted various accounting policies that govern the application of
accounting principles generally accepted i the United States and in accordance with general practices within the banking industry. Our
significant accounting policies are described in our financial statements under Note 1- “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.”
While all of these policies are important 1o understanding the linancial statements, certain accounting policies described below involve
signilicant judgment and assumpltions by management that have a matenal impact on the camrying value ol certain assels and habilities.
We consider these accounting eshimates 1o be eritical accounting policies, The judgments and assumptions we use are based on historical
experience and other factors, which we believe to be reasonable under the cireumstances, Because ol the nature of the judgments and
assumplions we make, actual results could differ Irom these judgments and assumptions that could have a material impact on the carrying
values of our assels and habilines and our results of operations,

Allowance for Credit Losses. The allowance lor credit losses consists of the allowance for loan losses and the reserve for
unfunded lending commitments. The allowance for loan losses represents our estimate of losses inherent in the loan portfolio as of the
balance sheet date and 1s recorded as a reduction to loans. The reserve for unlunded lending commitments represents our estimaite of
losses inherent in our unfunded loan commitments and 15 recorded in other labilities on the balance sheet. The allowance for loan losses
15 increased by the provision for loan losses, and decreased by charge-ofls, net of recoveries. Generally, loans deemed 1o be uncollectible
are charged-olTagainst the allowance [or loan losses, and subsequent recoveries, iFany, are credited to the allowance for loan losses. All
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or part, of the principal balance of loans receivable are charged-off to the allowance for loan losses when it 15 determined that the
repavment of all, or part, of the principal balance is highly unlikely. For a more detailed discussion of our allowance for loan loss
methodology and the allowance for loan losses see the section titled “Analysis of the Allowanee for Loan Losses™ in this “Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”

Other-Than-Temporary Impairmeni.  Management evaluates securities for other-than-temporary-impairment (“O7TTT™)
quarterly, and more frequently when economic or market conditions warrant such an evaluation. In determining OTTT under Financial
Accounting Standards Board ("FASB™) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC") Topic 320, Mvesimenis — Debt and Equity
Securities, management considers many factors, including: (1) the length of time and the exient to which the fair value has been less
than amortized cost; (2) the financial condition and near term prospecis of the issuer; (3) whether the market decline was atfected by
macroeconomic conditions; and (4) whether the entity has the intent to sell the debt security or more likely than not will be required 1o
sell the debt security before its anticipated recovery. The assessment of whether an OTTI decline exists involves a high degree of
subjectivity and judgment and is based on information available to management at a point in time. OTTT is deemed to have occurred if
there has been an adverse change in the remaining expected future cash flows.

When an OTTI of debt securities occurs, the amount of the OTTI recognized in earnings depends on whether the Bank intends
to sell the security or more likely than not will be required to sell the security before recovery of its amortized cost basis. If the Bank
intends to sell or more likely than not will be required to sell the security before recovery of its amortized cost basis, the OTTI shall be
recognized in earnings at an amount equal to the difference between the securities’ amortized cost basis and its fair value at the balance
sheet date. It the Bank does not intend to sell the security and it is not more likely that the Bank will be required to sell the security
before recovery of its amortized cost basis, the OTTI shall be separated into the amount representing the credit loss and the amount
related to all other factors. The amount of the total OTTI related to the credit loss is determined based on the present value of cash flows
expected to be collected and is recognized in eamings. The amount of the total OTTI related to other factors shall be recognized in other
comprehensive income, net of applicable tax benefit. The previous amortized cost basis less the OTTI recognized in earnings shall
become the new amortized cost basis of the investment.

For held-to-matunty debt secunties, the amount ol an other-than-temporary impairment recorded in other comprehensive
ncome lor the noncredit portion of a previous other-than-temporary impairment will be amortized prospectively over the remaiming life
ol the security on the basis ol the timing of luture estimated cash ows of the sccunty,

For equity securities, when the Bank decides to sell an impaired available-for-sale security and the entity does not expect the
fair value of the security to fully recover before the expected time of sale, the security 1s deemed other-than-temporanly impaired in the
period in which the decision to sell 1s made. The Bank recognizes an impairment loss when the impaimment is deemed other than
temporary even if a decision to sell has not been made.

Income Taxes. We account for income taxes in accordance with income tax accounting gumdance contained in FASB ASC
Topic 740, fncome Taxes. This includes guidance related to accounting for uncertainties in income taxes, which sets out a consistent
framework to determine the appropriate level of tax reserves o maintain for uncertain tax positions. We had no material unrecognized
tax benefits or accrued interest and penalties as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, Our policy s to account for interest and penalties as a
component of other expense.

We have provided for federal and state income taxes on the basis of reported income. The amounts reflected on our tax returns
differ from these provisions due principally to temporary differences in the reporting of certain items for financial reporting and income
tax reporting purposes. The tax effect of these remporary differences is accounted for as deferred taxes applicable to future periods.

Deferred income tax expense or benefit 15 determined by recognizing deferred tax habilities and assets, respectively, for the
estimated future tax consequences aliributable o difTerences between the linancial stalement carrying amounts of existing assels and
habilities and their respective lax bases, Delerred tax assels and habilities are measured using enactled lax rates expected 1o apply Lo
taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effeet on delerred assets
and habilities ol'a change in tax rates is recognized in carnings in the period that includes the enactment date. The realization of deferred
lax assels 15 assessed and a valuation allowance provided for the ull amount which is not more-likely-than-not to be realized.

On July 1, 2018, New Jersey Governor Phil Murphy signed into law changes o the corporate business tax laws. This
legislation required a combined group to file combined returns for tax years beginning in 2019 and therealter. However, due o
technical issues and inconsisiencies with existing tax law, it was determined that the tax law change did not have an impact on
deferred taxes. In December 2019, the State of New Jersey issued a clanfying technical bulletin related to the impact of the new tax
legislation enacted in July 2018, This technical bulletin provided clarification 1o the combined income tax reporting [or certain
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members of a unitary business group. Accordingly, this required a revaluation of some of the Bank's deferred tax assets. In the 4th
quarter, the Bank recorded state deferred tax expense in the amount of approximately $117,000.

The 2017 Tax Act reduced the U.S. federal corporate tax rate from 35% to 21% effective January 1, 2018, Also, on December
22,2017, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 118 (“SAB 118™), which provides guidance
on accounting for tax effects of the 2017 Tax Act. SAB 118 provides a measurement period of up to one year from the enactment date
to complete the accounting. Any adjustments during this measurement period will be included in net earnings from continuing operations
as an adjustment to income tax expense in the reporting period when such adjustments are determined. Based on the information
available and current interpretation of the rules, the Bank estimated the impact of the reduction in the corporate tax rate and
remeasurement of certain deferred tax assets and liabilities. The provisional amount recorded in the fourth quarter of 2017 related to the
remeasurement of the Bank's deferred tax balance resulted in addinonal income tax expense of 540,000, As of December 31, 2019,
management has concluded its assessment and determined no addinonal adjustment is required.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

See Note - “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies™ in the Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements contained in
this Annual Report on Form 10-K for a discussion ol recently issued accounting standards.

Item 7TA. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

See Item 7- “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Exposures to Changes
n Interest Rates.”

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

THE BANK OF PRINCETON

INDEX TO
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019, 2018 AND 2017

Page
Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 50
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition 53
Consolidated Statements of Income 54
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income 55
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders® Equity 56
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 57
MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements 59

48

The Bank of Princeton

Tel: 215-564-1900 Ten Penn Center
Fax: 215-564-3940 1801 Market Street, Suite 1700

_® www.bdo.com Philadelphia, P4 19103

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Stockholders and Board of Directors
The Bank of Princeton
Princeton, New Jersey

Opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition of The Bank of Princeton (the
“Company”) as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive
income, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December
31, 2019, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “consolidated financial statements”). In our opinion,
the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company
at December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2019, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States) (“PCAOB"), the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2019, based on
criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COS0") and our report dated March 16, 2020 expressed an unqualified
opinion thereon.

Basis for Opinion

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on the Company’s consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We are a public
accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in
accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and
Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of
material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud.

Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures
included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

/s/ BDO USA, LLP

We have served as the Company's auditor since 2013.

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania

March 16, 2020
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Tel: 215-564-1900 Ten Penn Center
Fax: 215-564-3940 1801 Market Street, Suite 1700

_® wwrw . bdo.com Philadelphia, PA 19103

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Stockholders and Board of Directors
The Bank of Princeton
Princeton, Mew Jersey

Opinion on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audited The Bank of Princeton’s (the “Company”) internal control over financial reporting as of December
31, 2019, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework {2013) issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the “COSO criteria”). In our opinion, the Company
maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2019,
based on the COS50 criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States) (“PCAOB"), the consolidated statements of financial condition of the Company as of December 31, 2019
and 2018, the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in stockholders’ equity,
and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2019, and the related notes and our
report dated March 16, 2020 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Basis for Opinion

The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and
for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying
“Item 9A, Controls and Procedures™. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are
required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with U.S. federal securities laws and the
applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit of internal control over financial reporting in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective
internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our
audit also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Because of its inherent limitations,

policies or procedures may deteriorate.
/s/ BDO USA, LLP

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
March 16, 2020

The Bank of Princeton

internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

{Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

52

See accompanying noles (o unaudited consolidated Nnancial stalements

December 31, For the Years Ended
2019 2018 December 31,
ASSETS
Cash and due from banks 12.032 7922 INTEREST AND DIVIDEND INCOME 2019 2018 2017
Interest-earning bank balances i, 566 1% 462 Loans receivable, including fees 856,251 551,085 45119
Total cash and cash equivalents 72,598 26,384 Securities available-for-sale:
Taxable 1,126 1176 1,156
Securities available-for-sale, at fair value (amortized value of $111.454 and Tax-exempt 1,337 1,306 1,241
$92,341, respectively) 112,312 41,681 Securities held-to-maturity 12 13 15
Sceuritics held-to-matunty (fair value of 5236 and 5236 respectively) 222 228 Other interest and dividend income 991 TR 441
Loans receivable, net of allowance for loan losses of 512,557 and 511,944 TOTAL INTEREST AND DIVIDEND INCOME 59.717 54,365 47972
at Deecember 31, 20019 and 2018, respectively 1,174,013 1069235
Bank-owned life insurance 46,711 45481 INTEREST EXPENSE
(her real estate owned (OR1EC) - 44 ”C‘pﬂﬂitﬁ 17,784 12,962 8,297
[‘rl.miscs_and muipm}:nl, net 10,777 4,201 Borrowings 482 304 543
Accrued interest receivable 3,626 3,734 TOTAL INTEREST EXPENSE 18,266 13,356 8,840
Restricted investment i bank stock 1,246 3,574
Deferred taxes, net 3,927 4,268 NET INTEREST INCOME 41,451 41,009 39,132
Goodwill 8,853 - Provision for loan losses 4,800 665 3,765
i L 3,763 - NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION
Operating lease right-of-use assct 14,233 - FOR LOAN LOSSES 36,651 40,344 35,367
(her assels 2,313 2,734
TOTAL ASSETS | 454 894 1,251 564 NON-INTEREST INCOME
Ciann on sale ol secunties available-for-sale, net 31 | 14
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY Income from bank-owned life insurance 1,230 1,225 296
LIABILITIES: Fees and service charges 1,062 613 629
Deposits: Loan fees, including prepayvment penalties 979 155 1,253
Mon-interest-hearing 141,338 102,678 Other aq 0GR kT
Interest-bearing 1,096.552 904,569 TOTAL NON-INTEREST INCOME 3392 2,662 2,830
Total deposits 1,237,890 1,007,247
Borrowings - 35400 NON-INTEREST EXPENSE
Acerued interest payable 3,885 2,198 Salaries and employee benefits 15,274 14,530 13,042
Operating lease liability 15,040 = Oceupancy and equipment 4,260 3,387 3,461
Other liabilhties 2,154 2,401 Professional fees 1,772 1,939 2.134
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,258,969 1,067,246 Data processing and communications 2407 2,101 1,970
Federal deposit insurance assessment &1 ERE 508
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY: Advertising and promotions 386 421 260
Common stock, 55,00 par value, 15,000,000 authorized, 6,761 443 and 6,655 509 shares Office expense 433 267 266
issued and outstanding at December 31, 2009 and 2018, respectively 33,807 33,278 Other real estate expenses 10 2 8
Paid-in capital 79,215 77,895 Loss on sale of other real estate owned 7 540 -
Retained earnings 82,273 73,630 Acquisition expense 627 = =
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 630 (485) Core deposit intangible 482 - -
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY 195,925 184,318 Other 2,000 1,773 1,685
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY 1,454,804 1,251,564 TOTAL NON-INTEREST EXPENSE 27,739 25,298 23,334
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12,304 17,708 14,863
) ) ) R i Income tax expense 2,162 3,000 3,849
Sec accompanying notes o unaudited consolidated linancial statements. NET INCOME 510,142 $14.708 311,014
IEamings per share-hasic 51.51 222 52.00
Eamings per share-diluted 51.47 5214 51.90
Dividends declared per share 5026 £0.03 -



The Bank of Princeton

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Dollars in thousands)

For the Years Ended December 31,

The Bank of Princeton

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
For the Years Ended December 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017
i Dollars in thousands, except share data)

2019 2018 2017
NET INCOME 510,142 514,708 511,014
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Unrealized holdings gains (losses) arising during period on
securities available-for-sale 1.549 (749 129
Income tax effect on unrealized holding (gains) losses 411 198 (49)
Less: reclassification adjustment for gains on sales of
securities available-for-sale! (3 (1) (143}
Income tax effect on reclassification adjustment for gains
on sale of securities available-for-sale’ 8 - 5
Total other comprehensive income (loss) 1,115 (552) 71
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME $11,257 514,156 511,085

! Amounts are included in gain on sale of securitics available-for-sale, net on the Consolidated Statements of Income as o separate element within total non-interest

ingome.
* Amounts are included in income tax expensc on the Consolidated Statements of Income.
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Accumulated
other
Common Paid-in Retained  comprehensive
stock capital earnings (loss) income Total
Balance, January 1, 20017 3 23,502 3 31,856 348,108 5 4) 103,462
Net imcome - . 11,014 - 11,014
Other comprehensive income - - - 71 71
Stock Issuance (1,725,000
shares, net of expense) 8.625 43,180 - - 51,805

Stock options and warranis exercised

(125,834 shares) 629 835 = = 1464
Stock-based compensation expense - 479 - - 479
Balance, December 31, 2017 $ 32756 % 76,350 % 59,122 § 67 168,295
Met income - - 14,708 - 14,708
Other comprehensive loss - - - (552) (552
Director Compensation (6,430 shares) 32 168 - - 200
Dividend paid $0.03 per share - - {200) - (200
Stock options and warrants exercised

(97,850 shares) 490 HE3 - - 1,373
Stock-based compensation expense - 494 - - 494
Balance, December 31, 2018 5 33278 5 T7.895 5 73.630 S {485 184,318
Lease adoption of ASU Topic 842 - - (21! - (219
Net income - - 10,142 - 10,142
Other comprehensive income - - - 1.115 1,115
Director Compensation (7,082 shares) 35 165 - - 200
Dividend paid $0.26 per share - - (1,280) - (1.280)
Stock options and warranis exercised

(98,852 shares) 494 LA - - 1.342
Stock-based compensation expense - 307 - - 307
Balance, December 31, 2019 3 33,807 £ 79215 3 82273 8 630 195,925
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
{Dollars in thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
aclivities:

Provision for loan losses

Depreciation and amortization

Gain on sale of premise and equipment

Stock-based compensation

Amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts on securities
Accretion of net deferred loan fees and costs

Met realized gains on sale of securities available-for-sale

Increase in cash surrender value of bank-owned life insurance
Deferred income tax expense

et loss on sale of other real estate owned

Amortization of core deposit intangible

Director’s Compensation Plan stock issuance

Decrease (increase) in accrued interest receivable and other assets
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest payable and other liabilities
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of securities available-for-sale

Proceeds from sale of securities available-for-sale

Principal repayments of securities available for-sale

Maturities and calls of securities available for-sale

Maturities, calls and principal repayments of securities held-to-maturity
Nel increase in loans

Purchase of loans

Purchases of bank-owned life insurance

Proceeds on sale of other real estate owned

Purchases of premises and equipment

Met cash received from acquisition of bank branches

Redemptions (purchases) of restricted bank stock

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net increase (decrease) in deposits

{Repaymenis) and proceeds of overnight borrowings
Issuance of common stock, net

Cash dividends paid

Proceeds from exercise of stock options and warrants

NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF PERIOD
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF PERIOD
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For the Years Ended December 31,

2019 2018 2017
510,142 514,708 511,014
4.800 665 3,765
792 638 790
= = (3)
307 494 479
243 328 416
(1.026) (969} (1,160}
(1) () (14)
(1.230) (1.225}) (896)
(62) (3.242) 4,737
7 340 --
482 - 30
200 200 --
1.000 3913 (6,067)
1440 972 (2835)
17.064 17,021 12,806
(47,233) (9. 145) (17.468)
- - 554
11,533 12,566 13,902
16,375 5,545 14,015
[§ 36 76
(108,552) (53,195) (42,973)
- (57.380) (69,282)
- (3.700) (14,249)
37 218 --
{3.982) (960} (150}
161,282 - S
2,328 (2,596} 2,670
31,794 (108.611) (112,9035)
52,694 (21.421) 166,147
(55,400) 55,400 (56,100)
- - 51.805
(1.280) (200} --
1,342 1,373 1.464
(2.644) 35.152 163.316
46,214 (56,438) 63,217
26,384 #2822 19,605
72,598 26,384 82,822

The Bank of Princeton

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS — (Continued)

{Dollars n thousands)

SUPPLEMENTARY CASH FLOWS INFORMATION:
Interest paid

Income taxes paid

Recognition of operating lease right of use assets
Recognition of operating lease liabilities

Fair value of assets acquired

Fair value of liabilities assumed

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF NONCASH ACTIVITIES:
Transfers from loans receivable, net of ORED

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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For the Years Ended December 31,

2019 2018 2007
5 16579 512,749 S BSE5
ilz 51,967 S 5343
17,716 - -
17,990 - -
168 944 - -
177,797 - -
5-- 5-- 5802



The Bank of Princeton

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization and Nature of Operations

The Bank of Princeton (the “Bank™) was incorporated on March 5, 2007 under the laws of the State of New Jersey and is
a New Jersey state-chartered banking institution. The Bank was granted its bank charter on April 17, 2007, commenced
operations on April 23, 2007 and is a full-service bank providing personal and business lending and deposit services. As
a state-chartered bank, the Bank is subject to regulation by the New Jersey Department of Banking and Insurance and the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC™). The area served by the Bank, through its 21 branches, is generally an
area within an approximate 50 mile radius of Princeton, N, including paris of Mercer, Somerset, Hunterdon, Monmouth
and Middlesex Counties in central New Jersey, and additional areas in portions of Philadelphia, Montgomery and Bucks
Counties in Pennsylvania. The Bank also conducis loan origination activities in select areas of New York.

On August 4, 2017, the Bank completed a common stock offering and issued 1,725,000 shares of common stock, at a price
to the public of $32.00 per share. The common stock now trades on the NASDAGQ Global Select Market under the ticker
symbol “BPRN.”

The Bank offers traditional retail banking services, one-to-four-family residential morigage loans, mulii-family and
commercial morigage loans, construction loans, commercial business loans and consumer loans, including home equity
loans and lines of credit.

Basis of Financial Statement Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Bank and its wholly-owned subsidiaries: Bayard Lane,
LLC, Bayard Properties, LLC, 112 Fifth Avenue, LLC, TBOP Delaware Investment Company and TBOP REIT, Inc. All
significant inter-company accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (“"GAAP™).

Estimates

The preparation ol consolidated lnancial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management o make estimales
and assumptions that alTect the reported amounts of assets and habilines and disclosure ol contingent assets and habilities
al the date ol the consohdated Nnancial statements and the reported amounts ol revenues and expenses duning the reporting
period,  Because ol uncertaimties associaled with estimating the amounts, tming and likelihood of possible oulcomes,
actual results could difTer from those estimates. Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to sigmilicant change
i the near term relate 1o the determination of the allowance [or loan losses, the determination ol other-than-lemporary
mmpairment of securitics and the valuation of delerred 1ax assels.

Management beheves that the allowance for loan losses 15 adequate as ol December 31, 2009 and 2018, While
management uses currenl mlormation o recognize losses on loans, [uture additions o the allowance [or loan losses may
be necessary based on changes in cconomic conditions in the market area or other [actors,

In addition, various regulatory agencies, as an mtegral part of their examination process, periodically review the Bank’s
allowance for loan losses. Such agencies may require the Bank 1o effeet certain changes that result in additions to the
allowance based on their judgments about mformation available to them at the tme of their examinations.

Significant group concentrations of credit risk

Most of the Bank s activities are with customers located within the Mercer County, New Jersey, and surrounding areas as
well as five boroughs of New York City and certain Philadelphia, Pennsylvania metropolitan areas. The Bank does not
have any portion ol its business dependent on a single or hmited number of customers or industries, the loss of which
would have a material adverse efTect on its business. No substantial portion of loans is concentrated within a single industry
or group of related industries, except that a significant majority of commercial loans are secured by real estate. There are

58

The Bank of Princeton

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

numerous risks associated with commercial and consumer lending that could impact the borrowers™ ability to repay on a
tumely basis. They include but are not limited to: the owner’'s business expertise, changes in local, national, and in some
cases international economies, competition, governmental regulation, and the general financial stability of the borrowing
entity,

Transfers of financial assets

Transfers of financial assets, including loan and loan participation sales, are accounted for as sales when control over the
assets has been surrendered. Control over transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when (1) the assets have been
isolated from the Bank, (2) the transferee obtains the right, free of conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of
that right, to pledge or exchange the translerred assets, and (3) the Bank does not maintain efTective control over the
transferred assets through an agreement to repurchase them belore their maturity.

Cash and due from banks

Cash and due from banks include cash on hand, on deposit at other linancial institutions and the Federal Reserve Bank of

Philadelphia.

Securities

The Bank’s investment portlolio includes both held-to-maturity and available-lor-sale securities:

fHeld-to-Maturity - Investment sceurities thal management has the positive intent and ability 1o hold unul maturity are
classified as held-to-maturity and carried at their remaining unpaid principal balance, net ol unamortized premiums or
unacereled discounts. Premiums are amortized and discounts are acereted using the interest method over the estimated
remaining lerm of the underlying security.

Available-for-Sale - Investment securities that will be held for indefinite periods of time, including securities that may be
sold m response to changes in market interest or prepayment rates, needs for liquidity, and changes in the availability and
the yield of alternative investments, are classified as available-for-sale. These assets are carried at their estimated fair
value. Fair values are based on quoted prices for identical assets in active markets, quoted prices for similar assets in
markets that are either actively or not actively traded, or in some cases where there is limited activity or less transparency
around mputs, intemally developed discounted cash flow models. Unrealized gains and losses are excluded from earnings
and are reported net of ax in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) on the consolidated statements of financial
condition untl realized, mcluding those recognized through the non-credit component of an OTTI charge.

The Bank evaluates its securities portfolio for OTTI throughout the vear. Each investment, having a fair value less than
the book value, is reviewed on a quarterly basis by management. Management considers, at a minimum, whether the
following factors exist that, both individually or in combination, could indicate that the decline 15 other-than-temporary:
ia) the Bank has the intent to sell the security; (b) it is more likely than not that it will be required to sell the security before
recovery; and (c) the Bank does not expect to recover the entire amortized cost basis of the security. Among the factors
that are considered in determining the Bank’s intent are capital adequacy, interest rate risk profile and liquidity at the Bank.
An impairment charge is recorded against individual securities if the review described above concludes that the decline in
value is other-than-temporary. During 2019 and 2018, it was determined that there were no other-than-temporarily
impaired investments.

Restricted Investment in Bank Stock

Resineted stock meludes Federal Home Loan Bank of New York stock and Atlantic Community Baneshares, Ine. stock
that are considered restricted as w marketability and recorded at cost. These secunities are evaluated [or impaimment each
reporting period.
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Loans Receivable

Loans receivable that management has the intent and ability to hold until maturity or payott are reported at their outstanding
unpaid principal balances, net of an allowance for loan losses, and deferred fees and costs. Interest income is accrued on
the unpaid principal balance. Loan origination fees, net of certain direct origination costs, are deferred and recognized as
an adjustment of the yield on the relaied loans. Premiums and discounts on purchased loans are amortized as adjusiments
to interest income using the level-yield method.

The loan receivable portfolio is segmenied into commereial real estate (includes mulii-family), commercial and industrial,
construction, residential first-lien morigage, home equity and consumer loan segments.

For all segments of loans receivable, the acerual of interest is discontinued when the contractual payment of principal or
mterest 1s 90 days past due or management has serious doubts about [urther collectability of principal or interest, even
though the loan is currently performing. A loan may remain on acerual status 1011 1s in the process ol collection and is
either guaraniced or well-secured. When a loan 15 placed on nonacerual status, unpaid interest credited 1o income in the
current year is reversed and unpaid interest accrued in prior vears is charged against the allowance for loan losses. Interest
received on nonaccrual loans, including impaired loans, generally is either applied against principal or reported as interest
income, according to management’s judgment as to the collectability of principal. Generally, loans are restored to accrual
status when the obligation is brought current, has performed in accordance with the contractual terms for a reasonable
period of time (generally six months) and the ultimate collectability of the total contractual principal and interest is no
longer in doubt. The past due status of all segments of loans receivable is determined on coniractual due dates for loan
payments.

Allowance for credit losses

The allowance for credit losses consists of the allowance for loan losses and the reserve for unfunded lending
commitments. The allowance for loan losses represents management’s estimate of losses inherent in the loan portiolio as
of the balance sheet date and is recorded as a reduction to loans. The reserve for unfunded lending commitments represents
management’s estimate of losses inherent in its unfunded loan commitments and is recorded in other liabilities on the
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition. The allowance for loan losses is increased by the provision for loan
losses, and decreased by charge-offs, net of recoveries. Loans deemed to be uncollectible are charged against the
allowance for loan losses, and subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance. All, or part, of the principal
balance of loans receivable are charged off to the allowance as soon as it 1s determined that the repayment of all, or part,
of the principal balance is highly unlikely.

The allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level considered adequate to provide for probable losses. The Bank
performs, at least quarterly, an evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance. The allowance is based on past loan loss
experience {(which s bound by the Bank’s limited operating history), known and inherent nisks in the portfolio, adverse
situations that may affect the borrower’s ability to repay, the estimated value of any underlying collateral, the composition
of the loan portfolio, current economic conditions and other relevant factors. This evaluation is inherently subjective as 1t
requires material estimates that may be susceptible to significant revision as more information becomes available.
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The allowance consists ol specific, general and unallocated components. The specific component relates to loans that are
classified as impaired. For loans that are classified as impaired, an allowance is established when the discounted cash
Nows (or collateral value or observable market price) of the impaired loan 1s lower than the carrying value of that loan. The
general component covers pools of loans by loan segment, including loans not considered impaired, as well as smaller
balance homogeneous loans, such as residential morigage, home equity and consumer loans. These pools of loans are
evaluated for loss exposure based upon historical loss rates for each of these loan segments, adjusted for qualitative factors.
These qualitative nisk factors include:

I. Lending policies and procedures, including underwriting standards and collection, charge-off, and recovery
practices;

2. National, regional, and local cconomic and business conditions, as well as the condition of various market
segments, including the value of underlying collateral for collateral-dependent loans;

3. Nature and volume of the portfolio and terms of loans;

4. Expenence, ability, and depth of lending management and stall;

5. Volume and severity of past due, classified and nonaccrual loans, as well as other loan modifications;
6. Quality of the Bank’s loan review system, and the degree ol oversight by the Bank’s board ol directors;
7. Existence and elTeet ol any concentrations ol credit and changes in the level ol such concentrations;

8. Changes in the value ol underlying collateral for collateral-dependent loans; and

9. Effect of external factors, such as competition and legal and regulatory requirements.

The Bank determines the allowance for loan losses by portfolio segment, which consists of commercial real estate loans,
commercial and industrial loans, construction loans, residential firsi-lien mortgage loans, home equity and consumer loans.
The Bank estimates the inherent risk of loss on all loans by portfolio segment, based primanly on the risk factors identified
above and by applying a weight factor ranging from 4 bps (low risk) to 24 bps (severely high risk) to each element for
each portfolio segment.

Each factor 1s assigned a value to reflect improving, stable or declining conditions based on management’s best judgment
using relevant information available at the time of the evaluation. Adjustments to the factors are supported through
documentation of changes in conditions in a narrative accompanying the allowance for loan loss calculation.

Residental first-lien mortgage loans and home equity loans involve certain risks such as interest rate risk and risk of non-
repayment. Adjustable-rate loans decrease the interest rate risk to the Bank that is associated with changes in interesi rates
but involve other risks, primarily because as interest rates rise, the payment by the borrower rises to the extent permitted
by the terms of the loan, thereby increasing the potential for default, At the same time, the marketability of the underlying
property may be adversely alfected by higher interest rates. Repayment risk can be alTected by job loss, divoree, illness
and personal bankruptcy of the borrower.

Construction lending is generally considered to involve a high degree of risk due to the concentration of principal in a
limited number of loans and borrowers and the ellects ol general cconomic conditions on developers  and
builders. Morcover, a construction loan can involve additional risks because of the inherent difficulty in estimating both
a property’s value at completion of the project and the estimated cost, including interest, of the project. The nature of these
loans 1s such that they are gencrally dilficult to evaluate and monitor, In addition, speculative construction loans 1o a
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builder are not necessarily for projects which are pre-sold or leased, and thus pose a greater potential risk to the Bank
than construction loans to individuals on their personal residences.

Commercial real estate lending entails significant additional nisks as compared with single-family residential real estate
lending. Such loans typically involve large loan balances to single borrowers or groups of related borrowers. The payment
experience on such loans is typically dependent on the successtul operation of the real estate project. The success of such
projects is sensitive to changes in supply and demand conditions in the market for commercial real estate as well as
economic conditions generally.

Commercial and industnial lending 15 generally considered higher nisk due to the concentration of principal in a limited
number ol loans and borrowers and the ellects of general cconomie conditions on the business. Commercial business

detaulted commercial business loan will not provide an adequate source of repayment of the outstanding loan balance.

Consumer loans generally have shorter terms and higher interest rates than other lending but generally involve more eredit
risk because of the type and nature of the collateral and, in certain cases, the absence of collateral. In addition, consumer
lending collections are dependent on the borrower's continuing Nmancial stability, and thus are more likely 1o be adversely
aflected by job loss, divoree, illness and personal bankrupiley. In most cases, any repossessed collateral for a defauled
consumer loan will not provide an adequate source of repayment of the outstanding loan balance.

An unallocated component of the allowance for loan losses 1s mamtained o cover uncertaintics that could afTect
management's estimate of probable losses. The unallocated component of the allowance reflects the margin of imprecision
inherent in the underlying assumptions used in the methodologies for estimating specilic and general losses in the portlolio,

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that the Bank will be unable
to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the contractual terms of the loan
agreement, Factors considered by management in determining impairment include payment status, collateral value and
the probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due. Loans that experience insignificant
payment delays and payment shorifalls generally are not classified as impaired loans. Management determines the
significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration all of the
circumsiances surrounding the loan and the borrower, including the length of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the
borrower’s prior payment record and the amount of the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed. Impairment
is measured on a loan-by-loan basis for commercial real estate loans, commercial and industrial loans and construction
loans by either the present value of expected future cash Nows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate or the fair
value of the loan collateral if the loan is collateral-dependent. An allowance for loan losses is established for an impaired
loan if its carrying value exceeds its estimated fair value, The estimated fair values of substantially all of the Bank's
impaired loans are measured based on the estimated fair value of the loan’s collateral, less cosis 1o sell the property.

For commercial real estate loans, estimated fair values of the real estate collateral are determined primarily through third-
party appraisals. When a real estate-secured loan becomes impaired, a decision is made regarding whether an updated
appraisal of the real estate is necessary. This decision is based on various considerations, including the age of the most
recent appraisal, the loan-to-value ratio based on the oniginal appraisal and the condition ol the property. Appraised values
are discounted to arrive at the estimated selling price of the collateral, which is considered 1o be the estimated [air
value. The discounts also include estimated costs to sell the property.

For commercial and industrial loans secured by non-real estate collateral, such as accounts receivable and inventory and
equipment, estimated fair values are determined based on the borrower’s financial statements, inventory reports, accounts
receivable aging or equipment appraisals or mvoices, Indications of value [rom these sources are generally discounted
based on the age ol the linancial information or the quality ol the assets.
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Large groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans are collectively evaluated for impairment. Accordingly, the Bank
does not separately identify individual residential first-lien mortgage loans, home equity loans and consumer loans for
impairment, unless such loans are a troubled debt restructuring,

Loans with modified terms are classified as troubled debt restructurings if the Bank grants borrower concessions and it 1s
deemed that those borrowers are experiencing financial difficulty. Concessions granted under a troubled debt restructuring
generally involve a temporary reduction in interest rate or an extension of a loan’s stated maturity date.

Nonaccrual troubled debt restructurings are restored to acerual status if principal and interest payments, under the modified
terms, are current for six consecutive months after modification. Loans classified as troubled debi restructurings are
designated as impaired.

The allowance calculation methodology includes further segregation of loan segments into risk-rating categories. The
borrower’s overall financial condition, repayment sources, guarantors and value of collateral, if appropriate, are evaluated
annually for commercial loans or when credit deficiencies anse, such as delinquent loan payments, for commercial and
COonsumer Il'lﬂ.l'lS.

Credit quality nsk ratings iclude regulatory classifications of special mention, substandard, doubtful and loss. Loans
classified special mention have potential weaknesses that deserve management’s close attention. If uncorrected, the
potential weaknesses may result in deterioration of the repayment prospects. Loans classified substandard have a well-
defined weakness or weaknesses that jeopardize the liquidation of the debt. They include loans that are inadequately
protected by the current sound net worth and paying capacity of the obligor or of the collateral pledged, if any. Loans
classified doubtful have all the weaknesses inherent in loans classified substandard with the added characteristic that
collection or hiquidation in full, on the basis of current conditions and facts, 1s highly improbable. Loans classified loss
are considered uncollectible and are charged-off to the allowance for loan losses. Loans not classified are rated pass.

Based on management’s comprehensive analysis of the loan portfolio, management believes the allowance lor loan losses
1s adequate at the reported dates.

Bank-owned life insurance

The Bank is the beneticiary of insurance policies on the lives of certain officers of the Bank. This life insurance investment
15 accounted For using the cash surrender value method and 1s recorded at its net reahzable value. Increase in cash surrender
values are recorded as non-interest income.

Other real estate owned

Assets acquired through, or in lieu of, loan foreclosure are held for sale and are initially recorded at fair value less cost to
sell at the date of foreclosure, establishing a new cost basis. Subsequent to foreclosure, valuations are periodically
performed by management and the assets are then recorded at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost o sell.
Revenue and expenses from operations and write-downs are included in non-interest expense.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, Net

Crondwill represents the excess cost over the dentiliable net assets ol businesses acquired, The Bank's intangible assel
was derived from core deposits acquired that has a definitive life and 15 amortized over the estimated life. Both goodwill
and the core deposit intangible asset is reviewed for impairment annually or when events and circumstances indicate that
an impairment may have occurred.
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Premises and equipment

Bank premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed on the straight-
line method over the shorter of the lease term or estimated useful lives of the related assets.

Accrued interest receivable and other assets

Accrued interest receivable and other assets include acerued interest receivable, prepaid assets and other assets.

Restricted Stock

Federal law requires a member institution of the Federal [lome Loan Bank (“FIILB") system to hold restricted stock of its
district Federal Home Loan Bank according 1o a predetermined formula, Restricted stock in the amount of 51.2 million
and 53.5 million is carried at cost al December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Management’s determination of whether these mmvestments are impaired 15 based on an assessment of the ultimate
recoverability of their cost, rather than by recognizing temporary declines in value.  The determination of whether a dechine
affects the ultimate recoverability of cost is influenced by criteria such as (1) the significance of the decline in net assets
ol the FHLB as compared 1o the capital stock amount for the FILB and the length of time this situation has persisted, (2)
commitments by the FHLIB to make payments required by law or regulation and the level of such payments in relation to
the operating performance of the FIILB and (3) the impact of legislative and regulatory changes on institutions and,
accordingly, on the customer base of the FIILE,

The Bank also held $100,000 of stock in Atlantic Community Bancshares, Inc. (“"ACBB™) at December 31, 2019 and
2018,

Management believes no impairment charge is necessary related to the FHLB resiricted stock or the ACBB resiricted stock
as of December 31, 2019 or 2018,

Income taxes

The Bank accounts for income taxes in accordance with income tax accounting guidance contained in FASB ASC Topic
740, Income Taxes. This includes guidance related to accounting for uncertainty in income taxes, which sets out a
consistent framework to determine the appropriaie level of tax reserves 1o maintain for uncertain tax positions. The Bank
had no material unrecognized tax benefits or accrued interest and penalties as of and for the yvears ended December 31,
2019 and 2018, The Bank’s policy is to account for interest and penalties as a component of other non-interest expense,
The Bank is subject to income taxes in the U. S, and various state and local jurisdictions. As of December 31, 2019, tax
years after 2016 are subject to federal examination and tax years after 2014 to state examination. Tax regulations are
subject to interpretation of the related tax laws and regulations and require significant judgment to apply.

Iederal and state income taxes have been provided on the basis of reported income or loss. The amounts reflected on the
tax returns dilfer from these provisions due principally to temporary dillerences in the reporting ol certain items lor
linancial reporting and income tax reporting purposes. The tax effeet of these temporary differences is accounted for as
deferred taxes applicable to future periods.

Deferred income tax expense or benefit is determined by recognizing deferred tax liabilities and assets, respectively, Tor
the estimated future tax consequences atiributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of
existing assels and habilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and habilities are measured using enacted
lax rates expectled o apply to laxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected 1o be recovered
or seftled. The etfect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in earnings in the period
that includes the enactment date. The realization of deferred tax assceis 1s assessed and a valuation allowance provided [or
the full amount which is not more likely than not o be realized.
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Public law No. 115-97, originally known as the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act and now called H. R 1 (the "Tax Act"), enacted on
December 22, 2017, reduced the U S, federal corporate tax rate from 35% to 21% effective January 1, 2018, Also, on

December 22, 2017, the Securities and Exchange Commission 1ssued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 118 (“SAB 1187),
which provides guidance on accounting for tax effects of the Tax Act. SAB 118 provides a measurement period of up to
one year from the enactment date to complete the accounting. Any adjustments during this measurement period will be
included in net earnings from continuing operations as an adjustment to income tax expense in the reporting period when
such adjustmenis are determined. Based on the information available and current interpretation of the rules, the Bank
estimated the impact of the reduction in the corporate tax rate and remeasurement of certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities. The provisional amount recorded in the Tourth quarter of 2017 related 1o the remeasurement of the Bank's
deferred tax balance resulied in additional income tax expense of $40,000. As of December 31, 2018, management has
concluded its assessment and determined no additional adjusiment was required.

On July 1, 2018, New Jersey enacted legislation which adds to the state’s 9.0% Corporation Business Tax rate (1) a 2.5%
surtax for periods beginning in 2018 and 2019 and (11) a 1.5% surtax for perods beginming in 2020 and 2021, These
surtaxes apply to corporations with more than 81 million of net income allocated to New Jersey and expire beginning
2022 Also, for periods beginning in 2017, New Jersey has reduced the dividends-received deduction from 100% 10 95%
for certain dividend income received by a corporation from a subsidiary that s at least 80% owned by the corporation.
Eitective in 2019, New Jersey has adopted combined income tax reporting for certain members of a commonly-controlled
unitary business group. These changes will increase the Bank’s New Jersey state income tax expense in future periods, and
we are currently evaluating how these changes will impact the Bank's taxes.

In December 2019, the State of New Jersey issued a clarifying technical bulletin related to the impact of the new tax
legislation enacted in July 2018, This technical bulletin provided claritication to the combined income tax reporting for
certain members of a unitary business group. Accordingly, this required a revaluation of some of the Bank’s deferred tax
assets. The Bank recorded state deferred tax expense in the amount of approximately 5117000, during the year ended
December 31, 2009,

Off-balance sheet financial instruments

In the ordinary course of business, the Bank has entered mto off-balance sheet financial instruments consisting of
commitments to extend credit and letters of credit. Such financial mstruments are recorded n the statement of financial
condition when they are funded.

Employee benefit plan

The Bank sponsors a 401(k) plan into which all employees are eligible to contribuie the maximum allowed by the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. The Bank may make discretionary matching contributions. The Bank made matching
contributions to employees of $163,000, $150,000 and $1 15,000, respectively during the years ended December 31, 2019,
2018 and 2017.

Stock compensation plans

The stock compensation accounting guidance set forth in FASB ASC Topic T8, Compensartion - Stock Compensation,
requires that compensation costs relating o share-based payment transactions be recognized in financial statements. That
cost will be measured based on the grant date fair value of the equity or liability instruments issued. The stock compensation
accounting guidance covers a wide range ol share-based compensation arrangements including stock options, restricted
share plans, performance-based awards, share appreciation rights, and employee share purchase plans.
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The stock compensation accounting guidance requires that compensation costs for all stock awards be calculated and
recognized over the employees” service period, generally defined as the vesting period. For awards with graded vesting,
compensation cost is recognized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period for the entire award. A Black-
Scholes model 1s used to estimate the fair value of stock options. An option is considered to be forfeited, if the grant stock
option were not exercised prior to vesting, At the date of grant, the Bank estimates the forfeiture rate as part of its initial
determination of the fair-value of options granted and then adjusts forfeitures as they occur.

Earnings per share

Basic carmings per share amounts are caleulated by dividing income available to common stockholders by the weighted
average common shares outstanding during the period, and exclude any dilutive effects of stock options and warrants.
Diluted earmings per share amounts include the dilutive elleets of stock options and warrants whose exercise price 1s less
than the market price of the Bank's shares. Diluted carmings per share amounts are caleulated by dividing income available
to common stockholders by the weighted average common shares outstanding during the period if options and warrants
were exercised and converted imto common stock, using the treasury stock method,

Advertising costs

The Bank charges the costs ol advertising Lo expense as incurred.

Comprehensive income

Accounting principles generally require that recognized revenues, expenses, gains and losses be included in net income.
Although certain changes in assets and habilities, such as unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale secunties, are
reported as a separate component of the equity section of the consolidated statements of financial condition, such items,
along with net income, are components of comprehensive income. Accumulated other comprehensive income is comprised
of net unrealized holding gains and losses, net of taxes, on available-for-sale secunties. Realized gains or losses are
reclassified out of aceumulated other comprehensive income when the underlying security i1s sold, based upon the specific
identification method.

Adoption of New Accounting Standards

In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU No, 2017-04, “Infangibles — Goodwill and other (Topic 3500 — Simplifving the
Test for Goodwill Impaivmeni” These amendments eliminate Step 2 from the goodwill impairment test. The amendments
also eliminate the requirements for any reporting unit with a zero or negative carrying amount to perform a qualitative
assessment and, it it fails that qualitative test, to perform Step 2 of the goodwill impairment test. An entity still has the
option to perform the qualitative assessment for a reporting unit to determine if the quantitative impairment test is
necessary. The guidance is effective for annual or any mterim goodwill impairment tests in fiscal years beginming afier
December 15, 20019, Early adoption is permitted for interim or annual goodwill impairment test performed on testing dates
after January 1, 2017 ASU 2017-04 should be adopted on a prospective basis. The Bank completed its acquisition of five
branches during the 2* quarter of 2019, when the Bank recorded $8.9 million in goodwill and $4.2 million in core deposit
ntangible in connection with the transaction,

In March 2017, the FASD issued ASU No. 2017-08 “Receivables — Nonrefundable Fees and Other Cost {Subtopic 310-
200, Preminm Amortization on Purchased Callable Debt Secuvities.” These amendments shorten the amortization perniod
for certain callable debt securities held at a premium. Specifically, the amendments require the premium to be amortized
to the earliest call date. The amendments do not require an accounting change for securities held at a discount; the discount
continues o be amortized (o matunty. The guidance 15 elTective Tor public business entities for liscal years, and mierim
periods within those liscal years beginning alter December 15, 2018, Early adoption 1s permitted including adoption n an
interim period. If an entity early adopts in an interim period, any adjustments should be reflected as of the beginning of
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the fiscal yvear that includes the interim period. The amendments should be applied on a modified retrospective basis, with
a cumulative-effect adjustment direcily to retained carmings as of the beginming of the peniod of adoption. The Bank
assessed the impact of ASU-2017-08 and it did not have a material impact.

In June 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-07, Compensation — Stock Compensation ( Topic T18), which simplified the
accounting for nonemployee share-based payment transactions. The amendments in this update expand the scope of Topic
718 to mclude share-based payment transactions for acquiring goods and services from nonemployees. The amendments
in this Update improve the following areas of nonemployee share-based payvment accounting: (a) the overall measurement
objective, (b) the measurement date, (¢) awards with performance conditions, (d) classification reassessment of certain
equity-classified awards, (¢) caleulated value (nonpublic entities only), and (f) intrinsic value (nonpublic entities only).
The amendments in this Update are effective for public business entities for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2018, including interim periods within that fiscal yvear. For all other entities, the amendmenis are effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2019, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020, The Bank
does not anticipate the adoption of the standard will have a significant impact on the Bank's financial position or results of
operations.

The FASB issued Update No. 2016-02, “Leases”, in February 2016, From the lessee’s perspective, the new standard
establishes a right-of-use (“ROU™) model that requires a lessee to record a ROU asset and a lease liability on the balance
sheet for all leases with terms longer than 12 months. Leases will be classified as either a finance or operating, with
classification affecting the pattern of expenses recognition in the incomes statement for lessees. The guidance also
eliminates the current real estate-specific provision and changes guidance on sale-leascback transactions, initial direct costs
and lease executory costs.  For public companies, this update is effective for interim and annual periods beginning afier
December 15, 2018 and is to be applied on a modified retrospective basis. The Bank elected certain optional practical
expedients, such as grandfathering operating leases, re-evaluating embedded leases for service contracis and reassess initial
direct costs. The Bank adopted the use-of-hindsight practical expedient and re-evaluated the lease terms including the
option periods that are likely to be exercised. The Bank leases its main office and branch, nine additional branch locations
and operational departments under operating leases that resulied in recognition of lease assets and lease habilities on the
consolidated balance sheets under the update. The Bank recorded $12.8 million ROU and $13.1 million on the consolidated
balance sheets under the update. The $274.000 difference was a result of a reduction to the ROU related to the lease
liability carried at December 31, 2018 and the remaining 219,000 was recorded as a reduction to retained earnings. The
Bank maintained its well capital status as a result of the adoption of the new standard.

Update 2018-11- Leases (topic 842): Targeted improvements provided an additional/optional transition method to adopt
the new leases standard. Prior to this ASU issuance, a modified retrospective transition approach was required. The Bank
plans to adopt this optional transition method and the cumulative-etfect adjustment to our opening retained earnings
balance is expected to be immaterial at Janvary 1, 2019, The adoption of this ASU will no materially impact our
Consolidated Statement of Financial Condition and Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholder’s Equity. Update
2018-20- Leases (topic 842): Narrow-Scope Improvements for Lessors was released to better clarify the treatment of sales
taxes and other similar taxes related to Lessor and Lessees cost and payments. The amendments in this update permit
lessors, as an accounting policy election, o not evaluate whether certaim sales taxes and other similar taxes are lessor cosls,
Instead, those lessors will account for those costs as il they are lessee costs. Also, certam lessor cost requires lessors o
exclude from vanable payments, and therelore revenue, lessor costs paid by lessees directly o third parties. The Bank's
lessor income 1s immaterial; as such, this ASU will not have matenal impact on our Consolidated Statement ol Financial
Condition or Consohidated Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Accounting Standard Pending Adoption

In June 20016, the FASB has issued ASU 20016-13, “Financial Insiriments - Credic Losses,” as amended, which amends
the Board's  gwdance on the impairment ol lnancial mstruments. The amended guidance requires linancial assels
measured al amortized cost (o be presented at the net amount expected to be collected. The allowance For credit losses will
represent a valuation account that 1s deducted from the amortized cost basis of the linancial assets o present their net
carrying value at the amount expected 1o be collected. The income statement will reflect the measurement of credit losses
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for newly recognized financial assets as well as expected increases or decreases of expected credit losses that have taken Options and warranis to purchase 514 827 shares of common stock at a weighted average exercise price of $16.90 were
place during the period. When determining the allowance, expected credit losses over the contractual term of the financial included in the computation of diluted earings per share for the year ended December 31, 2018, Options to purchase 70,875
assel(s) (taking into account prepayments) will be estimated considering relevant information about past events, current shares of common stock at a weighted average exercise price of 832,69 were nol included in the computation of diluted eamings
conditions, and reasonable and supportable forecasts that affect the collectability of the reported amount. The amended per share because the exercise price equaled or exceeded the fair value of our common stock at December 31, 2018,
guidance also requires recording an allowance for credit losses for purchased financial assets with a more-than-insignificant
amount of credit deterioration since origination. The initial allowance for these assets will be added to the purchase price Options and warrants to purchase 573,152 shares of common stock at a weighted average exercise price of 51530 were included
at acquisition rather than being reported as an expense. Subsequent changes in the allowance will be recorded through the in the computation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended December 31, 2017, Options to purchase 43,375 shares of
income statement as an expense adjustment. In addition, the amended guidance requires credit losses relating to available- common stock at a weighted average exercise price of $32.00 were not included in the computation of diluted camings per
for-sale debt securities to be recorded through an allowance for credit losses. The caleulation of credit losses for available- share because the exercise price equaled or exceeded the fair value of our common stock at December 31, 2017,
for-sale securities will be similar to how it 1s determined under existing guidance. In October 2019, the FASBE affirmed its
decision to extend the deadline to implement this ASU. For public entities that are SEC filers, excluding Smaller Reporting Note 3 — Investment Securities
Companies, this ASU is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15,
2019. However, for Smaller Reporting Companies, such as the Bank, this ASU is effective for fiscal years, and interim The following summarizes the amortized cost and estimated fair value of securities available-for-sale with gross unrealized
periods within those fiscal vears, beginning afier December 15, 2022, The Bank is assessing the new guidance to determine gains and losses therein:

what modifications to existing credit estimation processes may be required.  The Bank is in the initial stages of evaluating
the effect of this standard on its consolidated financial statements. The Bank engage a third-party vendor to assist in meeting

the requirements under ASU 2016-13. The Bank is in the process of evaluating the different assumptions scenarios and December 31, 2019
formulate different measurements. The Bank believes it will be incompliance as of January 1, 2023, Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
In Augusi 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-13, Fair Value Measurement { Topic 820): Disclosure Framework — Changes Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
the Disclosure Requirements for Fair Value Measuremenis. The Update removes the requirement to disclose the amount {Dollars in thousands)

of and reasons for transfers between Level [ and Level 11 of the fair value hierarchy; the policy for timing of transfers
between levels; and the valuation processes for Level I fair value measurementis. The Update requires disclosure of
changes in unrealized gains and losses for the period included in other comprehensive income (loss) for recurring Level

Available-for-sale:
Mortgage-backed securities-1.5.

I1I fair value measurements held at the end of the reporting period and the range and weighted average of significant :;g;h’:::::;E::I::::“:;ﬂ Enterprises (GSEs) : 55,6 d 414 d (140) ' § 35,931
unobservable inputs used to develop Level 111 fair value measurements. This Update is effective for all entities for fiscal : !.’, T

. . S AR : ; political subdivisions 55,777 794 (210) 56,361
years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2019, The Bank is currently evaluating
the i . : e e : . : : Total 3 111.454 5 1,208 5 (350) § 112312

e impact the adoption of the standard will have on the Bank’s financial position or results of operations.
Note 2 — Earnings Per Share December 31, 2018
i F 1 el T . g : 1 e sroechare it G]‘D!& Gﬂlﬁﬁ
Ihe following schedule presents carmings per share data: Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cuost Gains Losses Fair Value

Y ded her 31, .
cars ended December {Dollars in thousands)

019 L ES 017 Available-for-sale:
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) Mortigage-backed secunties-U.5.

Met income applicable to common stockholders $10,142 $14.708 S11,014 Government Sponsored Enterprises (GSEs) — § 46,954 $ 129 $ (611 § 46472

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding 6,731 6,628 5,497 Obligations of state and

Basic earnings per share %1.51 £2.22 52,00 political subdivisions 45,387 113 {291) 45,209
Total 5 92,341 b3 242 b (902 § 91,681

Net income applicable 1o common stockholders $10,142 514,708 511,014

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding 6,731 6,628 5497

Dilutive elTect of potential common shares 165 244 290

Weighted average number of diluted commeon shares outstanding 6,896 6.872 5,787

Diluted carnings per share $1.47 $2.14 S1.90

Options and warrants 1o purchase 360,750 shares ol common stock at a weighted average exercise price of $15.95 were

ncluded in the computation of diluted carmings per share lor the year ended December 31, 2009, Options o purchase 101,875
shares ol common stock al a weighted average exercise price ol 332,45 were nol included in the computation of diluted carmings
per share because the exercise price equaled or exceeded the fair value of our common stock al December 31, 2009,
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Note 3 — Investment Securities (Continued)

The unrealized losses, categorized by the length of time in a continuous loss position, and the fair value of related securities

available-for-sale as of December 31, 2019 are as follows:

Less than 12 Months More than 12 Months Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
(Dollars in thousands)
Mortgage-backed
securities-11.5.
CGovernment Sponsored
Enterprises (GSEs) s 21,479 s (s s 3148 S (33) b 24,627 s (140
Obligations of state and
political subdivisions 12,650 (2109 - - 12,650 (2109
Total s 34,129 5 (315) = 3048 % (35) § 37277 5 (350

The unrealized losses, categorized by the length of time in a continuous loss position, and the fair value of related securities

available-for-sale as of December 31, 2018 are as [ollows:

Less than 12 Months More than 12 Months Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
(Dollars in thousands)
Mortgage-hacked
securities-11.5.
CGovernment Sponsored
Enterprises (GSEs) s 4,289 s (18) s 34869 S (593) b 39,158 s (611)
Obligations of state and
political subdivisions 12,602 (137) 7,893 (154) 20,495 (291)
Total S 16,891 S (155) S 42,762 8§ (747) b 59,653 S (902)

Al December 31, 2019, there were 55 securities in the less-than-twelve-months category and 13 secunties in the more-than
twelve-month category for the secunities available-for-sale portfolio. Included in the 55 securities i the less than twelve-
months category are 23 mortigage-backed secunities and 32 municipal debt obligations. Included in the 13 securities in the
more-than twelve-month category are 13 morigage-backed securities.

The Bank does not intend to sell these securities and it 1s not more likely than not that we will be required to sell these securities.
Unrealized losses primarily relate to interest rate fluctuations and not credit-related criteria. No OTTI charges were recorded
for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2018,

Al December 31, 2008, there were 65 sceunties in the more-than-twelve-months category and 42 secuntics in the less-than
twelve-month category [or the secuntics available-lor-sale portfoho, Included in the 65 securitics i the twelve-months-or-
more calegory are 47 morlgage-backed secuntics and 18 municipal debt obligations. Included in the 42 sccunities in the less-
than twelve-month category are 14 morgage-backed secunities and 28 mumicipal debt obligations.

The amortized cost and estimated air value of securities available-lor-sale at December 31, 2019 by contractual maturity are

shown below. Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities as borrowers may have the right to call or prepay
obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties:
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Amortized
Cost Fair Value
(Dollars in thousands)

Due in one year or less b 902 S8 903
Due after one vear through five vears 15,104 15,213
Due afier five years through ten years 28,996 29,384
Due after ten years 66,452 66,812

Total $ 111,454 8 112,312

The following summarizes the amortized cost and estimated fair value of securities held-to-maturity with gross unrealized gains
and losses therein:

December 31, 2009
Gross Gross
Amaortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

(Dollars in thousands)
Held-to-maturity:
Mortgage-backed securities-1.5.
Government Sponsored Enterprises (GSEs) 8 222 b 14 5 - 5 236

All securities held-to-maturity are due after ten years,

The following summarizes the amortized cost and estimated fair value of securities held-to-maturity with gross unrealized gains
and losses therein:

December 31, 2008

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Yalue
{Daollars in thousands)
Held-to-maturity:
Mortgage-backed securities-U.5.
Government Sponsored Enterprises (GSEs) 8 228 s 8 8 - 5 236

There were no sales of securities available-for-sale for the twelve months ended December 31, 2019, Proceeds from the calls
and maturities of securities available-for-sale amounted to 516.4 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 2019,
which included approximately 331,000 in gross realized gains. There were no sales of secunties available-for-sale for the
twelve months ended December 31, 2018, Proceeds from the calls and maturities of securities available-for-sale amounted to
$5.5 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 2018, which included approximately $1.000 in gross realized gains,

There were no securitics pledged as collateral for NJ Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act (“GUDPA™) deposits al

December 31, 2019, There were no securities pledged as collateral for NI Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act
(GUDPA™Y deposits at December 31, 2018,
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Note 4 — Loans Receivable
Loans receivable, net were comprised of the following:

December 31,

December 31,

2019 2018
{Dollars in thousands)

Commercial real estate S 853876 % 729336
Commercial and industrial 43,504 71,838
Construction 139 789 161,275
Residential first-lien morigage 89,067 102,008
Home equity 12,959 17,048
Consumer 794 1,987

Total loans 1.189 989 1,083 492
Deferred fees and costs (3.419) (2.313%)
Allowance for loan losses (12,557} (11,944)

Loans, net g 1.174.013 5§ 1.069.235

The following table presents nonacerual loans by segment of the loan portiolio:

December 31,
2019

December 31,
2018

{Dollars in thousands)

Commercial real estate 8 2071 % 2,968

Commercial and industrial - 2,196

Construction 371 487

Home equity - 48

Total b 2442 % 5.699
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Note 4 — Loans Receivable (Continue)

The following table summarizes information in regard to impaired loans by loan portfolio segment, segregated by those for
which a related allowance was required and those for which a related allowance was not necessary, as of December 31, 2019
and the year then ended:

Unpaid Average Interest
Principal Recorded Related Recorded Income
Balance Investment Allowance Investment Recognized

(Dollars in thousands)
With no related allowance

recorded:

Commercial real estate 5 11.240 8605 % - % 9868 S 325
Commercial and industrial 2.126 - - T6H6 54
Construction - - - - -
Residential first-lien mortgage 607 604 - 622 22
Home cquity 168 169 - 213 16
Consumer - - - - -

Total 14,141 9383 - 11.46% 417

With an allowance recorded:

Commercial real estate 2.299 2,173 220 2.605 50
Commercial and industrial - - - - -
Construction 371 371 209 381 -

Residential first-lien mortgage - - . - -
Home equity 5 - - - -

Consumer - - - - -

Total 2,670 2.544 429 2986 50

Total:

Commercial real estate 13,539 10,778 220 12,473 375
Commercial and industrial 2,126 - - Toh 54
Construction 37l 371 209 381 -
Residential first-lien morigage 607 604 - 622 22
Home equity 168 1649 - 213 16
Consumer - - - - -

Taotal 5 16,811 5§ 11,927 § 429 5 14,455 8 467
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The Bank of Princeton

The following table summarizes mformation in regard to impaired loans by loan portfolio segment, segregated by those for
which a related allowance was required and those for which a related allowance was not necessary, as of December 31, 2018

and the vear then ended:

With no related allowance
recorded:
Commercial real estate
Commercial and industrial
Construction
Residential Oirst-lien morigage
Home cquity
Consumer
Total

With an allowance recorded:
Commercial real estate
Commercial and industrial
Construction
Residential firsi-lien morigage
Home equity
Consumer

Total

Total:
Commercial real estate
Commercial and industrial
Construction
Residential firsi-lien morigage
Home equity
Consumer

Total

Unpaid Average
Principal Recorded Related Recorded
Balance Investment Allowance Investment Recognized
(Dollars in thousands)
5 0,763 6,811 - 5 0,821 429
615 599 - 417 48
- - - 1.176 -
630 (33 - 038 17
246 247 - 276 16
8,254 8,200 - 9328 510
349 3,356 ilg 3,220 72
2,325 2,325 640 2,159 o4
487 487 211 163 15
6,308 6,168 1,170 5.542 151
10,259 10,167 319 10,041 01
2.940 2,924 G40 2.576 112
487 487 211 1,339 15
630 633 - 638 17
246 247 - 276 16
5 14,562 § 14,458 1,170 § 14,870 6l
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Note 4 — Loans Receivable (Continued)

The following table summarizes information in regard to impaired loans by loan portfolio segment segregated by those for
which a related allowance was required and those for which a related allowance was not necessary, as of December 31, 2017
and the year then ended:

Unpaid Average Interest
Principal Recorded Related Recorded Income
Balance Investment Allowance Investment Recognized

(Dollars in thousands)
With no related allowance

recorded:
Commercial real estate 5 13,651 11,704 % - % 8452 % 517
Commercial and industral 718 494 - 1,983 49
Construction - - - - -
Residential first-lien mortgage 644 645 - 652 15
Iome equity il 320 - 530 32
Consumer - - - - -

Total 15,332 13,163 - 11,617 0l3

With an allowance recorded;

Commercial real estate 146 147 3 148 H
Commercial and industral 1,960 1,967 198 948 100
Construction 1.612 1,592 95 1.618 -

Residential first-lien morigage = - - - .
Home equity - - . _ _

Consumer - - - - .

Total 3,718 3,706 296 2.714 108

Total:

Commercial real estate 13,797 11,851 3 8,600 525
Commercial and industrial 2,678 2,461 19% 2,931 149
Construction 1.612 1,592 95 1.618 =
Residential firsi-lien morigage 644 645 - 652 15
Home equity 3l 320 - 530 32
Consumer - - - - -

Total s 19050 % 16,869 % 296 % 14,331 § 721
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Note 4 — Loans Receivable (Continued)

The performance and credit quality of the loan portfolio is also monitored by analyzing the age of the loans receivable by the
length of time a recorded payment is past due. The following table presenis the segments of the loan portfolio summarized by
the past due status as of December 31, 2019:

Loans
Receivable
30-59 60-89 Greater Total Total =00 Davs
Days Past Davys Past than Past Loans and
Due Due 90 days Due Current Receivable Accruing
{Dollars in thousands)

Commercial real estate 3 a6 5 - 8% 2064 5 2030 5 B51,246 F 0 BS3ETO % -
Commercial and industrial - - - - 43,504 43,504 -
Construction - - 371 371 189 418 189,789 -
Residential first-lien mortgage 1,154 - - 1,184 87,883 B9.067 -
Home equity 42 - - 42 12,917 12,959 -
Consumer - = - - 794 794 .
Total 5 1,792 8 - 8§ 2435 5 4227 S 1185762 % 1,189989 % -

The following table presents the segments of the loan portfolio summarized by the past due status as of December 31, 2018:

Loans
Receivable
30-59 60-89 Greater Taotal Total =00 Days
Days Past Days Past than Past Loans and
Due Due 90 davs Due Current Receivable Accruing
{Dollars in thousands)

Commereial real estate 8 15590 §  TI18 0§ 2844 5 25552 5 703784 5§ T29336 % -
Commercial and industrial 250 1.083 2,196 3,529 68,304 71,838 -
Construction - - 487 487 160,788 161,275 -
Residential Lrst-lien mortgage 602 - - 602 101,400 102,008 -
Home equity - - 48 48 17,000 17,048 -
Consumer - - - - 1,987 1,987 -
Total 8 lo442 § 8201 & 5575 5 30218 51053274 § 1083492 § -

The following table presents the segments of the loan portfolio summarized by the aggregate pass rating and the classified
ratings of special mention, substandard and doubtful within the Bank’s internal risk rating system as of December 31, 2019:

Special
Pass Mention Substandard Doubtful Total
(Dollars in thousands)
Commercial real estale 5 HIZT09 8 5108 % 10,059 % - 5 B33 876
Commercial and industrial 43, 004 500 - - 43 504
Construction 189 418 - 371 - 1 89 TRY
Residential Girst-lhien mortgage 88,911 - 156 - 89,067
Home equity 12,959 - - - 12,959
Consumer 794 - - - 794
Total § 1173795 % s608 % 10586 % - 5 1,189.989
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Note 4 — Loans Receivable (Continued)

The following table presenis the segments of the loan portfolio summarized by the aggregaite pass rating and the classified
ratings of special mention, subsiandard and doubtful within the Bank’s internal risk rating system as of December 31, 2018:

Special
Pass Mention Substandard Doubtful Total
(Dollars in thousands)
Commercial real estate 3 705333 % 14,079 % 9924 5§ - 5 729 336
Commercial and industrial 67,170 2,223 2,445 - 71,838
Construction 157,641 3,147 487 - 161,275
Residential Oirst-hen morgage 101,847 - 161 - 102,008
Home equity 17,000 - 48 - 17,048
Consumer 1,987 - - - 1,987
Total £ 1050978 5 19449 % 13065 S - 5 1,083492

Allowance for loan losses on loans receivables at and for the year ended December 31, 2019:

Residential
Commercial Commercial lirst-lien
real eslale and industrial Construclion morigage Home equily Consumer U mallecated Taial

(I20]lars in thousands)
Allowance for loan

losses:
Beginning balance % 7.208 8 1.3% 8§ 1,859 3 S8 8 295 5 L -1 BO7T % 11,944
Provisions {credit) 1,335 1,598 189 (213) (22} (6] (%13 ER L]
Charge-ofTs (2,597} (1,595) - = = = = (4.492)
Becovenes 222 83 - - - - - 05
Ending Balance 5 BI68 8 1,182 § 2048 5 355 S 73§ 5 8 726 % 12,557

Ending Balance:
Individually
evaluated for

impairment 5 20 S - 8 w9 8 - 5 - 5 - 5 - % 429
Collectively
evaluated
for impairment ] 7048 8 1,182 & L83 5 55 % 7% 5 5 26 % 12,128

Recorded investment in loans receivables at December 31, 2019:

Loans:
Ending Balance:
Individually
evaluated for

impairment 5 10,778 8 - L 371 5§ 69 -] 169 8 - 5 - 5 11,927

Collectively

cvaluated

for impairment B43. 008 43,504 189,418 HHE 458 12,780 794 - 1. 178,062
Ending Balance 5 853,876 S 43,504 § 189789 § B9,067 5 12959 § Th4 5 - % 1,189.989
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Note 4 — Loans Receivable (Continued)

Allowance for loan losses on loans receivables at and for the vear ended December 31, 2018:

Hesidential
Commercial Commercial Tirst-lien
real estate and industrial Construction morigage Huomie equity Consumer Uniallocaied Tatal

(Dallars in thousands)
Allowance for loan

losses:
Beginning balance  § 6,240 % 957§ 077 0% 461§ 144 5 I3 L1 11,591
Provisions (crediis) 1,156 335 (993} 107 (46) 8 9% 665
Charge-offs (216} (30 (225) - (3) - - (474)
Recovenes 23 134 - - - . . 162
Ending Balance 5 7.208 8§ 1,3% 8§ 1.859 § Sk 8 95 5 11 5 gO7 % 11,544

Ending Balance:
Individually
evaluated for

impairment b3 e s 64 8 211 8 - 5 - 5 - % - 5 1,170
Collectively
evaluated
for impairment ] 6,888 % 786§ 1648 § 568§ 95 5 1 % 807 % 10,774

Recorded imvestment in loans receivables at December 31, 2018:

Loans:
Ending Balance:
Individually
evaluated for

impairment 5 10,167 8 2924 % 487 § 633§ 247 5 - & - 3 14,458

Collectively

evaluated

for impatrment 719169 6,914 160,788 101,375 16,801 1,987 - 1,069,054
Ending Balance 5 Ti93i6 3 TLB3E § 161275 5 102008 8 17.048 5 1987 8§ - 5 1083492

At December 31, 2019, seven loans totaling 593 million were considered troubled debt restructurings and classified as
impaired. Troubled debt restructurings of $7.0 million consisting of two commercial and industnial loans wotaling $129,000,
one commercial real estate loan laling $6.3 million, one residental Grst-lien morigage for $451,000 and a $168,000 HELOC
loan were performing in accordance with their modified terms at December 31, 2019, Troubled debt restructurings of $2.3
million consisting of one commercial and indusinial loan totaling $1 million and one commercial real estate loan totaling $1.3
million were technically in default because both loans were 14 days past due. There were no troubled debt restructurings on
non-acerual status as of December 31, 2009,

At December 31, 2018, seven loans totaling $1.3 million were considered troubled debt restructurings and elassified as
impaired. Troubled debt restructurings of $1.3 million consisting of two commercial and industnial loans totaling $475,000,
three commercial real estate loans totaling $144_ 000 one residential first-lien mortgage for $469 thousand and a $198 thousand
NELOC loan were performing in accordance with their modified terms at December 31, 2018, There were no troubled debt
restructurings on non-accrual status as of December 31, 2018,
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Note 4 — Loans Receivable (Continued)

The following table summarizes information with regards to new troubled debi restructurings for the vear ended December 31,
2019 (Dollars in thousands):

Pre-Muodification Post-Muodification
Number of Quistanding Outstanding
Contracts Recorded Investment Recorded Investment
Troubled debt restructurings:
Commercial real estate 2 b 7.603 § 7.594
Commercial and industrial 2 s 1.161 b 1,161

As indicated above, the Bank modified four loans totaling 38.8 mullion, of which two loans were with the same borrower one
commercial real estate in the amount of 51.3 million and the other commercial and industrial in the amount of $1.0 million.
The remaming commercial real estate loan was in the amount of $6.4 million and the commercial and industrial loan was in
the amount of 144,000, The Bank granted a rate concession on this commercial and industrial loan in the amount of 144,000
only. The remaining three loans the Bank granted a rate concession and extended the loan amortization. Troubled debt
restructurings are impaired loans and therefore, in accordance with the Bank’s policy, are individually evaluated for
impairment. As of December 31, 2019, there were no specific allowance on these modified loans.

Two loans classified as troubled debt restructurings had payment defaults during 2019,

The following table summarizes information with regards to new troubled debit restructurings for the vear ended December 31,
2018 (Dollars in thousands):

Pre-Modification Post-Modification
Number of Outstanding Outstanding
Contracts Recorded Investment Recorded Investment
Troubled debt restructurings:
Commercial and industrial | 8 443 5 443

As indicated above, the Bank modified a loan during the year ended December 31, 2018 that constituted troubled debt
restructuring, due to concerns over the borrower’s cash flow. In modifying the commercial and indusirial loan, the Bank agreed
Lo extend the matunity and changed the payment to interest only. Troubled debt restructurings are impaired loans and therelore,
in accordance with the Bank’s policy, are individually evaluated for impairment. As of December 31, 2009, and 2018, there
was no specilic allowance on this modilied loan,

Mo loans classilicd as troubled debt restructurings had a payment default during 2018,
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Note 4 — Loans Receivable (Continued)

Loans to Related Party. Included in total loans are loans due from directors and other related parties of $5.6 million and 9.5
million at December 31, 2009 and 2018, respectively. All loans made to directors have substantially the same terms and interest
rates as other bank borrowers at their origination date. The Board of Directors conlirms that collateral requirements, terms and
rates are comparable to other borrowers and are in compliance with underwriting policies prior to approving loans to individual
directors. The following presenis the activity in amount due from direciors and other related parties for the years ended
December 31, 20019 and 2015,

2019 2018
(Dollars in thousands)
Ouistanding related party loans at January 1, 5 9476 5 8,287
New loans - 1,500
Repayments {3.914) (311
Cuistanding related party loans at December 31, 5 5,562 5 92476

No loans to related parties were nonaccrual, past due, resiructured or potential problems at December 31, 20019 and 2018,
Note 5 — Premises and Equipment

The components of premises and equipment at December 31 were as follows {Dollars in thousands):

Estimated
useful lives 2019 2018
Land MNIA 5 1468 3 410
Buldings 40 Yrs. 3579 1,714
Leasehold improvements 10 Yrs. 8,603 5,487
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-7Yrs. 5,278 4,464
Construction in progress 1.173 658
Total belore aceumulated depreciation and
amortization 20,101 12,733
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (9,324) (8,532)
Total 3 10,777 5 4,201

Note 6 — Deposits

The components of deposits at December 31 were as follows (Dollars in thousands):

2019 2018

Demand, non-interesi-bearing checking b 141,338 % 102,678
Demand, interest-bearing 212,552 151,042
Savings 154,756 94,789
Money market 294 940 286,457
Time deposits, $250,000 and over 132,622 104,104
Time deposits, other 301,682 268,177

Total 3 1237890 % 1007247

Money market accounts totaling 547.7 million and $21.9 million at December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively were
originated through brokers.

80

The Bank of Princeton
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 6 — Deposits (Continued)

At December 31, 2019, the scheduled maturities of certificates of deposit were as follows (Dollars in thousands):

Amounts
2020 b 268 639
2021 102 696
2022 35,440
2023 13,819
2024 and over 13,710

Total 3 434,304

The Bank's time deposits of $100,000 or more represent 25.5% of total deposiis at December 31, 2019 and are included in
the table above. Approximately 535.6 million and $72.0 million at December 31, 20019 and 2018, respectively were
originated through brokers.

Related party deposits were approximately 4.4 million and $3.7 million at December 31, 2019 and 2018 respectively.

Deposit overdrafis reclassified as loan balances were $390 thousand and $1.2 million at December 31, 2019 and 2018,
respectively.

Note 7 - Borrowings
The Bank's borrowings consist of FHLB-NY overnight and short-term advances. The Bank utilizes federal funds purchased
to meet short-term liquidity needs.  The FHLB-NY has non-specific blanket collateral on the Bank's loan portfolio as of

December 31, 2019 and 2018,

The following table presents the Bank's borrowings at December 31 (Dollars in thousands):

2019 2018
FHLEB-NY overmight
S - 5 55,400
Total borrowings b - 5 55,400

At December 31, 2019, the Bank had a maximum borrowing capacity with the FIILB-NY, subject to certain collateral
restrictions, of $293.6 million, with $228.6 million available. The Bank is also a shareholder in Atlantic Community
Bancshares, Inc., the holding company of ACBB. As of December 31, 2019, the Bank had available borrowing capacity with
ACBB of $10.0 million to provide short-term liquidity generally for a period of not more than fourteen days. No amounts are
outstanding with the ACBB at December 31, 2019.
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Operating leases

The Bank has operating leases for twelve of its branch locations, as well as its operations center. Future minimum lease
paymenis by vear under the non-cancellable lease agreements for the Bank's facilities were as follows (Dollars in thousands):

2020 £ 2,063
2021 2,035
2022 1,583
2023 1,537
2024 1,289
Thereafter 9.501

Total 5 18008

Rental expense for the vears ended December 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017 was 52.1 mullion, $1.7 million and $1.7 million,
respectively.

The Bank has an operating lease agreement with a member of the Bank’s board of directors for a building containing the Bank's
corporate headquarters and branch, which is included in the above lease schedule. At the lease initiation date, the lease terms
were comparable to similarly outfitted office space in the Bank’s market. Base rental paymenis of 5305,000, $330,000 and
$325,000 were made to this related party in each of the years ended December 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Certain
operating expenses, including real estaie taxes, insurance, utilities, maintenance and repairs, related to this property are paid
directly to the various service providers.

Commitments to extend credif

The Bank is a party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business 1o meet the financing
needs ol its customers.  These linancial instruments mclude commitments 1o extend credit and standby letters of credit. These
instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amount recognized on the
balance sheet. The contract, or notional, amounts of these instruments reflect the extent of involvement the Bank has in
particular classes of financial instruments.

The Bank's exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the counterparty to the financial instrument for
commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit written is represented by the contractal notional amount of those
instruments. The Bank uses the same credit policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as they do for on-
balance-sheet instruments.

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition established
in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of
a fee by the counterparty. Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total
commilment amounts do not necessanly represent [uture cash requirements.

The Bank evaluates cach customer’s credibworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral oblaned, 1 deemed
necessary by the Bank upon extension of eredit, 1s based on management’s credit evaluation of the counterparty. Collateral
held vanes, but primarily includes residential and imcome-producing real estale,

Standby letters ol credit are written conditional commitments 1ssued by the Bank 1o guarantee the performance ol a customer
toa third party. The majority of these standby letters of eredit expire within the next twelve months, The credit nsk involved
in issuing letters ol credit s essentially the same as that involved in extending other loan commitments. The Bank requires
collateral supporting these letters of credit as deemed necessary, Management behieves that the proceeds obtamed through a
ligquidation of such collateral should be sulficient to cover the maximum potential amount under the corresponding guarantecs,
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Note 8 — Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

The Bank had the followmg off-balance sheet financial instruments whose contract amounts represent credit risk at
December 31 (Dollars in thousands):

2019 2018
Performance and standby letters of credit 5 2,353 s 2,342
Undisbursed loans-in-process 99,764 74,086
Commitments to fund loans 42,129 16,085
Unfunded commitments under lines of credit 4,494 6,011
Total 5 143,740 5 098,524

Litigation

The Bank, in the normal course of business, may be subject to potential hability under laws and government regulation and
various claims and legal actions that are pending or may be asserted against it. Liabilities are established for legal claims when
pavments associated with the claims become probable and the costs can be reasonably estimated. The actual costs of resolving
legal claims may be substantially higher or lower than the amounts established for those claims. Based on mformation currently
available, advice of counsel, available insurance coverage and established liabilities, the Bank has determined that there are no
eventual outcomes that will have a material adverse effect on the Bank’s financial position or results of operations,
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Note 9 — Income Taxes
Income tax expense for the years ended December 31 is as follows:

2019 2018 2017
(Dollars in thousands)

Current tax expense:

Federal %1638 $5,917 (%892)

State SB0 325 4

Total Current 2,224 6,242 (BEE)
Delerred income tax benelt:

Federal (114) (3,167) 4,699

State 52 (75) 38

Total deferred (62) (3.242) 4,737
Total income lax expenscs £2.162 53,000 53,849

The tax ellects ol temporary difTerences that give nise o sigmilicant portions of the delerred tax assets and delerred tax habilities
as of December 31 are as Tollows:

2019 2018
(Dollars in thousands)

Deferred tax assets:

Allowance lfor loan losses b 3,233 b 3,148
Met operating loss carry-forwards 515 561
Organizational costs 55 86
Unrealized loss on securities - 175
Subsequent write down OREQ - 36
Branch acquisition 109 -
[ease liability 3,871 .
Premises and equipment 159 173
Other 442 463
Total deferred tax assets 8,384 4,642

Deferred tax liabilities:

Deferred loan costs {351) (366)
Unrealized gains on securities (228) -
ROU (3.871) -
Acquisition accounting adjustments (7 (8)
Total deferred tax habilities (4.457) (374)
Metl deferred tax asset S 3,927 ) 4,268

84

The Bank of Princeton

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 9 — Income Taxes (Continued)

Total income taxes differed from the amount computed by applying the statutory federal income tax rate o pre-lax income as
follows:

2019 2018 2017
Amount  Rate Amount Rate Amount  Rate
{Dollars in thousands)
Federal income tax expense at statutory rate §2.584  21.0% §3,719 21.0% 85,043 34.0%
Increases (reduction) in taxes resulting from:
State income taxes, net of federal benefit 504 4.1 198 1.1 28 02
Tax-exempl income, net (88Ty  (7.2) (853} (4.8) (1.444) (9.8)
Excise tax on deferred income (REIT) - - - - 517 is5
Incentive stock options (101 (0.8) (98)  (0.6) (267) (1.8)
Mon-deductible expenses 13 0.1 11 0.1 12 0.1
Other 48 0.4 23 0.1 {40y (0.3)
Total income taxes applicable to pre-tax imcome 52,162 17.6% S3,000  16,9% S3.849  25.9%

The Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (“Act™) was enacted on December 22, 2017, The Act reduced the U.S. federal corporate tax rate
from 35.0% to 21.0% for years beginning on or afler January 1, 2018, The provision amount to income tax expense was
540,000, which was related to the remeasurement of the Bank's deferred tax balance.

The Bank had available federal net operating loss carry-forwards ol approximately 52.5 million and 52.7 million at December
31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, which expire between 2028 and 2030. The federal net operating loss carry-forwards are
amounts that were generated by MoreBank, which the Bank acquired on September 30, 2010, These net operating losses are
subject to an annual Internal Revenue Code Section 382 limitation of approximately $222 000.

Bascd on projections of future taxable income over peniods in which the delerred tax assets are deductible, management believes
it 1s more likely than not that the Bank will realize the benelits ol these deductible dilferences.,

On July 1, 2018, New Jersey enacted legislation which adds to the state’s 9.0% Corporation Business Tax rate (1) a 2.5% surlax
for periods beginning in 20018 and 20019 and (1) a 1.5% surtax for penods begimning i 2020 and 2021, These surlaxes apply
Lo corporations with more than 51 mulhon of net income allocated o New Jersey and expire beginning in 2022, Also, [or periods
beginning in 2017, New Jersey has reduced the dividends-received deduction from 100% 1o 95% for certain dividend income
received by a corporation [rom a subsidiary that 1s at least 80% owned by the corporation. EfTective in 20019, New Jersey has
adopted combined income tax reporting lor certam members ol a commonly-controlled unitary business group,

On July 1, 2018, New Jersey Governor Phil Murphy signed into law changes o the corporate business lax laws. This
legislation required a combined group to file combined returns for tax years beginning in 2019 and therealier. However, due
Lo technical issues and inconsistencies with existing tax law, it was determined that the tax law change did not have an impact
on deferred taxes. In December 2009, the State of New Jersey issued a clanfying technical bulletin related to the impact of
the new tax legislation enacted in July 2018, This technical bulletin provided clarification to the combined income tax
reporting for certain members of a unitary business group. Accordingly, this required a revaluation of some of the Bank's
deferred tax assets. The Bank recorded state deferred tax expense in the amount ol approximately $117,000 during the year
ended December 31, 2019,
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Note 10 — Revenue Recognition

The adoption of ASU No. 2014-09 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” (Topic 606} did not have a material impact on
the measurement or recognition of revenue: as such, a cumulative effect adjustment to opening retained eamings was noi
deemed necessary. Resulis for reporting periods beginning afier Januvary 1, 2018 are presenied under Topic 606, while prior
period amounts were not adjusted and continue 1o be reporied in accordance with our historic accounting under Topic 605.

Topic 606 does not apply to revenue associated with financial instruments, including revenue from loans and securities. In
addition, certain non-interest income streams such as fees associated with mortgage servicing nights, financial guarantees,
derivatives, and certain credit card fees are also not in scope of the new guidance. Topic 606 1s applicable to non-interest
revenue streams such as deposit related fees and interchange fees. However, the recognition of these revenue streams did not
change significantly upon adoption of Topic 606, Substantially all of the Bank’s revenue 15 generated from contracts with
customers. Non-interest revenue streams in-scope of Topic 606 are discussed below.

Service charges on deposit accounts consist of account analysis fees (i.e.. net fees earned on analyzed business and public
checking accounts), monthly service fees, check orders, and other deposit account related fees. The Bank’s performance
obligation for account analysis fees and monthly service fees is generally satisfied. and the related revenue recognized, over
the period in which the service is provided. Check orders and other deposit account related fees are largely transactional based,
and therefore, the Bank's performance obligation is satistied. and related revenue recognized, at a point in time. Payment for
service charges on deposit accounts 1s pnimanly received immediately or in the following month through a direet charge 1o
customers” accounis.

Fees, exchange, and other service charges are prnimarily comprised of debit and credit card income, ATM fees, merchant
services income, and other service charges, Debit and credit card income 1s pnimanly comprised ol net interchange lees carned
whenever the Banks™s debit and eredit cards are processed through card payment networks such as Visa, ATM lees are primarily
generaled when a cardholder uses a non-Bank ATM or a non-Bank cardholder uses a Bank ATM. Merchant services income
mainly represents fees charged (o merchants 1o process their debat and eredit card transactions, in addinon 1o account
management [ees. Other service charges include revenue [rom processing wire translers, bill pay service, cashier’s checks, and
other services. The Bank’s performance obligation for fees. exchange, and other service charges are largely satisfied, and
related revenue recognized, when the services are rendered or upon completion. Payment is typically received immediately or
in the following month.

The following presents non-interest income, segregated by revenue streams in-scope and out-of-scope of Topic 606, for the
twelve months ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 (Dollars in thousands).

Twelve Months Ended
December 31,

2019 2008

Mon-interest Income

In-scope of Topic 606

Service charges on deposit accounts 5 969 5 542
Fees and charges on deposit accounts 95 71
Other 81 68
Mon-interest income (in-scope of Topic 606) 1,145 681
Non-interest income (oul-ol-scope ol Topic 606) 2.240 1,981
Total Non-interest Income S 3385 S 2662
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Note 11 - Leases

On January 1, 2019, the Bank adopted FASB ASU No. 2016-02, “Leases (Topic 842)." Leases (Topic 842) establishes a right
of use model that requires a leasee to record a right of use (“ROU™) and a lease liability for all leases with terms longer 12
months. The Bank has elected the short-term lease recognition exemption such that the Bank will not recognize ROU or lease
liabilities for leases with a term less than 12 months from the commencement date. The Bank is obligated under 17 operating
leases agreements for 16 branches and its corporate offices with terms exiending through 2039, The Bank’s lease agreements
include options to renew at the Bank's discretion. The exiensions are reasonably certain to be exercised, therefore it was
considered in the calculations of the ROU asset and lease liability.

The following table represents the classification of the Bank’s right of use and lease liabilities {Dollars in thousands):

Statement of Financial

Condition Location December 31, 2019
Operating Lease Right of Use Asset:
Cross camying amount § 12,817
Increased asset fromnew lease 3,685
Prior lease liability adjustment (274)
Hindsight practical expedient adjustment (219
Accumulated amortizaton (1,476)

Operating lease nght-of-
Net book value use assel 5 14,533

Operating Lease Right of Use Asset:
Lease labilities Operating lease liability % 15,040

For the period ended December 31, 2019, the weighted-average remaining lease terms for operating leases was [ 1.8 years and
the weighted-average discount rate used in the measurement of operating lease liabilities was 3.02%. The Bank vsed current
FIILB fixed rate advances at the time the lease was placed in service for the term most closely aligning with remaining lease
term.
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Note 11 - Leases (Continued)

Year Ended December 31,
2019

(Dollars in thousands)

Lease cost:
Operating lease 5 2,149
Short-term lease cost 86
Total lease cost 5 2235

Other information:
Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement
of lease liabilities:

Operating cash Nows [rom operating leascs 5 1,465

Future mimimmum payments under operating leases with terms longer than 12 months are as follows at December 31, 2009
(Dollars in thousands):

Twelve months afier ended December 31,

2020 b 2063
2021 2035
2022 1,583
2023 1,537
2024 1,289
Thereafier 9,501
Total future operating lease payments 18,008
Amounts representing interest (2.968)
Present value ol net future lease payments. b 15,040

Future minimum lease payments by vear and the non-cancellable lease agreements for the Bank’s facilities were as follows at
December 31, 20018 (Dollars in thousands):

Twelve months after ended December 31,

2019 p 1295

2020 1,237

2021 857

2022 129

Thercalier -

Total future operating lease payments 3518
88

The Bank of Princeton

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 12 - Directors Fee Plan

The Bank adopted The Bank of Princeton 2018 Director Fee Plan (“Plan™) which was approved at the Annual Meeting of
Stockholders held on April 24, 2018, The Plan allows non-employee members of the board of directors to elect to receive up
to 100% of their annual compensation i the form of Bank common stock. During the twelve month period ended December
31, 2019, 7,082 shares of common stock have been issued, compared to 6,430 shares of common stock for the same period in
2018,

Note 13 — Goodwill and Core Deposit Intangible

On May 17, 2019, the Bank acquired five branches which were accounted for under FASB ASC 805, Business Combinations.
The Bank assumed 5177.9 million of branch deposit for which it received net cash $159.9 million. The difference between the
liabilities assumed and net cash received was allocated on the estimated fair value of the assets acquired and habilities assumed.

In accordance with ASC 8035, the Bank has expensed approximately $627 thousand of direct acquisition cost and recorded 8.9
million of goodwill along with $4.2 million of core deposit intangible assets. The intangible assets are related to core deposits
and are being amortized over 10 years, using some of the years digits. For tax purposes, goodwill totaling $8.9 million 1s tax
deductible and will be amortized over 15 years straight line. The following table summanzes the fair value of the total cash
received as part of the branch acquisition as well as the fair value of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of
the effective date of the transaction (Dollars in thousands).

Total Cash Recerved S 159,941

Recognized amounts of identifiable assets and liabilities assummed:

Cash ] 1.341
Prenuses, fumiture and equipment 3,380
Core deposil mlangible 4,245
(her assels 3l
Deposils - non-imterest bearng (31,847
Deposits - mierest beanng (146,102)
Fair value of certificate of deposits 186
Other liabilities (34)
Total mdentifiable net asseis S (168,794)
Goodwill b 8853
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Note 13 — Goodwill and Core Deposit Intangible (Continued)

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill and core deposit intangible assets are summarized as follows (Dollars in
thousands):

Core Deposit
Goodwill Intangible
Balance at December 31, 2018 5 - 5 -
Acquisition 8,853 4,245
Amortidion expense - (482)
Balance at December 31, 2019 5 ®RS3 4 3,763

As of December 31, 2019, the current fiscal year and [uture fiscal periods amortization lor the core deposit intangible 1s
(Dollars i thousands):

2020 5 724

2021 046
2022 569
2023 492
2024 415
Thereafier 17

Total s 3763

Note 14 — Fair Value Measurements and Disclosure

The Bank follows the guidance on fair value measurements codified as FASB ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurement
(“Topic 820™).  Fair value measurements are nol adjusted for transaction costs. Topic 820 establishes a fair value hierarchy
that prioritizes the mputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value.

Management uses its best judgment in estimating the fair value of the Bank’s financial instruments, however, there are inherent
weaknesses in any estimation techmique. Therefore, for substantially all financial instruments, the fair value estimates herein
are not necessarly indicative of the amounts the Bank could have realized in sales transactions on the dates imdicated. The
estimated fair value amounis have been measured as of their respective period-end and have not been re-evaluated or updated
for purposes of these consolidated financial statements subsequent to those respective dates. As such, the estimated fair values
of these financial instruments subsequent to the respective reporting dates may be difterent than the amounts reported at each
period-end.

The fair value measurement hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical
asscls or habihtes (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest prionity o unobservable mputs (Level 3 measurements). The three

levels of the Fair value hierarchy are as [ollows:

Level I Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical, unrestneted asscls
or liabilities.
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Note 14 — Fair Value Measurements and Disclosure (Continued)
Level 2: Quoted prices in markets that are not active, or inputs that are observable either directly or indirectly, for substantially
the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3. Prices or valuation techniques that require inputs that are both significant to the fair value measurement and
unobservable {i.e., supporied with little or no market activity).

An asset’s or liability’s level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of mput that is significant to the fair
value measurement.

For financial assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis, the fair value measurements by level within the fair value
hierarchy used at December 31, 2019 were as follows:

{Level 1)
Quoted Prices {Level 2)
in Active Significant (Level 3) Tuotal Fair
Markets for Other Significant Value
Identical Observable Unobservable December 31,
Description Assets Inputs Inputs 2019
(Dollars in thousands)
Morigage-backed securities-1.5.
Government Sponsored Enterprises
{GSEs) 5 - 5 55951 8§ -5 55,951
Obligations of state and
political subdivisions - 56,361 - 56,361
Securities available-for-sale at fair value g - 5 112,312 & - & 112312

For financial assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis, the fair value measurements by level within the fair value
hierarchy used at December 31, 2018 were as follows:

(Level 1)
Quoted Prices {Level 2)
in Active Significant (Level 3) Tuotal Fair
Markets for Other Significant Value
Identical Observable Unobservahle December 31,
Description Assets Inputs Inputs 2018
(Dollars m thousands)
Morlgage-backed sceunties-11.5,
Crovernment Sponsored Enterprises
((i8Es) 8 -5 46472 8§ -5 46,472
Obligations ol state and
political subdivisions - 45,200 - 45,209
Securities available-for-sale at fair value S - 5 91.681 S - 3 91,681

For assets measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis, the fair value measurements by level within the fair value hierarchy
used at December 31, 2019, were as follows:
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Note 14 — Fair Value Measurements and Disclosure {Continued)

The following table presents quantitative information with regards to Level 3 fair value measurements at December 31, 2018,

{Level 1)
Quoted Prices in (Level 2)
Active Significant (Level 3) Tuotal Fair
Markets for Other Significant Value
Identical Observable Unobservable December 31,
Description Assets Inputs Inputs 2019
(Dollars in thousands)
Impaired loans 8 - 85 - 3 2,115 § 2,115
8 - § - % 2,115 § 2,115

For assets measured at Gur value on a nonrecurning basis, the Gur value measurements by level within the Fair value hicrarchy
used at December 31, 2018, were as [ollows:

(Level 1)
Quoted Prices in (Level 2)
Active Significant (Level 3) Tuotal Fair
Markets for Other Significant Value
Identical Observable Unobservahble December 31,
Description Assels Inputs Inputs 2018
(Dollars i thousands)
Impaired loans 8 -8 -5 4,998 % 4,998
Other real estate owned - - 44 44
S - 5 - % 5042 % 5,042

The following table presents quantitative information with regards to Level 3 fair value measurements at December 31, 2019,

Fair Value at Range
December 31, Valuation Unobservable  (Weighted
Description 2019 Technigue Input Average)
(Dollars in thousands)
Discount 6.00%
Impaired loans £ 2 Cash flows' adjustment (6.00%)
Impaired loan 5 2,113 Collateral? Discount 0.0%-23.75%
adjustment {9.17%)

' Fair value for these impaired loans was generally determined through calculating the present value of future cash flows.

? Fair value is generally determined through independent appraisal of the underlying collateral, primarily using comparable sales.
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Fair Value at Range
December 31, Valuation Unobservable (Weighted
Deseription 2018 Technigue Input Average)
(Dollars in thousands)
Discount 6.9%-7.0%
Impaired loans 5 144 Cash flows! adjustment (6.9%)
Impaired loan b 4,854 Collateral* Discount 0.0%%-32 85%
adjustment (10.83%)
Discount 6.0%
Other real estate owned 5 44 Apprasal of collateral® adjustment (6.0%)

! Fair value for these impaired loans was generally determined through ealculating the present value of future cash flows.
* Fair value is generally determined through independent appraisal of the underlying collateral, primarily using comparable sales.

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Bank in estimating fair value disclosures:

Investment Securities

The fair value of securities available-for-sale (carried at fair value) and held-to-maturity {carried at amortized cost) are
determined by obtaining quoted market prices on nationally recognized securities exchanges (Level 1), or matrix pricing (Level
2), which is a mathematical technique used widely in the industry to value debt securinies without relying exclusively on quoted
market prices for the specific securities but rather by relying on the securities’ relationship to other benchmark quoted prices.
Level 2 debt seccunties are valued by a third-party pricing service commaonly used in the banking industry. Level 2 Tair value
measurements consider observable data that may include dealer quotes, market spreads, cash Nows, the TS, treasury yvield
curve, live trading levels, trade exceution date, markel consensus prepayment speeds, credit information and the securnity’s
terms and conditions, among other things.

Impaired loans (gencerally carried at fair value)

Impaired loans carmed at Fur value are those impaired loans in which the Bank has measured impairment generally based on
the Fnr value of the related loan’s collateral. Fair value 1s generally determined based upon independent third-party appraisals
ol the propertics, or discounted cash [lows based upon the expected proceeds, discounted lor estimated selling costs or other
factors the Bank determines will impact collection of proceeds, These assels are included as Level 3 Tair values, based upon
the lowest level ol input that is sigmilicant o the Far value measurements.

Other real estate owned (generally carried at fair value)

(her real estate owned 15 adjusted 1o Gur value, less estimated selling costs, upon transler ol loans o other real estale
owned, Subscquently, other real estate owned 1s carmied at the lower ol carrying value or For value less cost o sell. Fair value
15 based upon mdependent market prices, appraised values of the collateral or management’s estimation ol the value of the
collateral. The discount adjustment from the appraised value 15 a sigmilicant unobservable input in the determination of the fair
value for other real estate owned. These assets are included as Level 3 fair values,
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The carrying amounis and estimated fair value of financial instrumenis are as follows:

December 31, 20019

Carrving Estimated
Amount Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

{Dollars in thousands)

Financial asscts:

Cash and cash equivalents 8 72,598 % 72,598 % 72598 % - 5 -
Securities available-for-sale at fair value 112,312 112312 - 112312 -
Securities held-to-maturity 222 236 - 236 -
Loans receivable, net 1,174,013 1,201,015 - - 1,201,015
Restricted mvestments in bank stocks 1.246 1,246 - 1,246 -
Accrued interest receivable 3,626 3,626 - 3,626 -

Financial liabilities:
Deposits 1,237,890 1,229,225 - 1,229,225 .

Accrued interest payable § 3885 § 3885 8 - 8 38858 .

The carrying amounis and estimated fair value of financial instrumenis are as follows:

December 31, 2018

Carrying Estimated
Amount Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
{Dollars in thousands)

Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents b 26,384 3 26,384 5 26,384 % - 5 -
Securitics available-for-sale at Gair value 91,681 91,681 - 91,681 -
Securities held-to-maturity 228 236 - 236 -
|oans receivable, net 1,069,235 1,074,741 - - 1,074,741
Restricted myvestments i bank stocks 3574 3.574 - 3.574 -
Acerued mterest receivable 3734 3.734 - 3.734 -

Financial liabilities:

Deposits 1,007,247 9,559 - 990,559 -
Accrued interest payable 5 2,198 2,198 2,198
Limitations

The Fair value estimates are made at a diserete point in ume based on relevant market information and information about the
Minancial instruments. Fair value estimates are based on judgments regarding luture expected loss experience, current economic
conditions, risk characteristies of vanous (nancial instruments, and other factors.

These estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment and, therefore, cannot
be determined with precision. Changes in assumptions could significantly allect the estimates. Further, the foregoing
estimates may not reflect the actual amount that could be realized i all or substannally all of the [inancial instruments were
offered for sale. This is due to the fact that no market exists for a sizable portion of the loan, deposit and off-balance sheet
instruments.

94

The Bank of Princeton
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 14 — Fair Value Measurements and Disclosure (Continued)

In addition, the fair value estimates are based on existing on and oft-balance sheet financial instruments without attempting (o
value anticipated future business and the value of assets and liabilities that are not considered financial instruments. Other
significant assets that are not considered financial assets include premises and equipment. In addition, the tax ramifications
related to the realization of unrealized gains and losses can have a significant effect on fair value estimates and have not been
considered in any of the estimates.

Finally, reasonable comparability between financial institutions may not be likely due to the wide range of permitted valuation
techniques and numerous estimates which must be made given the absence of active secondary markets for many of the
financial instruments, This lack of uniform valuation methodologies introduces a greater degree of subjectivity to these
estimated fair values,

Note 15 - Stock-Based Compensation

In 2007, the Bank adopted The Bank of Princeton 2007 Stock Option Plan (the 2007 Plan™), which was approved by our board
of directors in August 2007 and by our stockholders in October 2007, The 2007 Plan enables the board of directors to grant
stock options to emplovees, directors, consultants and other individuals who provide services to the Bank. The shares subject
to or related to options under the 2007 Plan are authorized and unissued shares of the Bank. The maximum number of shares
that may be subject to options under the 2007 Plan is 300,000, all of which may be issued as Incentive Stock Options and not
more than 100,000 of which may be issued as Non-Qualified Stock Options. Vesting periods range tfrom immediate to four
vears from the date of grant. No incentive stock options may be granted under the 2007 Plan after October 2, 2017.

In 2012, the Bank adopted The Bank of Princeton 2012 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2012 Plan™), which was approved by our
board of directors in February 2012 and by our stockholders in May 2012, The 2012 Plan enabled the board of directors to
grant stock options or restricted shares of common stock to employees, directors, consultants and other individuals who provide
services 1o the Bank, The shares subjeet to or related to options under the 2002 Plan are authorized and umssued shares ol the
Bank. In 2013, the Bank’s board ol directors and stockholders approved an amendment to the 2012 Plan that increased the
maximum number of shares that may be subject to options under the 2012 Plan from 100,000 to 600,000, all of which may be
1ssued as Incentive Stock Options or as Non-Qualified Stock Options, Vesting periods range from immediate o four years
from the date of grant. At December 31, 2019 there were 47,338 shares remaiming available for future issuance under the 2012
plan. Mo incentive stock options may be granted under the 2012 Plan after April 30, 2023,

In 2014, the Bank adopted an amendment to each of the 2007 Plan and to the 2012 Plan, which amendments were approved by
our Board of Directors, to provide that all outstanding options under the 2007 Plan and the 2012 Plan will become fully vested
and exercisable upon a change i control of the Bank and to further specify the consideration that may be exchanged with
respect to outstanding awards upon any such change in control,

In 2018, the Bank adopted The Bank of Princeton 2018 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2018 Plan™), which was approved by our
board of directors in February 2018 and by our stockholders in May 2018, The 2018 Plan enabled the board of directors 1o
grant stock options or restricted shares of common stock to employees, directors, consultants and other individuals who provide
services to the Bank, The 2018 Plan authorizes up to 328 910 shares of common stock. As of December 31, 2019, no options
or shares have been granted under this plan,

The Bank adopted The Bank of Princeton 2018 Director Fee Plan (“the Director Plan™) which was approved at the Annual
Mecting of Stockholders held on Apnl 24, 20018, The Directors Plan allows non-employee board ol directors 1o eleet o receive
up to 100% ol their annual compensation in the form of Bank common stock. The Director Plan authorizes up o 150,000
shares of common stock. During the year ended December 31, 20019 and 2018, 7,082 and 6,430 shares of common stock were
1ssued, respectively.
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Note 15 - Stock-Based Compensation (Continued)

The following is a summary of the status of the Bank’s stock option activity and related information for the year ended
December 31, 2019:

Number of Weighted Avg.
Stock Weighted Remaining Aggregate
Options / Avg, Contractual Intrinsic
Warrants Exercise Price Life Value
Balance at January 1, 2019 578,152 8 18.72
Crranted - 8 -
Exercised (98,852) § 13.58
Forfeied (9.650) 8 28.26
Expired (7.025) § 21.39
Balance at December 31, 2019 462,625 8 19.58 5.02 years by 5,753,984
Exercisable at December 31, 2019 400,469 8 17.79 4.58 years s 5,672,507

The Bank did not grant any stock options during 2019,

The following is a summary of the status of the Bank’s stock option and warrant activity and related information for the year
ended December 31, 2018:

Number ol Weighted Avg.
Stock Weighted Remaining Aggregale
Options / Avg, Contractual Intrinsic
Warrants Exercise Price Life Value
Balance at January 1, 2018 624,527 8 16.50
Giranted 70875 8§ 32.69
Exercised (97,8300 § 14.02
Forleited (6,150) % 24 57
Expired (13,2500 § 23.91
Balance at December 31, 2018 578,152 § 18.72 5.58 years s 5,800,749
Exercisable al December 31, 2013 462616 S 16.22 4 48 years s 5,537,840

The fair value ol the 20018 option grants were estimated on the date of the grants using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model
with the following weighted-average assumplions:

Expected hile 0.0 years

Expected volatlity 19.39%

Forleiture rate 4. 00%

Dividend yield 0.00%

Risk-lrce interest rale 2.65%

Fair value 5 839
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Note 15 — Stock-Based Compensation (Continued)

The expected life of siock options granted is generally derived from historical experience. Expected volatilities are general
based on the average of three peers” historical volatilities due to the limited liquidity of the Bank’s stock in the open market.
The Bank uses an estimated forfeiture rate due to limited historical data. At the time of the grant, the Bank had not declared
any cash dividend therefore no dividend yield was used. The risk-free rate for periods within the contraciual term of the share
option is based on the US. Treasury for a comparable term.

The following is a summary of the status of the Bank’s stock option and warrant activity and related imformation for the year
ended December 31, 2017:

Number of Weighted Avg,
Stock Weighted Remaining Aggregate
Options / Avg, Contractual Intrinsic
Warranis Exercise Price Life Value
Balance at January 1, 2017 728,553 % 14.74
Granted 43875 % 32.00
Exercised (125334) &% 11.64
Forfeited (16,1007 % 18.86
Expired (6.467) % 12.25
Balance at December 31, 2017 624,527 § 16.50 5.9 years b3 11,144 316
Exercisable at December 31, 2017 517017 % 15.05 542 vears 5 9,973,449

The fair value of the 20017 option grants was esiimated on the date of the grants using the Black-5choles oplion-pricing model
with the [ollowing weighted-average assumplions;

Expected hile 6.0 years
Expected volatility 30.97%
Forfeiture rate 2.75%
Dividend yield 0.00%
Risk-Iree interest rale 2.28%
Fair value S11.03

Stock option expenses included in salaries and employee benelits expense in the consolidated statements ol mcome were
$261,000, 5408 000 and 5392000 for the years ended December 31, 20019, 2018 and 2017, respectively, A tax benelil was
recognized of $55,000, S87,000 and $133,000 for the years ended December 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Stock
oplion expenses recorded within other expenses were 546,000, S86,000 and $86,000 for the years ended December 31, 2019,
2018 and 2017, respectively. A tax benelit was recognized of $10,000, S18,000 and $45,000 for the years ended December
31, 2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Al December 31, 2019, there was approximately $720,000 ol unrecognized expense
related o outstanding stock options, which will be recognized over a period ol approximately 126 years.
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Note 16 — Regulatory Matters

Regularory Capital

Current FIXIC capital standards require these institutions to satsfy a common equity Tier | capital requirement, a leverage
capital requirement and a risk-based capital requirement. The common equity Tier | capital component generally consists of
retained earnings and common stock instruments and must equal at least 4.5% of nsk-weighted assets. Leverage capital, also
known as “core” capital, must equal at least 3.0% of adjusted total assets for the most highly rated state-chartered non-member
banks. Core capital generally consists of common stockholders” equity (including retained earnings). An additional cushion of
at least 100 basis points is required for all other banking associations, which effectively mereases their minimum Tier 1 leverage
ratio to 4.0% or more. Under the FIDIC's regulations, the most highly-rated banks are those that the FDIC determines are strong
banking organizations and are rated composite 1 under the Uniform Financial Institutions Rating System. Under the risk-based
capilal requirements, as ol January 1, 2015, Tier 1 Capital to nsk-weighted assets ratio must equal at least 6.0%, increased [rom
4.0% {and ncreased from 6.0% o 8.0% lor the Bank o be considered “well capitalized™) and total capital to nsk-weighted
assels ratio must equal at least 8.0% (10,0% 1o be considered “well capitalized™). The FDIC also s authorized o impose capital
requirements in excess of these standards on individual institutions on a case-by-case basis,

The inal capital rules that became effective on January 1, 2015 introduced a requirement for a common equity Tier 1 capital
conservation bulTer of 2.5% ol nisk-weighted assets which 1s mn addition 1o the other minimum risk-based capital standards in
the rule. Insttutions that do not maintain this required capital bulTer will become subject to progressively more stringent
limitations on the percentage of carnings that can be paid out in dividends or used for stock repurchases and on the payment of
discretionary bonuses o senior executive management. The capital bufTer requirement is being phased in over three years
beginning in 2016. We have included the 1.253% capital buffer requirement, as of December 31, 2018, in our minimum capital
adequacy ratios in the table below. When fully phased-in on January 1, 2019, to comply with the capital bufTer rules the Bank
will be required to have a common equity Tier | capital ratio of at least 7.0%, a Tier | capital ratio of at least 8.5%, and a total
capital ratio to 10.5%.

Any banking organization that fails any of the capital requirements is subject to possible enforcement action by the FDIC. Such
action could include a capital directive, a cease and desist order, civil money penalties, the establishment of restrictions on the
nstitution’s operations, termination of federal deposit msurance and the appointment of a conservator or receiver. The FDIC's
capital regulations provide that such actions, through enforcement proceedings or otherwise, could require one or more of a
variety of corrective actions.
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Note 16 — Regulatory Matters (Continued)

The Bank's actual capital amounts and ratios at December 31, 2019 and 2018 are presented below (Dollars in thousands):

For capital adequacy

December 31, 2019:
Total capital (to risk-weighted assets)
Tier 1 capital (to risk-weighted
assels)
Common equity tier 1 capital (to risk-
weighted assets)
Tier 1 leverage capital (1o average
assels)

December 31, 2018:
Total capital (to risk-weighted assets)
Tier 1 capital (to risk-weighted
assets)
Common equity tier 1 capital (to risk-
weighted assets)
Tier 1 leverage capital (1o average
assels)

purposes To be well capitalized
{including capital buffer under prompt corrective
Actual requirement) action provisions

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
S 194,675 15.108% $ 135,294 = 10.500% 5 128852 = 10.000%
S182,118 14.134% $ 109,524 = BA00% S 103,082 = B.000%
S182,118 14.134% 590,196 = T.000% % 83,754 =z 6.500%
S182,118 12.89%4% 591810 = 6.500% § 70,623 = 5.000%
5196092 17366% 5 111,506 = 9.875% 5112918 = 10.000%
5 184,148 16.308% 388923 = TE75% 5 90334 =z B.000%
S 184,148 16.308% 571,985 =z 6.375% % 73,396 =z 6.500%
S 184,148 14.894% $ 72,640 = 5.875% % 61,821 = 5.000%

The Bank 15 subject to certam restrictions on the amount of dividends that it may declare due o regulatory considerations,

Note 17 — Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited)

Interest and dividend meome
Interest expense

Net Interest Income
Provision for loan losses

Year Ended December 31, 2019

First
Quarter

Second
Quarter

Third

Quarter

Fourth

Quarter

(Dollars in thousands, except lor per share data)

Met Interest Income after Provision lor Loan Losses

MNon-mterest income
Non-inlerest expense

Income before Income Tax Expense
Income tax (benelit) expense

Net Income

Earnings per common share
Basic
Diluted

5 14275 8 14,998 s 15,251 5 15,193

4,364 4,635 4,486 4,781

9911 10,363 10,765 10,412

4,200 350 125 125

3,711 10,013 10,640 10,287

T85 729 1,077 794

0,341 73106 7,200 0,875

155 3426 4,517 4,206

(74} G618 801 817

5 229 8 2,808 s 3,716 5 3,389

b 003 8 0.42 s (.55 5 0.50

h 003 8 0.41 s 0.54 b 0.449
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Note 17 — Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited) (Continued)

Interest and dividend income
Interest expense
Met Interest Income
Provision for loan losses
MNet Interest Income after Provision for Loan Losses
Non-interest income
MNon-interest expense
Income before Income Tax Expense
Income tax expense
Met Income

Earnings per common share
Basic
Diluted

Year Ended December 31, 2018

First
Quarter

Second
Quarter

Third
Quarter

Fourth
Quarter

{Dollars in thousands, except for per share data)

5 12,592 8 13,457 5 14,129 3 14,187
2,697 3,190 3,588 3,881

9,985 10,267 10,541 10,306

255 410 - -

9.640 9,857 10,541 10,306

786 627 G648 601

6,055 6,270 6,655 6,318

4,371 4,214 4,534 4,589

790 579 830 801

8 3,581 8 3,635 5 3,704 b 3,788
8 055 8§ 0.55 s 0.56 § 0.57
8 052 8§ 0.53 s 0.54 § 0.55
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Not applicable.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting, as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) of the Exchange Act. Internal control over financial reporting
15 a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States,
which is commonly referred to as GAAP. The effectiveness of any system of internal control over financial reporting
is subject to inherent limitations, including the exercise of judgment in designing, implementing, operating and
evaluating the Bank’s internal control over financial reporting. Because of these inherent limitations, internal control
over financial reporting cannot provide absolute assurance regarding the reliability of tinancial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAT and may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that our internal control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or other factors, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management, with the participation of the Bank’s President and Chiel” Financial OfTicer, evaluated the
cllectiveness ol the Bank’s mtemal control over Mmancial reporting as of December 31, 2019 using the enlena in
“Internal Control—Integrated Framework (2013)7 1ssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Orgamizations ol the
Treadway Commuission (“COS0 20137, Based on this assessment, management determimed that, as of December 31,
2019, the Bank’s mternal control over linancial reporting was ellfective 1o provide reasonable assurance regarding the
rchability of linancial reporting and the preparation of Onancial statements for external purposes in accordance with
LS. generally accepled accounting principles

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Management, with the participation of the Bank’s President and Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the
effectiveness of the design and operation of the Bank's disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-
15(¢) promulgated under the Exchange Act) as of December 31, 2019 Based on this evaluation, the Bank’s President
and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that the Bank's disclosure controls and procedures are effective as of
December 31, 2019 to ensure that the information required to be disclosed by the Bank in the reports that the Bank
files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods
specified m FDIC rules and forms.

BDO USA, LLP, the Bank's independent registered public accounting firm that audited the Bank’s
consolidated financial statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, has issued a report on the
effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2019, as stated in its report
Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There was no change in the Bank’s intemal control over financial reporting identified during the quarter
ended December 31, 2019 that has matenially affected, or is reasonably likely 1o matenally afTeet, the Bank's internal

control over [inancial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

MNone.
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Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The mformation required by this Ttem is set forth under the headings, “ELECTION OF DIRECTORS,”
"EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND COMPENSATION — Execcutive Officers,” “DELINQUENT SECTION 16(a)
REPORTS.” “CODE OF CONDUCT,” "BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEES” in the Bank's definitive
proxy statement to be filed with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation not later than 120 days afier December
31, 2019 in connection with the solicitation of proxies for its 2020 Annual Meeting of Stockholders and incorporated
by reference.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this ltem s set forth under the headings, “ADVISORY VOTE TO APPROVE
OUR NAMED EXECUTIVE OFFICER COMPENSATION,” "BOARLD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTELS -
Compensation Processes and Procedures,” “EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND COMPENSATION — Executive
Compensation,” “EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION” “EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND
COMPENSATION - Employment Agreements,” “BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEES - Compensation
As It Relates 1o Risk Management,” “EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION - 2019 Compensation ol
Directors™ in the Bank’s defimtive proxy statement to be liled with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation not
later than 120 days alter December 31, 2019 i connection with its 2020 Annual Mecting ol Stockholders and
incorporated by relerence.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder

Maitters

The information required by this Item is set forth under the headings, “EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN
INFORMATION,” “EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND COMPENSATION - Stock Option Plans,” and “SECURITY
OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT”, in the Bank’'s definitive proxy
statement to be filed with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation not later than 120 days afier December 31, 2009
in connection with its 2020 Annual Meeting of Stockholders and incorporated by reference

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

The information required by this Item is set forth under the headings, “CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND
RELATED TRANSACTIONS” “BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEES - Director Independence,” in the
Bank’s definitive proxy statement to be filed with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation not later than 120 days
after December 31, 2019 in connection with its 2020 Annual Meeting of Stockholders and incorporated by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this [tem is set forth under the headings, “PROPOSAL TO RATIFY THE
SELECTION OF BDO USA, LLP AS THE BANK'S INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING
FIRM FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2020, in the Bank’s delimitive proxy statement 1o be [iled with
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation not later than 120 days aller December 31, 20019 in connection with is
2020 Annual Meeting ol Stockholders and incorporated by relerence.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

i(a) The following portions of the Bank’s consolidated financial statements are set forth in ltem 8 - “Financial
Statements of Supplementary Data™
i(b) of this Annual Report:
i.  Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition as of December 31, 2019 and 2018
Il Consolidated Statements of Income for the yvears ended December 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017
1. Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended December 31, 2019, 2018
and 2017
. Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders” Equity for the years ended December 31,
2019, 2018 and 2017
V. Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows lor the years ended December 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017
Vi Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(c) Fimancial Statement Schedules
All inancial statement schedules are omitted as the imlormation, 1Fapplicable, 1s presented in the consolidated
limancial statements or notes thereto,
(dy Exhibits
Exhibit
No. Description
3.1 (1} Certificate of Incorporation, as amended.
3.2 (C) Amended and Restated Bylaws
4.1 (A) Specimen form of stock certificate,
4.2 Description of Capital Stock
101 (B) The Bank of Princeton Amended and Restated 2007 Stock Option Plan®
10.2  (B) The Bank of Princeton Amended and Restated 2012 Equity Incentive Plan*®
10,3 {A) Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement for 2007 Stock Option Plan®*
104 (K) Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement for 2012 Stock Option Plan®*
10,5 {A) Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement for 2007 Stock Option Plan®
10,6 (K) Form of Nongualified Stock Option Agreement for 2012 Stock Option Plan®
10,7 ({A) MoreBank 2004 Incentive Equity Compensation Plan®
10.8  (A) Form ol Incentive Stock Option Agreement®
10,9 (A) Form ol Nongualilied Stock Option®
10,10 (A) Form ol Option Tor the Purchase of Shares of the Par Value of 81,00 Per Share of MoreBank*®
10.11 Intentionally Omatted
10,12 (E) Employment Agreement between the Bank and Edward 1. Dieteler dated as ol December 6, 2018%
10,13 (1) Employment Agreement between the Bank and Daniel J. O Donnell dated as of December 6, 2018#
10,14 {G) The Bank of Princeton Amended and Restated Equity 2018 Equity Incentive Plan*
10,15 {K) Branch Purchase and Assumption Agreement, dated February 2, 2019, between the Bank and Beneficial
Bank (and 11s successor mmlerest)
10,16 (H) Employment Agreement between the Bank and George 5. Rapp dated as ol January 25, 2019#
10,17 (H) Employment Agreement between the Bank and Stephanie Adkins dated January 25, 2019#
10,18 (1) Employment Agreement between the Bank and Christopher Tonkovich dated February 25, 2019#
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10,19 (I} The Bank of Princeton 2018 Director Fee Plan*

10.20 Amendment to Employment Agreement between the Bank and Edward J. Dietzler dated as of December 18,
2019*

10.21 Amendment to Employment Agreement between the Bank and Daniel 1. O Donnell dated December 18,
2019*

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant

311 Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of the Principal Executive Officer

31.2 Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of the Principal Financial Officer

321 Section 1350 Certifications

*  Management contract or compensatory plan, coniract or arrangement.

(A) Incorporated by relerence to the exhibit to registrant’s Form 10, General Form for Registration of Securities, filed
with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation on May 2, 2011,

(B} Incorporated by relerence 1o Exhibits 1001 or 102, as appheable, of registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K,
iled with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation on October 20, 2014,

{C) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to registrant’s Cuarterly Report on Form 10-0), filed with the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation on August 10, 2017,

(E) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 1001 and 10,2 1o registrant’s Current Report on Form 8K, Nled with the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation on December 7, 2018,

(F)} Incorporated by relerence o registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K [iled with the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation and dated February 25, 2019,

(G) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1001 to registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation and dated March 25, 2019,

(H) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 10.1 and 10.2 to registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and dated January 25, 2019,

(I} Incorporated by reference to Exhibit B to registrant’s proxy materials filed with the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation on March 26, 2018,

i1y Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-(}, filed with the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation on May 10, 2019,

(K) Incorporated by reference to amendment on Form 10-K/A to registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed
with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation on March 25, 2019,

Item 16. Form 10-K Summary

None.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly

caused this Report to be signed on 1ts behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized as of March 16, 2020,

The Bank of Princeton

s/ Edward Dhetzler

By:  Edward Dietzler
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

The Bank of Princeton

s/ George 5. Rapp

By:  George S, Rapp
Exceutive Vice President and Chiel Financial Oflicer
(Principal Financial and Accounting OfTicer)

105



The Bank of Princeton The Bank of Princeton

Pursuant o the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by Exhibit 21.1
the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.
SUBSIIMARIES OF REGISTRANT

Signature Capacity Date
/s Bichard Gillespie Chairman of the Board March 16, 2020 Jurisdiction of
Richard Gillespie Incorporation
Name of Subsidiary or Formation
s/ Stephen Distler Vice Chairman of the Board March 16, 2020
Stephen Distler Bayard Lane, LLC NI
112 Fifth Avenue, LLC NI
s/ Stephen Shueh Dhirector March 16, 2020 Bayard Properties, L1.C N
Stephen Shueh TBOP REIT, Inc. Ml
TBROP Delaware Investment Company DE
/s/ Robert N. Ridolfi Director March 16, 2020

Robert M. Ridolli, Esq

/& Judith AL (niacin Iirector March 16, 2020
Judith A. Giacin

fs/ Martin Tuchman Director March 16, 2020
Martim Tuchman

/s Ross Wishmek Iirector March 16, 2020
Ross Wishmick

President, Chiel’ Executive OfTicer, March 16, 2020
fs/ Edward IDhetzler [Mrector
Edward Dietzler {Principal Executive Officer)

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial March 16, 2020
fs/ George S, Rapp Officer
Gieorge 5. Rapp {Principal Financial and Accounting

Officer)
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Exhibit 31.1
RULE 13A-14(A)/15D-14(A) CERTIFICATIONS OF THE
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I, Edward Dietzler, certify that:

Date:

. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of The Bank of Princeton:

. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report,

. Based on my knowledge, the linancial statements, and other Ninancial information included in this report, Tairly
present in all material respects the Imaneial condition, results ol operations and cash [lows ol the registrant as ol
and for, the periods presented i this report.

. The registrant’s other certilfyving oflicer and [ are responsible [or establishing and mamtaiming disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(¢)) and internal control over linancial
reporting (as delined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(0) and 15d-15(1)) lor the registrant and have;

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures 1o
be designed under our supervision, o ensure that matenal mlormation relating to the registrant,
neluding its consolidated subsidiaries, 15 made known 1o us by others within those entities, particularly
during the peniod in which this report 1s being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness ol the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of
the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the regisirant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the
case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over lfinancial reporting; and

. The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deliciencies and matenal weaknesses in the design or operation of intemal control over
linancial reporting which are reasonably hikely o adversely alTeet the registrant’s abality 1o record,
process, summarize and report [inancial information; and

b} any [taud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
signilicant role in the registrant’s iternal control over linancial reporting

March 16, 2020 s/ Edward Dietzler

Edward Dietzler

President and Chief Executive Officer
{Principal Executive Officer)
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Exhibit 31.2
RULE 13A-14(A)15D-14A) CERTIFICATIONS OF THE
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

I, George 5. Rapp, certify that:

Date:

1. 1 have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of The Bank of Princeton:

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report.

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other linancial information mcluded i this report, fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report.

4. The registrant’s other certifving officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a)  Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures 1o be
designed under our supervision, o ensure that material information relating o the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, 15 made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

b} Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to
be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for exiernal purposes in accordance with generally aceepied
accounting principles;

¢)  Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered
by this report based on such evaluation; and

d)  Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that oceurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially atfected, or is reasonably likely o materially aiTect, the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting; and

3. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over tinancial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and
report financial information; and

b} any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting

March 16, 2020 s/ Greorge 5. Rapp
Greorge S, Rapp
Execcutive Vice President and Chiel Financial OiTicer
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The Bank of Princeton

{Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
Exhibit 32.1

SECTION 1350 CERTIFICATIONS

In connection with the Annual Report of The Bank of Princeton (the “Bank™) on Form 10-K for the period
ended December 31, 2019 as filed with the Federal Deposit and Insurance Corporation on the date hereofl (the
“Report”), the undersigned certify, pursuant to 18 U.5.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002, that:

l. The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13{a) or 15(d) of the Securities and Exchange
Act ol 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the linancial condition
and results of operations ol the Bank.

s/ Edward [hetzler

Edward Ihetzler

President and Chiel Exceutive OfMicer
(Principal Executive Officer)

/s George 5. Rapp

Creorge 5. Rapp

Executive Vice President and Chiel Finaneial Officer
{Principal Financial and Accounting OfTicer)

March 16, 2020
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Who We Are

Board of Directors

Richard Gillespie
Chairman

Stephen A. Distler
Vice Chairman

Edward J. Dietzler
President
Chief Executive Officer

Ross E. Wishnick
Vice Chairman

Judith A. Giacin Robert N. Ridolfi, Esq.

Stephen K. Shueh Martin Tuchman
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Who We Are

Executive Management

Edward J. Dietzler
President
Chief Executive Officer

Daniel J. O’Donnell
Executive Vice President
Chief Operating Officer

& General Counsel

George S. Rapp Christopher M. Tonkovich

Executive Vice President
Chief Credit Officer

Executive Vice President
Chief Financial Officer

Stephanie M. Adkins
Executive Vice President
Chief Lending Officer

Established in 2007, The Bank of Princeton opened its Chambers Street doors for
business on the 23rd of April. Since then, the Bank has grown to include eighteen
branch locations that serve Mercer, Burlington, Camden, Glouchester, Hunterdon,
Middlesex, Monmouth, Ocean, and Somerset counties in New Jersey along with
three branches in the Montgomery County and Philadelphia markets of Pennsylvania.

Today, The Bank of Princeton is comprised of twenty-one branch locations and a
comprehensive Operations Center headquartered in Princeton.
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Marketing

Barbara A. Cromwell, SVP

Human Resources
Anna Maria Miller, SVP

Retail Administration

Debra L. Von Gonten, SVP
Rose Russo, AVP
Amy Zuccarello, AVP

Information Technology

Matthew T. Clark, SVP
Kyndle E. Alig, AVP

Operations, Compliance
Security & Facilities

Karen D. Pfeifer, SVP
Vincent Auletta, VP
Angela Bancroft, VP
Keith R. Bitzel, VP
Joseph H. Robotin, VP
Ryan M. Cavicchio, AVP
Justin Naidoo, AVP
Jamie Wilson, AVP

Loan Administration

Karen A. Collier, SVP
David Geyer, SVP

Mary Beth Gorecki, SVP
Michelle Goldstein, VP
Stephen R. Helhowski, VP
Amela Muslic, VP

Stanley Plytynski, VP
Marianne Pugliese, VP
Lana Tremblay, VP
Lukasz Gargas, AVP
Theresa Harris-Norfleet, AVP
Wanda M. Szymanski, AVP
Eleanor Velasquez, AVP
Thomas Waszkiewicz, AVP
Denise Youn, AVP

Incorporators

Gregg E. Chaplin
Andrew M. Chon
Peter M. Crowley
Stephen A. Distler
Richard Gillespie

Bumsung K. Han
John A. Horvath
Kevin R. Kenyon

W. Andrew Krusen, Jr.
Janet M. Lasley

Emmett J. Lescroart
Dennis M. Machulsky

Casey K. Min

dJ. Scott Needham
Henry S. Opatut
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Finance

Jeffrey T. Hanuscin, SVP
Edward P. Hassenkamp, VP
Carmen Lloja-MacKenzie, AVP
Rosemary Tumino, AVP

Commercial Lenders

Arthur M. Birenbaum, SVP
William McCoy, SVP

Kris Muse, SVP

Paul M. Bencivengo, VP
William McDowell, VP
Jennifer Yoo, VP

Michele Lewis-Fleming, AVP

Market Managers

Princeton Region
Roseanne Maresma, AVP, Montgomery, RRM*
Henrry Polanco, Bayard Lane
Darshana Jadav, Chambers Street & Nassau Street
Wendy J. Evans, Monroe
Miriam Colén, New Brunswick

Central Region
Nedgine Douge, AVP, Hamilton, RRM*
Barbara Brehaut, Hamilton
Paul Sabol, Bordentown
Donna Craddock, Browns Mills
Shannon Bennett, Chesterfield
Jeralyn H. Lang, Cream Ridge
Lourdes Pagan, Quakerbridge Road

Southern Region
Kelly Zane, AVP, Deptford, RRM*
Sokha Eng, Arch Street
Esther Youngsoon Sim, Cheltenham
Mi Kyung Kim, North Wales
Christina Lerro, Sicklerville

Western Region
Karin van Garderen, AVP, Lawrenceville, RRM*
Jonathan Collins, Lambertville
Natalie Cassion, Pennington
Rhoda Sundhar, Princeton Junction

* Regional Retail Manager

Robert N. Ridolfi, Esq.
James M. Riley
Jeffrey H. Sands

Eric L. Steinfeldt
Ross E. Wishnick

Bank Wisely.



“Taking the time to build community, to get to know

your people will have long-lasting benefits.”

— Clifton Taulbert

Thank you
Our community
artners for helpmg

Make a Difference.

ACME Screening Room
Advancing Opportunities
Allentown Food Pantry
American Foundation
for Suicide Prevention
American Heart Association
Arc of Hunterdon County, The
Arts Council of Princeton
Big Brothers Big Sisters
of Mercer County
Bordentown City Veterans
Memorial Committee
Bordentown Regional High School
Bordentown Rotary Club
Bridge Academy of New Jersey, The
Budget Challenge
Burlington Mercer
Chamber of Commerce
Business NdJ, LLC
Camp Sunshine
Capital Area YMCA
Capital Health Foundation
CASA of New Jersey
Catholic Charities, Diocese of Trenton
Center for Educational Advancement
Central Jersey Housing
Resource Center
Chapin School

Chesterfield Township Historical Society
Children’s Home Society
of New Jersey, The
Christian Caring Center
Christine’s Hope for Kids Foundation
Clarifi
Communiversity
Consolidated Fire Association
Corner House Foundation
Crosswicks Community Association
Crosswicks Library Company
Deborah Hospital Foundation
Delaware River Steamboat Floating
Classroom, Inc., SPLASH
Delaware River Towns Chamber
of Commerce & Visitors Bureau, The
Delaware Township Schools,
Partners in Education
Downtown Bordentown Association
Dress for Success Central
New Jersey - 7 Counties
Eden Autism Services Foundation
Elijah’s Promise
First Friday Fireworks
Foundation for Bordentown
Traditions, Inc., The
Friendly Sons & Daughters of
St. Patrick of Mercer County, The
Friends of Ely Park
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Friends of Hopewell Valley Open Space
Friends of Rittenhouse Square
Gift of Life Donor Program
Gloucester Township Fire District #5
Greater Philadelphia Asian

Social Services Center
Greater Philadelphia

Coalition Against Hunger
Grounds for Sculpture
Habitat for Humanity

in Monmouth County
Habitat for Humanity of

Burlington County and

Greater Trenton-Princeton
Habitat for Humanity Philadelphia
Habitat for Humanity,

Raritan Valley Chapter
Hamilton Educational Foundation
HomeFront
Hope Hose Humane Co. No. 1
Hopewell Valley Arts Council
Hopewell Valley Education Foundation
Hopewell Valley Veterans Association
Hopewell Valley YMCA
Housing Initiatives of Princeton
Hunterdon County Chamber of Commerce
I Believe in Pink

Iron Mikes Foundation

Isles, Inc.
Jason Fuhr Memorial Charity
Golf Tournament & Scholarship Fund
Jewish Family & Children’s Service
of Greater Mercer County
JFCS Mobile Food Pantry
Joint Effort: Princeton
Safe Streets Weekend
Kalmia Club, The
Kidpreneur
Korean American Institute of Princeton
Korean CBMC of North America
Korean Senior Golf Association
Ladies Auxiliary of the
Chesterfield Hose Co.
Lambertville / New Hope Winter Festival
Lambertville Area Education Foundation
Lambertville Historical Society
Lambertville-West Amwell Youth
Baseball & Softball Association
Lawrenceville Winter Market
LaShir, The Jewish Community Choir
of Princeton
Lawrence Township Education Foundation
Lawrenceville Main Street
Learning to Lead
LifeTies, Inc.
Main Street New Egypt
Mainstage Center for the Arts
Meals on Wheels in
Greater New Brunswick
Meals on Wheels of Mercer County
Mercer Council on Alcoholism
& Drug Addiction
Mercer County Community
College Foundation
Mercer County Turkey Trot
Mercer Street Friends
Mid-Summer Marketing Showcase
Mil Al Mission
Monroe Indians for Civil Action
Montgomery / Rocky Hill Rotary Club
Montgomery Baseball League
Montgomery Business Association
Montgomery County Korean
Senior Association
Montgomery High School -
Cougar Football Club

Montgomery Township
Education Foundation
Montgomery Township
Fireworks Committee
Montgomery Township
Volunteer Fire Company No. 1
Montgomery Woman’s Club
Morven Museum & Garden
Mount Carmel Guild of Trenton
Music & Theatre Parents
Association of Hopewell Valley
Central High School
New Brunswick City Center
New Brunswick Domestic Violence
Response Team
New Hope Historical Society
NdJ Bankers Association
Notre Dame High School
Om Parikh Memorial Fund
Parkinson Alliance, The
PEI Kids
Penn Asian Senior Services
Pennington Business & Professional
Association
Pennington Day, Inc.
Pennington Public Library
Petey Greene Program, The
Philabundance
Philadelphia Holy Redeemer
Chinese Catholic Church and School
Planned Lifetime Assistance
Network of NJ
Plumstead Township
Police Unity Tour Inc., Chapter 10
Prevent Child Abuse
Princeton Area Alumni Association
Princeton Battlefield Society, The
Princeton Education Foundation
Princeton Family YMCA
Princeton Little League
Princeton Mercer Regional Chamber
Princeton Pro Musica
Princeton Public Library
Princeton Senior Resource Center
Princeton Symphony Orchestra
Princeton University
Summer Chamber Concerts

Project Freedom
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Puerto Rican Action Board
Rebuilding Together Essex County
Rebuilding Together Philadelphia
Robert Wood Johnson University Hospital
Hamilton Foundation
Rotary Club of Princeton, The
SAFE in Hunterdon
San Felese Lodge
Send Hunger Packing Princeton
Sixth Man Club
Societa Napoletana
Solebury Township Historical Society
Sourland Conservancy
Spectrum for Living
Steinert School Fund: DECA
TCA eSports Program
Team Habitat Company Build Day
Thomas Edison State
University Foundation
Town Clock Community
Development Corporation
Township of Chesterfield
Township of Lawrence
Toys for Tots: Camden County
Trenton Area Soup Kitchen, The
Trenton Catholic Academy
Trenton Circus Squad
Trinity Church
Triple C Housing, Inc.
United Way of Hunterdon County
Unity Square: Trunk or Treat
West Windsor - Plainsboro
Regional School District
Widener University
Womanspace
WW-P Robotics: MidKnight Mayhem
YWCA Princeton

Bank Wisely.



